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1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in
Hong Kong (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with
the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed
bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities
of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in Note 26. The address
of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued
by the HKICPA and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which for this financial year and
the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the newly enacted Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious
metals at fair value, investment properties which are carried
at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value
or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

(a) Amendments and interpretation that are

KT R 2 FE already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2014
REFER
BREAZEE rEEEH
Applicable for Currently
B3] /2R ES financial years relevant to
Amendments/Interpretation Content beginning on the Group
BB ERE325: (KIE3T) SRIE :JIT - eREEReRB B EH 20141 A1H =
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2014 Yes
Financial Liabilities
BB ERE365 (KE3T) BEME : FeRBEETHDCERSE 20141 A1H =
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 1 January 2014 Yes
Non-Financial Assets
BB ERE395 (KE7T) SMTAH : BREFE - TETANEE RIS ITE 20141 418 =
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 1 January 2014 Yes
- Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
EBMBREENE10 2KEEGE REER 01461718 &
EH‘J%ZW (%&ﬂ’} )
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Investment Entities 1 January 2014 No
g\‘/ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁ‘]ﬁﬁ%Z b BE 01451818 &
HK(IFRIC) = Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014 Yes
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(a)
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2.1
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments and interpretation that are
already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2014 (Cont’d)

HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”. The amendment addresses
inconsistencies in current practice when applying
the offsetting criteria and clarifies the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” including the circumstances of default event
or insolvency for any one of all the parties; and
the application of offsetting criteria to some gross
settlement systems (such as central clearing house
systems) that may be considered equivalent to net
settlement. The adoption of this amendment does
not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), “Impairment of Assets:
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets”. The amendment aligns the disclosure
requirements with its original intention which does
not intend to disclose at level of cash generating
unit if it is not impaired. It also requires additional
disclosure about the fair value measurement when
the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The adoption of
this amendment does not affect the disclosure of the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments and interpretation that are
already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2014 (Cont’d)

HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting”.
The amendment introduces a relief to allow hedge
accounting to continue in a situation where a
derivative, which has been designated as a hedging
instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a
central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation.
The adoption of this amendment does not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21, “Levies”. The interpretation
addresses how an entity should account for liabilities
to pay levies imposed by governments, other than
income taxes, in its financial statements. For a levy
that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold,
no liability should be anticipated before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. The adoption of this
interpretation does not have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not

yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014

The following standards and amendments have been issued

and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1 July 2014:

RAFESR
BREAZEE AEERE
Applicable for Currently
8 /53T 2ES financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after the Group
BEAGERE16 - 415% (KERT) RE AEMEY 0165 1A1R &
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
BEEERFE16 - 385 (BEFT) BBIE M2 AR TE 0161 A1H A
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016 No
BRGEERF195(2011) (BEFT) BEREH : RERMEE 01457A1H &
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans 1 July 2014 No
BEEHENE275(2011) (FEET) BB BRFANERE 0161 A1H =
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
BEAGER$2852011) - BAHE REEREMESAECE HANEELERIA 201651 41K &
WMEERE10% (BEFT)
HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1 January 2016 No
(Amendment) its Associate or Joint Venture
BRMBRELERE5(2014) SRIA 0185 1A1H =
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
ERABRELAENT (D) BERH  KBAEEBRS R ER 201651418 z
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 1 January 2016 No
in Joint Operations
BRRBRE LR 145 EERIERA 0165 1A18 &
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
BEUBRELENF 1557 RREFARMBA 201751418 =
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014 (Cont’d)

o HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements”. The amendment
restores the option to allow an entity to apply
the equity method to account for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. Early application is
permitted. Entities electing to change to the equity
method in its separate financial statements will have
to apply that change retrospectively. This amendment
will not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

. HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial Instruments”. The
issuance of IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
completes the International Accounting Standards
Board’s comprehensive response to the financial
crisis. HKFRS 9 (2014), the equivalent standard
of IFRS 9 (2014) under HKFRS, includes a logical
model for classification and measurement, a single,
forward-looking “expected loss” impairment model
and a tighter linkage of risk management to hedge
accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are
highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of
the following measurement categories: (1) measured
subsequently at amortised cost, (2) measured subsequently
at fair value through other comprehensive income (all fair
value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation
and impairment will be recognised in other comprehensive
income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition,
and subsequently on initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for managing
its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instruments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014 (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the
entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash
flows characteristics represent only unleveraged payments
of principal and interest. A debt instrument is subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held in a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows
characteristics. All other debt instruments are to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at
fair value with limited circumstances that cost may be an
appropriate estimate of fair value. Equity instruments that
are held for trading will be measured at fair value through
profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable
election can be made at initial recognition to recognise
unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses in other
comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the income statement even
upon disposal. Dividend income is recognised in the income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014 (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial Liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial
liabilities have been basically carried forward with minimal
amendments from HKAS 39.

The fair value option for financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the financial
liabilities will be presented in other comprehensive income.
The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included
in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair
value change is presented in the income statement. The
determination of whether there will be a mismatch will
need to be made at initial recognition of individual liabilities
and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified
to the income statement but may be transferred within
equity. This removes the volatility in profit or loss that was
caused by changes in the credit risk of liabilities elected to
be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity’s own credit risk on such
liabilities will no longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial
instruments that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of an unquoted equity instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014 (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment
model that will require more timely recognition of expected
credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities to account
for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when
financial instruments are first recognised and to recognise
full lifetime expected credit losses on a more timely basis
when there have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (debt instruments),
loan commitments and financial guarantees will be governed
by this standard.

(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better
align the accounting treatments with risk management
activities and enable entities to better reflect these activities
in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management
strategies may be eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes
the rules on using non-derivative financial instruments as
hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on hedged
items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with
more relevant information about risk management and the
effect of hedge accounting on the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same
time is permitted. Only the part related to own credit risk
can be elected to be early applied in isolation. The Group
is considering the financial impact of the standard and the
timing of its application.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in 2014 (Cont’d)

(iii) Hedge accounting (Cont’d)

o HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a single model and
specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue
arising from contracts with customers. The new
standard is based on the core principle that revenue
is recognised to reflect the consideration expected
to be entitled when control of promised good or
service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to
the recognition and measurement of gains or losses
on the sale of some non-financial assets such as
properties or equipments that are not an output of
ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of
disclosure requirements about revenue from customer
contracts. The new standard will replace the separate
models for goods, services and construction contracts
stipulated in different standards under the current
HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The Group is
considering the financial impact of the standard and
the timing of its application.

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

“Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments
to HKFRSs which the HKICPA considers not urgent but
necessary. It comprises amendments that result in accounting
changes for presentation, recognition or measurement
purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments
related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The amendments
are either effective and adopted for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2014 or will be effective on or after 1
January 2016. The adoption of these improvements does not
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(c) Improvements to HKFRSs (Cont’d)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the newly enacted Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622) will be applied from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance, which will be the year
ending 31 December 2015. The Group is still assessing
the expected impact of the changes in the period of initial
application. So far assessed, the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily affect the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred.
Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income
from subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement
when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Management, which is the chief operating decision maker
of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period are recognised directly in the income statement,
except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying net investment hedges.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair
value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive
income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from Hong Kong
dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

o assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the currency translation reserve in equity through
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.
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2. FEBHBESE @ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
25 fTEE€mI A 2.5 Derivative financial instruments

?ﬁi%%ﬂalﬁ%?ﬁi 256 RERE B A T EETIIRRE Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
R WARTFEETERESE - AFERERMIS ENAR the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

MSRERNG @ BESANTMSERS @ BBFERGER re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from
% BIEREReRESTIER - HEEEER (EA) quoted market prices in active markets, including recent
EATERLER TEeRTABKINREE  BATE market transactions, and through the use of valuation
REER  AIRIIRERE - techniques, including discounted cash flow models and

option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

ETTEeRmITASRBELMN S ITAR - & HAER Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
BAEREFERREER @S - MESRWIEAR FESE are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
(bt A &R - BEHEXITEERIATZEB AR TE characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
T2 WHHAFBEEZH T AlERE - the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair

value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

MELRMIAERSBABIERSH AR e ANEF Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes

P E R AR in their fair value are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

26 ¥Hgst 2.6 Hedge accounting

ZK%F?&%%E%@EE%%T?*IEEWH B HRIEE 2 H The Group documents at inception the relationship between

% EREREENMETSREE RS EPAEREZ KE o & hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its

SEN R EDRE SN AR REE - ST EETTES R I AR risk management objective and strategy for undertaking

EREABUEHEMEBWEIFIEE 2 A Y E - WIEHRE © various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its

WE A RAE P& AR 2 R IEM - assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge
accounting.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.6 Hedge accounting (Cont'd)
Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all financial assets and financial liabilities using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives
relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums
or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination
fees and costs which represent an integral part of the
effective yield.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense (Cont'd)

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not
an integral part of the effective yield are recognised
on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the
related service is provided, such as administrative fee,
asset management fee and custody services fee. Loan
syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related
syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group
has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as that of
other participants.

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
four categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management
determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction
costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying
amounts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is classified
as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held
for trading.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is
so designated by the Management:

3 eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement

or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
“an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases; or

to as

. applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the Management; or

J relates to financial assets containing one or more
embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resulting from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with

transaction costs taken directly to the income statement,
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Cont’d)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such
assets (excluding the interest component) are reported in
net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest
component is reported as part of interest income.

2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, including placements with and advances
to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt
securities without an active market and loans and advances
to customers. They arise when the Group provides money,
goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded
in active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has both
the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than
due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control, non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated
by the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the
issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or
regulatory requirement or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that
are either designated as such or are not classified in any of
the other categories. They are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which
time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised
in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium and discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on equity instruments classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group's right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised
to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest method. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset
using the effective interest method. If the financial asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount
recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale
securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

www.ncbh.com.hk



2. TEEHERE »)

2.10 &€@MERS

AEBZUTEIOBERAE  XZERE  FREEM
BE - -MAESRABENRZELERATEDBAARFEE
TR TERR ©

(1) XEMHEE

EERHNBEHZERARRIBABERZABEZAE -
FBENTESRT AR BRFIERZAEER - X548
BIARFETIE © A FE2 BB P E 4 8 WS S B IR FE RN
WEERA °

2) FHREMEE

BRIROBRXZMEAEBI  HitEREEME EHY AR
FRASFIR © HIBR R 5 B R 2 B WA EEEEN ZRR (10
B BRERMNEZENARNERSERTER -

2.11 HBERELH

MBRERENTHERZEACRENEBARERERA AR
BEBAZHNEBENIERMBETEREER - FRBAA
BN R MES 2 BROBEMNK

BBERGNVUAGHNEZEANRTEVERRASERE
B W TRUBEHRRANTEMRERERFIET - &
& AEEZEERATMEZBRETE  (REFES
RHERIEITR [ER  IRBEBERIAREE| BEEZER
R (i Ia HER 2 S FURIZ B AVE N ERA BHINHER 2 K5t
B (WER) - ¥BERSHABNES AN KSR DR

e ©

www.ncbh.com.hk

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, deposits and other liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised
initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is
incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the
short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading.
It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as
trading liabilities are carried at amortised cost. Any difference
(if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period using the effective interest method.

2.11 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
contract between the holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as
financial liabilities and reported under “Other accounts
and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on
a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise
the transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is
no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits
that are not trading liabilities are recognised when money is
received from customers, other liabilities are recognised when
such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised
from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation
to repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos.
Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined
price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due
to banks, placements from banks and other financial
institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as
collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or
securities borrowing are initially recorded in the balance
sheet as cash and due from banks or placements with banks
and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements
are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest
income or interest expense over the life of the agreements
using the effective interest method.

2.13 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties,
precious metals and certain financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in its principal market or the most advantageous market
accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.13 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group
uses valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm'’s
length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants, that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.14 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially
recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are
included in net trading gain/loss.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or
downgrading below investment grade level for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

o adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

. national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all
other financial assets that are not individually significant or
for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’'d)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity securities has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity security has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar and
relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for
impairment losses decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss
to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past
due but are treated as new loans.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’'d)
(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the accumulated losses, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed
through the income statement. With respect to equity
instruments, further fair value changes are recognised in the
reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale securities
through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are
not reversed through the income statement.

2.16 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Potential indications of impairment
may include significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the assets
operate or whether there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in value below their cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
and non-financial assets (Cont'd)

In the Bank's financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.

2.17 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’
financial statements and as premises in consolidated financial
statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to
generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the
income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.17 Investment properties (Cont'd)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as premises, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

2.18 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises
are shown at fair value based on periodic, at least annual,
valuations by external independent valuers less subsequent
accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar
properties, and adjustments are made when there has been
a material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost
until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the item
is subsequently measured according to the measurement
basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
premises are credited to the premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are
charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in
the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited
to the income statement up to the amount previously
debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon
disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is released and transferred from the premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
write down the cost or revalued amount of such assets over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

3 Properties Over the life of government
land leases
° Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, as at the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and
external sources of information are considered to determine
whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not
exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which
case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through
the premises revaluation reserve or the income statement
as appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.18 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses.
These are recognised in the income statement.

2.19 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. The total payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in
the period in which termination takes place. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified
as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (i.e. transaction price) of the land amounted to
substantially all of the fair value of the land as if it were
freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are
carried at their fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Leases (Cont'd)
(2) Finance leases (Cont’d)

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the
present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original
maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition,
including cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.22 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF
schemes that are available to the Group’s employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries
for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred
and represent contributions payable by the Group to the
schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited
by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the
full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions
or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-
administered funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special
approved annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if
the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except for
unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a
cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
for bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer
than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable
tax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and
the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance
sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

The principal temporary differences arise from asset
impairment provisions,
equipment, revaluation of certain assets including available-
for-sale securities and premises, and tax losses carried
forward. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at

depreciation of premises and

the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all
taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income
statement except for deferred income tax relating to fair
value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the realisation of the

deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from
investment property is determined based on the presumption
that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.24 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of
their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of
the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related
impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the
lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as
"Other assets”.

“non-current assets held for sale” included in
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.25 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary
capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets on
behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded
from these financial statements, as they are not assets of
the Group.

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

2.27 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if (i) that party
controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over
the Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial reporting
group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries;
(iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent
reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of
the Group or parents; (v) the party is subject to common
control with the Group; and (vi) an entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates and
judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either
the key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be
presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cCont'd)

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and
advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is @ measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. The Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December
2014 are shown in Note 23.

3.2 Impairment of held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-
sale investment portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance
such as external credit rating, market price etc will be
assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of
the issuers or performance of the underlying assets, or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
collateralised assets. The methodology and assumptions used
for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31
December 2014 are shown in Note 25.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial
instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not
guoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted
cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions
available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry such as
option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models
use observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments may
be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not considered in
the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further
details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2014 are shown in Note 22.

3.4 Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying
certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity securities. This classification requires significant
management judgement to evaluate the Group's intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, such as selling
an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to
significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets
as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then
be measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31
December 2014 are shown in Note 25.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of
engaging in a variety of business activities. The principal
financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group's exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure,
policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure
is designed to cover all business processes and ensures
various risks are properly managed and controlled in the
course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive
set of policies and procedures to identify, measure,
monitor and control various risks that may arise. These
risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and
business strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume
their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of
shareholders, is the highest decision-making authority
of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for
risk management. The Board, with the assistance of
its committees, has the primary responsibility for the
formulation of risk management strategies and for ensuring
that the Group has an effective risk management system to
implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee
established by the Board of Directors, is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
high-level risk-related policies and monitoring their
implementation, approving significant or high risk exposures
or transactions. The Risk Management Committee would
refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is deemed
so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing
the internal control system.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk
management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence while risk management units, which are
independent from the business units, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control
systems, including establishment of an organisation structure
that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence
of the control functions from the business areas, as well as
adequate segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Pursuant to a risk-based approach, the Audit Department
conducts independent reviews on areas including principal
risks, regulatory compliance, adequacy and effectiveness of
risk policies and internal control systems.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and
monitoring, the Group has a comprehensive product
development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and
proper due diligence processes on product development
are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the
Board and the Management, the respective product
management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific
product development activities. The division of strategic
development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the
Group's overall strategies. Divisions that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Product development and risk monitoring
(Cont'd)

Apart from product development, the respective product
management units shall work closely with relevant risk
evaluating divisions to identify and assess the risks of new
products. Risk evaluating divisions shall conduct independent
review on the risk assessment results and the corresponding
risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the
satisfaction of all risk evaluating divisions.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products
to our clients. All new treasury products require approval
from the Management or the special committee before
launching.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty
is unable to or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations.
Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as
well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the
Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit
risk management policies and procedures, and appropriate
credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are
regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in
market conditions and business strategies.

The Group's organisation structure establishes a clear set of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont’d)

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a
management committee authorised by the Chief Executive,
is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk
management strategies as well as the approval of credit
policies. It also monitors various aspects of the Group’s
loan portfolio such as asset quality, risk concentration.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit
risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the
first line of defence. They are obliged to make thorough
assessment on every credit application and are fully
responsible for monitoring credit performance and punctual
repayments. The business activities conducted should also
comply with the credit policies and procedures. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management
of credit risks and have the primary responsibilities for
providing an independent due diligence through identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk, as well as
drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management
policies and procedures. They report directly to the Credit
and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive and Risk
Management Committee. NCB (China) sets up independent
risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a
regular basis.

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit
authority. The Board of Directors delegates credit approval
authority to the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
subordinates within the limits authorised by the Board
of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval
authority according to business nature, internal rating, level
of transaction risk and extent of the credit exposure.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group
has been continuously revisiting its credit strategies and
conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted
according to level of risk associated with the customer,
counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are
subject to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In
general, most of the credit applications will be reviewed and
assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s)
before approval, with exceptions given to certain designated
products which satisfy certain conditions. These designated
advances will be (randomly) reviewed by designated unit(s)
which is(are) independent from the front line business units
after funding being drawn. Obligor ratings (in terms of
probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss
given default) are assigned to credit applications for non-
retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal
rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail
credit transactions, including small business retail exposures,
residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if
applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss
estimates (if applicable) to support credit monitoring,
reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-
retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss
estimates are used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis.
More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)
Advances (Cont’d)

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can
be mapped to Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The
structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance with
the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports are provided to the Management, Risk Management
Committee and Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by
industry, geography, customer and counterparty. The Group
monitors changes to counterparties credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and risk concentrations, and reports regularly
to the Group’s management.

In the year of 2014, the Group continues to adopt loan
grading criteria which divide credit assets into 5 categories
with reference to HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in
meeting its repayment obligations and full repayment of
interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s
position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays
a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is
improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest, taking into account the net
realisable value of the collateral.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)
Advances (Cont’d)

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible
after all collection options (such as the realisation of
collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets,
the obligor ratings or external credit ratings, assessment of
the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group
sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved and
follows the same approval and control processes as applied
for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures
are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange
transactions with counterparties and also from derivatives
transactions in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty
or customer to cover all settlement risks arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been
documented in the credit risk management policies and
procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis,
though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism
to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis.
Collateral is insured with the Group as the beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group assesses
the guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability
to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2014 the Group did not hold any
collateral that it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the
absence of default by the borrower (2013: Nil).

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario
of exposure to the Group without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-balance
sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals
their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount
that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees
are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit

enhancements and their financial effect to the different
classes of the Group's financial assets are as follows.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps
and Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”)
is the preferred agreement for documenting derivatives
activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities across a full range of OTC
transactions are conducted, and set out close-out netting
provisions upon termination following the occurrence of
an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if
deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA") will be
included to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master
Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one
counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the
exposures.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 92.
Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments are collateralised to the extent considered
appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk
assessment of individual exposures. The collateral coverage
of advances to customers is analysed on pages 112 to
115. The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments are disclosed in Note 38. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and
commitments, 12.62% (2013: 14.94%) is covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2014.

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment
allowances are summarised by product type as follows:

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— &8 - Mortgages 21,137,660 19,071,015
— AR — Credit cards 1,058,032 454,882
— Hith — Others 9,260,192 7,201,697
NS Corporate
—EHEER — Commercial loans 110,404,053 108,469,101
—B5HE — Trade finance 7,642,319 8,345,348
149,502,256 143,542,043
E52% Trade bills 16,371,563 13,242,636
a=t Total 165,873,819 156,784,679
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4. cHERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMESE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
AER1T
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 10,787,904 10,468,766
— HAith — Others 8,033,358 6,053,509
NGT Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 74,187,027 66,166,653
— B FmE — Trade finance 6,744,382 6,902,201
99,752,671 89,591,129
B2 5ER Trade bills 7,238,603 9,458,019
Est Total 106,991,274 99,049,148
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Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular instalments
are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past
due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are
classified as overdue either when a demand for repayment
has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the
advances have remained continuously outside the approved
limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred and that loss
event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the advances that can be reliably estimated.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
advances has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows generated by
the advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss mainly include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the
borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in principal or interest payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group has granted
to the borrower a concession that it would not
otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or
undergo other financial reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a

measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from such advances.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are
analysed by internal credit grades as follows:

rEH
The Group
2014
EEE  ARIUT
=i Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEIX Advances to customers
BA Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 20,837,952 19,811 1,729 20,859,492
— AR — Credit cards 988,572 - 99 988,671
— Hi — Others 9,187,486 3,660 1,363 9,192,509
NC Corporate
—HEEER — Commercial loans 107,368,945 1,492,590 29,394 108,890,929
—EBFmE — Trade finance 7,368,171 163,793 - 7,531,964
145,751,126 1,679,854 32,585 147,463,565
S S Trade bills 16,371,563 - - 16,371,563
4@zt Total 162,122,689 1,679,854 32,585 163,835,128
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) HEHREMESE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(a) FERE R EIE A (&) (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)
REE
The Group
2013
FE@E KA AT
i Special  Substandard HEt
Pass mention or below Total
BB TIT BT T BT T BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— 1715 - Mortgages 18,699,997 23,672 1,958 18,725,627
—ERF — Credit cards 445,096 = = 445,096
— Hith — Others 7,111,627 3,798 1,697 7,117,122
NG Corporate

—BEEEX — Commercial loans 104,860,954 2,953,206 12,863 107,827,023
—BI®AE — Trade finance 8,193,494 87,262 = 8,280,756
139,311,168 3,067,938 16,518 142,395,624
BE5RE Trade bills 13,242,636 - - 13,242,636
“ast Total 152,553,804 3,067,938 16,518 155,638,260
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)

RERAT
The Bank
2014
FEBRZE KR T
% Special Substandard #Et
Pass mention or below Total
BET T BET T BET T BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFEER Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &8 - Mortgages 10,705,641 5,001 1,438 10,712,080
— Ef — Others 7,985,480 2,930 1,363 7,989,773
N Corporate
—EEER — Commercial loans 73,439,334 308,640 29,394 73,777,368
—ZB5mE — Trade finance 6,572,726 112,334 - 6,685,060
98,703,181 428,905 32,195 99,164,281
BS5EE Trade bills 7,238,603 - - 7,238,603
FEs Total 105,941,784 428,905 32,195 106,402,884

www.ncbh.com.hk
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)

AERAT
The Bank
2013
SERIE OABTAT
i Special  Substandard HEt
Pass mention or below Total
PRI PRI R IT PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BEER Advances to customers
BA Personal
— &8 — Mortgages 10,345,633 4,093 1,285 10,351,011
— HAth — Others 5,986,849 3,155 1,697 5,991,701
NG Corporate
—BEEEX — Commercial loans 64,167,947 1,728,339 12,863 65,909,149
- BH®E — Trade finance 6,810,267 54,863 = 6,865,130
87,310,696 1,790,450 15,845 89,116,991
B E’ Trade bills 9,458,019 = = 9,458,019
15 Total 96,768,715 1,790,450 15,845 98,575,010

i#

R ERFFIR o
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The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in
impairment loss where the advances are fully collateralised.
While such advances are of “substandard” or lower grades,
they are regarded as not being impaired and have been
included in the above tables.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

RE R EERATHOT The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is
analysed as follows:
rEE
The Group
2014
3EAE 6fEAE
AaMm3EA FHB6EA TEB1F
LT Overdue for Overdue for bt
Overdue  six months one year EB1E
for three  orless but orless but Overdue for
months or  over three over six over one @st
less months months year Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EPER Advances to customers
EA Personal
— &1 - Mortgages 246,890 4,993 - 7,087 258,970
—ERF ~ Credit cards 31,892 - - - 31,892
—Hft - Others 47,856 2,441 - 6,014 56,311
yNS] Corporate
—EEEN - Commercial loans 523,957 18,936 1,160 1,090 545,143
-~ E5mE - Trade finance 7,488 24 - - 7,512
et Total 858,083 26,394 1,160 14,191 899,828

www.ncbh.com.hk
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BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEXRAMIEKRSE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b)  EEARBEEN (&) (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
AEE
The Group
2013
ksl jabsifep e
3(EAME 68 A 18
BEEA  THEBEeEA THB1F
i AT  Overdue for  Overdue for 8
Overdue  six months one year BBIF
for three or less but or less but  Overdue for
months or over three over six over one st
less months months year Total
BETT BETT BETFT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEX Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 312,480 92 - 5,475 318,047
—EAR ~ Credit cards 9,243 543 = = 9,786
— Hft - Others 69,397 1,174 5,117 - 75,688
NG| Corporate
—HEEN - Commercial loans 288,300 6,221 2,178 1,042 297,741
- — Trade finance 9,882 - 477 = 10,359
FEE Total 689,302 8,030 7,772 6,517 711,621

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cRERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEXRAMIEKRSE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b)  EERBEE (E) (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
AT
The Bank
2014
ki) BEHER
3EAE 6fEAE
BE3ER TEB6EA THEBIF
T Overdue for Overdue for g
Overdue  six months one year EBR1F
for three  orless but  orless but Overdue for
months or  over three over six over one @gt
less months months year Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 70,831 4,993 - - 75,824
— Hfth - Others 40,373 2,441 - - 42,814
NG Corporate
-HEER - Commercial loans 297,876 - - - 297,876
—E5RE - Trade finance 1,666 - - - 1,666
FEH Total 410,746 7,434 - - 418,180

www.ncbh.com.hk

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

103



104

BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FERE (#) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEXRAMIEKRSE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b)  EEARBEEN (&) (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
AHAT
The Bank
2013
ki) ksl
3EAME 6f8 A 18
BE3EA  TEEBEeEA THB1F
AT Overdue for  Overdue for A
Overdue six months one year iR 1F
for three or less but or less but  Overdue for
months or over three over six over one st
less months months year Total
BETT BETT BETTT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEX Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 117,425 92 - 238 117,755
— Hf — Others 54,407 1,174 - - 55,581
NG Corporate
—HEET — Commercial loans 125,212 6,221 2,178 - 133,611
- E5mE - Trade finance 9,882 - 477 - 10,359
18 Total 306,926 7,487 2,655 238 317,306
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERERE W@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 FERER (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) HREHMREMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(c  REEHX (© Impaired advances

EERZAREERIZERERSTAT Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed

by product type as follows:

AEE
The Group
2014 2013
BEHRRTE EHRTE
HWER Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BET T BET T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— &8 - Mortgages 19,198 12,425 27,341 30,941
—EAFR — Credit cards 37,469 _ _ _
— HAth — Others 11,372 10,027 8,887 5,702
NS Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 967,981 883,162 344,337 109,922
—E5pE — Trade finance 102,843 45,703 54,233 57,575
A=t Total 1,138,863 951,317 434,798 204,140
MBBERIEL ZRE Impairment allowances made
A in respect of such advances 732,356 280,913
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HELMBEFREENEFPER Current market value of collateral held against the
ZEMETE covered portion of such advances to customers 951,317 204,140
it ERERBECRFPER Covered portion of such advances to customers 637,382 153,690
FHR BB REECREFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 501,481 281,108

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(c) JREE (48)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

RER1T
The Bank
2014 2013
BEHmTE EHEME
HMER Market BB Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— Hfth — Others 771 - 6,227 3,412
NS Corporate
—BEER — Commercial loans 111,783 32,054 123,893 42,303
—E5E — Trade finance 57,656 7,596 26,712 8,177
FEE Total 170,210 39,650 156,832 53,892
MBEBERIEL 2 RE Impairment allowances made in
P respect of such advances 107,058 79,556
ZRER1T
The Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HEABERQRBEENEPER Current market value of collateral held against the
ZEBETE covered portion of such advances to customers 39,650 53,892
LB EAREECEPER Covered portion of such advances to customers 19,026 48,739
iR EEERBEZREFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 151,184 108,093

HEEGBEERBRER ERMER -

The impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collateral in respect of impaired

advances.
R2014F128318  BAREZZES5EE (20134 : ) o As at 31 December 2014, there were no impaired trade bills
(2013: Nil).

#1191 W% 4645 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT £ www.ncb.com.hk



4. THERERE &)

41 FERE (8)

(B) HEFRHEMAE (&)

(c  REEF (&)
BESBIREZZEFPERASITAT :

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed

as follows:
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BT T BETIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEABENREZRFERERE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 1,254,636 485,811
MR FEHBIREZEEEREEEFS  Gross classified or impaired advances to customers as
Bt =® a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.84% 0.34%
A B ERERBIF S 2 B EZEE Individually assessed impairment allowances made in
respect of such advances 731,598 280,913
AERT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BENESRELEFERERE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 223,553 192,199
METE O BESRMEY BREEREEEE  Gross classified or impaired advances to customers as
= E /s a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.22% 0.21%
BB B B SR EE B A 2 R B Individually assessed impairment allowances made in
respect of such advances 107,058 79,556

BEDRIREZLEPERRERAESEEREED BN

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent

R [R# | = [BE | EFEERNFEARENER - advances which are either classified as “substandard”,
“doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of loan

www.ncbh.com.hk

quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)

(d)  BHGEB3EAZEHX
BEREB3EA < EREEAOMMT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three
months is analysed as follows:

AEE
The Group
2014 2013
HEFER EEFER
BERADL wEAS

% of gross

% of gross

$% advances to €%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEZMEE - ©#EH - Gross advances to customers which
have been overdue for:
— BiE3EAE — six months or less but over
iEBB6E A three months 261,805 0.17% 197,953 0.14%
— fBi@e6fE AR — one year or less but over
THBE1F six months 153,074 0.10% 67,182 0.04%
— HBR1F — over one year 173,289 0.12% 126,102 0.09%
mHEBE3E A 2 ER Advances overdue for over three
months 588,168 0.39% 391,237 0.27%
g btz EFE@ERBIEE S Individually assessed impairment
BB LR allowances made in respect of
such advances 505,549 266,765

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§
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4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(d) BEEEA3EH 2 B ()

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

(Cont’d)

RERAT
The Bank

2014
HEFER
BEADL
% of gross

2013

HEPEN
BEADL
% of gross

€% advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZFEEZ45  2®H :  Gross advances to customers which
have been overdue for:
— @3 EA R — six months or less but over
NiEBA6E A three months 27,257 0.03% 41,010 0.05%
— HiB6(E A E — one year or less but over
TiBiB1F six months 14,396 0.01% 48,844 0.05%
— BiE1F — over one year 80,970 0.08% 49,067 0.06%
mEARIE3EA ZER Advances overdue for over three
months 122,623 0.12% 138,921 0.16%
it 2 EFEERIEE  Individually assessed impairment
BB LR allowances made in respect of
such advances 68,495 68,315
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B EERREENRRPER Y Current market value of collateral held against the
R mTE covered portion of such advances to customers 430,468 201,240
LB EHAREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 284,182 145,200
PR BB EECRFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 303,986 246,037

www.ncbh.com.hk
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BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cHERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMESE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(d) BRI A3E A 2 Bl (4E) (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
(Cont’d)
ARERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEABERRBEENEPERZ Current market value of collateral held against the
AR (E covered portion of such advances to customers 36,124 50,439
LB EAREECRRER Covered portion of such advances to customers 13,390 41,597
IR BE B R EECEPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 109,233 97,324

BHERYREETRNERREIERRARREFATHNA
REENAEIEEET  AARGEFPEATHNEERED
2,

MK2014F 128318 » AEERARITLEAHBRB3IMEA 2
B 54 (20134 : ) »

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is
principally represented by charges over business assets such

as commercial and residential premises for corporate loans

and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2014, there were no trade bills overdue
for more than three months for the Group and the Bank
(2013: Nil).
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4. THERERE &)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMESE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(e) ACEHE S (e) Rescheduled advances
rEE
The Group
2014 2013
HEFEXR HERFER
HWEHDL BWEHDL
% of gross % of gross
€% advances to %%8  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BB TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEARFEFFHE Rescheduled advances to
(BEMREER [#E customers net of amounts
HiE3ME A 285 %) included in “Advances overdue
for more than three months” 9,803 0.01% 6,288 0.00%
RER1T
The Bank
2014 2013
HEFEXR HRFER
HWHEHDL FEEEN=E o d
% of gross % of gross
€% advances to 4% advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEHARFEFFRE Rescheduled advances to
(BEMREER [#E customers net of amounts
HiE3ME A 2 &85 %4 ) included in “Advances overdue
for more than three months” 9,803 0.01% 6,288 0.01%

REBERTEE P FE AW BUR s B8 1) i HE SR A8 &

TRBERERENFE 2ER - BRI EFFERIKE
AEFmDEREE3EA - MetkE afge3fEAzE
A

www.ncbh.com.hk

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower or of the inability
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more
than three months under the revised repayment terms,
are included in “Advances overdue for more than three

months”.
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BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 FERE (#)

(B) HBEHRAMEE (#)

(7) EFEAEFRE

(i) RITEN B EPEREHE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

LTERBEFERBRE 2 TESELN  HTESBEH2R The following analysis of the gross advances to customers
BAERRBR 2 @ERRROERIERMER - by industry sector is based on the categories with reference
to the Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of loans
and advances.
55H
The Group
2014
ERREE BRIz ARTEz
EF 2B HEER HEEE
BHREE % Covered RESE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral HHE assessed assessed
advances to orother  Classified BE impairment impairment
customers security  or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BETT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
BN Industrial, commercial and financial
- NEEE — Property development 3,109,845 30.32% - - - 10,877
—MERE — Property investment 12,223,689 86.15% 9,397 35,519 1,322 119,117
- SRE - Financial concerns 2,001,248 21.71% - - - 5,040
-RELL ~ Stockbrokers 101,383 1.35% - - - 236
- HERTER ~ Wholesale and retail trade 11,956,256 26.82% 92,507 308,788 26,800 84,717
- g% - Manufacturing 6,307,305 23.80% 38,178 41,590 26,344 33,372
- BHRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 4,056,145 10.50% 30,386 6,486 12,159 14,822
— REEE — Recreational activities 56,908 1.97% - - - 133
— B ~ Information technology 1,728,779 1.80% 2,479 4,875 919 4,273
— Hfth - Others 13,754,281 44.32% 9,630 15,346 6,830 81,038
(N Individuals
-BEEXBHEE . - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
FLAKB22ERS Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
B LAEELEME Participation Scheme and Tenants
BFZER Purchase Scheme 455,145 99.99% 2,006 12,250 - 226
-BEHEMEENFEL - Loans for purchase of other residential
&N properties 10,333,678 99.51% 5,903 64,808 - 3,240
— =R ‘F‘ B3R - Credit card advances 20,012 - 609 - - 290
- Hfth - Others 6,759,164 41.17% 5,411 38,361 782 5,835
EEBFERCERBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 72,863,838 50.36% 196,506 528,023 75,156 363,216
BHRE Trade finance 7,642,319 27.90% 102,867 110,355 73,200 59,473
EEBUIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 68,996,099 41.47% 955,263 1,249,484 583,242 815,833
REEHEE Gross advances to customers 149,502,256 45.11% 1,254,636 1,887,862 731,598 1,238,522

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEXRAMIEKRSE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(1) EEEHEPE (&) ) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BRITED BB ERRE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KEE
The Group
2013
_ BRREE BRIz BETEZ
EPER ZANL REER HEER
B8 % Covered RENE Individually  Collectively
Gross by collateral FRfE assessed assessed
advances to or other Classified @E  impairment  impairment
customers security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrHemE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development 2,216,959 49.42% = = = 9,953
- MERE - Property investment 12,296,487 86.23% 15,573 58,529 1,150 124,766
o E - Financial concerns 2,819,772 13.24% - - - 8,427
-RELEL ~ Stockbrokers 266,540 0.53% - - - 643
~HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 10,133,696 32.83% 67,961 109,124 19,731 79,617
—BlE¥ - Manufacturing 4,580,945 37.58% 39,580 43,157 24,498 43,219
— EHRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,944,329 13.50% 713 2,855 167 34,125
— KEEE) - Recreational activities 61,579 = = = = 159
— &R — Information technology 2,051,533 1.76% 2,298 2,298 649 5,388
— Hfty - Others 10,931,760 48.71% 19,871 26,902 8,016 70,296
(N Individuals
—BEEEFHEZ - - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
LABBE2EER Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
ELEEEERENE Participation Scheme and Tenants
BFZER Purchase Scheme 565,821 100.00% 3,178 14,067 - 302
-BEEMEENEL — Loans for purchase of other residential
=5 properties 9,902,944 99.91% 1,153 103,688 - 3,820
- Hip - Others 4,807,678 47.61% 3,886 45,691 71 4,769
EEBFERCERBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,580,043 55.38% 154,213 406,311 54,982 385,484
BHRE Trade finance 8,345,348 26.31% 54,710 64,592 34,580 60,959
EBRBUIMER 2B Loans for use outside Hong Kong 70,616,652 41.43% 276,888 654,409 191,351 740,572
RPERESE Gross advances to customers 143,542,043 46.83% 485,811 1,125,312 280913 1,187,015

www.ncbh.com.hk
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BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. TREREE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FFERE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRHEMAE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(1) BEEENEHE () () Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BRITED BB ERRE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KEAT
The Bank
2014
BERREE {85504 AR
EF 2B ZREEE ZHEREE
BHREE % Covered RESE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral HHE assessed assessed
advances to orother  Classified B% impairment impairment
customers security or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT BRI BT BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERZERN Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrepE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 3,109,845 30.32% - - - 10,877
- MERE - Property investment 12,223,689 86.15% 9,397 35,519 1,322 119,117
-SRE¥ - Financial concerns 2,001,248 21.71% - - - 5,040
-RELL ~ Stockbrokers 101,383 1.35% - - - 236
-RELTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 11,956,256 26.82% 92,507 308,788 26,800 84,717
—BlEg - Manufacturing 6,307,305 23.80% 38,178 41,590 26,344 33,372
— B RERRE - Transport and transport equipment 4,026,146 9.86% 386 6,486 195 14,388
— RS ~ Recreational activities 56,908 1.97% - - - 133
— BB - Information technology 1,728,779 1.80% 2,479 4,875 919 4,273
—Hfy - Others 13,754,281 44.32% 9,630 15,346 6,830 81,038
(G Individuals
- BEEEBHREHE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
IARELEERE in Home Ownership Scheme,
HEIREEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
FTEIRFZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 455,145 99.99% 2,006 12,250 - 226
-BEHMEENFE L ~ Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties 10,332,759 99.51% 5,903 63,574 - 3,227
— Hfth - Others 6,758,678 41.16% 5411 38,361 782 5,828
ERRERZERER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 72,812,422 50.35% 165,897 526,789 63,192 362,472
BHRE Trade finance 6,744,382 29.81% 57,656 59,322 43,866 46,480
EBBIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 20,195,867 19.31% - - - 109,706
RFEREH Gross advances to customers 99,752,671 42.68% 223,553 586,111 107,058 518,658

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

www.ncb.com.hk



BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEXRAMIEKRSE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(1) EEEHEPE (&) ) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BRITED BB ERRE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KIRIT
The Bank
2013
BRnES R AT
®F ZARL JRERE  JREEE
E@E % Covered RENE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral KRl E assessed assessed
advances to or other Classified @E  impairment  impairment
customers security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsaE Industrial, commercial and financial
o E£ ~ Property development 2,216,959 49.42% - - - 9,953
—MERE — Property investment 12,296,487 86.23% 15,573 58,529 1,150 124,766
-SRE - Financial concerns 2,819,772 13.24% - - - 8,427
- REER ~ Stockbrokers 266,540 0.53% - - - 643
- HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 10,133,696 32.83% 67,961 109,124 19,731 79,617
—REX - Manufacturing 4,580,945 37.58% 39,580 43,157 24,498 43,219
- ERRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,910,573 13.49% 713 2,855 167 33,755
— REED - Recreational activities 61,579 - - - - 159
— BRI — Information technology 2,051,533 1.76% 2,298 2,298 649 5,388
- Hit - Others 10,931,759 48.71% 19,871 26,902 8,016 70,296
A Individuals
~BEREBHENE - - Loans for the purchase of flats
IWAREL2RERE in Home Ownership Scheme,
FEREEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
SHEBTZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 565,821 100.00% 3,178 14,067 - 302
-BEEMEENEY — Loans for purchase of other
= residential properties 9,902,944 99.91% 1,153 103,688 - 3,820
—Hfty - Others 4,807,678 47.61% 3,886 45,691 71 4,769
EEBFAZEFEE  Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,546,286 55.40% 154,213 406,311 54,982 385,114
B5mE Trade finance 6,902,201 28.82% 27,189 37,071 16,296 45,249
EBEBUIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 18,142,642 20.73% 10,797 11,168 8,278 165,612
EEEREE Gross advances to customers 89,591,129 46.33% 192,199 454,550 79,556 595,975

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 FER (8)

(B) HEEHRAMEE (&)

()  EBEBHESE (&)

0 BAEDBErEREREE (B)

RS R BB ZFRBERERE - REFMESES ERRE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

(Cont'd)

The amount of new impairment allowances charged to the

BT : income statement, and classified or impaired loans written
off during the year are shown below:
A%
The Group
2014 2013
MERELE MsHSE AR
RHEERK FREER
FREEESE Classified ~ #TIRAE%EMR Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEerE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE — Property investment 2,484 3,237 1,954 738
- RELLR ~ Stockbrokers - - 36 -
- PERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 13,970 5,433 11,310 7,449
— Bl - Manufacturing 7,173 3,244 7,211 2,841
— B MIBHRE - Transport and transport equipment 11,881 - 210 -
— BB — Information technology 270 - 70 -
— Hfth - Others 3,283 470 8,679 2,152
@A Individuals
- BEHMEENEIER — Loans for purchase of other
residential properties 2 - - -
—ERREX — Credit card advances 32 - = =
— Hf - Others 18,262 17,193 9,467 6,747
ERBFER ETBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 57,357 29,577 38,937 19,927
EHRE Trade finance 55,594 4,339 11,337 2,556
EBBIMEAZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 899,775 344,936 383,201 137,691
REEHBE Gross advances to customers 1,012,726 378,852 433,475 160,174
#1757 % 445 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT www.nch.com.hk



4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(1) EEEHEPE (&) ) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BROESBEFPERRE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
ARAT
The Bank
2014 2013
MERESE MEHEE A
HREEN SREER
FRRRBEERE Classified  FTIERE%ER Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETR BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEsmsE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERLE - Property investment 2,484 3,237 1,954 738
- RELL - Stockbrokers - - 36 -
- BRERTEE — Wholesale and retail trade 13,970 5,433 11,310 7,449
—RliEE - Manufacturing 7,173 3,244 7,211 2,841
— B N EHRE - Transport and transport equipment 229 - 77 -
— BRI ~ Information technology 270 - 70 -
—Hfh - Others 3,283 470 8,679 2,152
@A Individuals
— Bt - Others 18,262 17,193 9,467 6,747
ERBFERzETEE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 45,671 29,577 38,804 19,927
BEHmE Trade finance 41,922 4,339 5,688 2,556
ERBAIMER 2 55 Loans for use outside Hong Kong 93 3,000 10,243 =
REEHEE Gross advances to customers 87,686 36,916 54,735 22,483

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cEERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 FERMRE (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) HBEHRAMEE (#) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(f) EEEHEPE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) B RSB REERERE (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

TIHERBEFER 2B RHESNTERER ZEF 2T The following geographical analysis of advances to customers

o WEBEERRBRERREZ - AR ERZERAFEHE is based on the location of the counterparties, after taking

BPFEM AR - AR EER EERAZAEM into account the transfer of risk. For an advance to customer
guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of
the guarantor.

EFERER Gross advances to customers
KEH
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 73,959,116 71,198,417
B A HB Mainland of China 69,650,228 66,923,361
HAh, Others 5,892,912 5,420,265

149,502,256 143,542,043

ARIRAT

The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
a5 Hong Kong 70,872,475 66,697,103
FR ] Ay 3t Mainland of China 23,987,373 18,605,455
HAfb Others 4,892,823 4,288,571
99,752,671 89,591,129

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§
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4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(f) EEEHEPE (&)

(iy RHBERESBEZEFPERER (B)

EFERAE (B

REFERARFASTAZBEER

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect
of the gross advances to customers

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
=5 Hong Kong 412,140 463,692
R R A it Mainland of China 730,437 633,469
HAth Others 95,945 89,854
1,238,522 1,187,015
RERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 355,366 406,112
R A A Mainland of China 120,996 155,014
H A Others 42,296 34,849
518,658 595,975

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cHERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMESE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(1) EEEHEPE (&) () Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(if) R RSB EEFERERE (B) (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BHER Overdue advances
AEME
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 332,232 422,834
B A Mainland of China 1,546,827 659,877
HAh, Others 8,803 42,601

1,887,862 1,125,312

RERAT
The Bank

2014 2013

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB Hong Kong 327,189 399,093
Fh [ A Mainland of China 257,525 43,917
HAit Others 1,397 11,540
586,111 454,550
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4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(f) EEEHEPE (&)

(i) R RO B TP ER

BREXR (&)

I8 2 B R B B Rk 2 BB R

e (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed impairment allowances in respect

of the overdue advances

&

The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Hong Kong 52,960 50,989
el NP Mainland of China 546,644 217,507
Hih Others 1,448 4,377
601,052 272,873

RERAT

The Bank
2014 2013
BET T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 52,960 46,567
AR [ A 3 Mainland of China 50,375 21,953
HAth Others 1,448 4,257
104,783 72,777

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(f) EEEHEPE (&)

(iy RHBERESBEZEFPERER (B)

BREXR (&)

BB EREA ST 2R EER

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect
of the overdue advances

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&b Hong Kong 6,660 8,155
rh B 9 3 Mainland of China 6,844 3,632
Hih Others 20 238
13,524 12,025
RERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B85 Hong Kong 6,646 8,016
A [ A 3 Mainland of China 3,310 35
HAith Others - 57
9,956 8,108

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(1) EEEHEPE (&) ) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(if) R RSB EEFERERE (B) (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BEDEIREER Classified or impaired advances
KEH
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 151,434 154,186
HR B (A3 Mainland of China 1,101,806 324,675
HAh, Others 1,396 6,950
1,254,636 485,811
RERIT
The Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 151,434 148,681
R B A 3 Mainland of China 70,723 36,707
EHih, Others 1,396 6,811
223,553 192,199

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(f) EEEHEPE (&)

(iy RHBERESBEZEFPERER (B)

BESERREER (&)

B E 2 TR SR B R B B R A 2 R E 2

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed impairment allowances in respect
of the classified or impaired advances

AEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Hong Kong 55,235 57,768
R R A it Mainland of China 674,915 218,768
HAit Others 1,448 4,377
731,598 280,913
ARERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 55,235 53,345
AR [ A 3 Mainland of China 50,375 21,954
H At Others 1,448 4,257
107,058 79,556

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(B) HBEFZNRAMIKRE (&)
(f) EEEHEPE (&)

(iy RHBERESBEZEFPERER (B)

BESERREER (&)

BREED BRREEREASTEZRMEER

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont’d)

Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect
of the classified or impaired advances

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Hong Kong 3,524 2,298
rh B b Mainland of China 1,609 39
5,133 2,337
ARERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$000
BB Hong Kong 3,524 2,297
3,524 2,297

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(€) W o] 5

RER » ANE B N ZARR 1738 15 S5 I Gh 77 58 U 0] & 2= #E i BX
BIYR12A31TBRHENEE - HEEARAGERMRANT :

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
() Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group and the Bank obtained assets by
taking possession of collateral held as security. The nature
and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December
are summarised as follows:

rEH AERT

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEMFE Industrial properties - 2,790 - 2,790
FEMH Residential properties - 19,494 - 15,300
Hith Other 583 - 583 -
583 22,284 583 18,090

AEBEKRARITR2014F12A31BEHENKREIEE 2 HE
% 75 #4,906,0007T (20134 : % #38,822,00070) K& 7& &
730,0007T (20134F : 5 #34,250,0007T) ° = B FEAEE
FEHERRGEESNIEHENME (WRREEREFHE
FEHBXEHEREESNEE) MEERANBEEETEE
DR o

BUWOEENERENZIFER  AREFHZERATI

- BEREREE-—HIHEER

- ZHHETFEMR

126 %% #%44% ¢ NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT £

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by
the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2014 amounted
to HK$4,906,000 (2013: HK$38,822,000) and HK$730,000
(2013: HK$34,250,000). They comprise properties in respect
of which the Group and the Bank have acquired access or
control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions
by the proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of
the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into
cash, the Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring

www.ncbh.com.hk



4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)

(D)  EIRITREMEBEEN AR FH

TRAERIT REAM S BHE S SER SO B2 &8k K175
R12A31 BIRFFRMIE 2 FER AT

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other

financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and

placements with banks and other financial institutions that

are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by

rating agency designation.

rEH
The Group
2014
A3LLT
AaaZA3 Lower TR et
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BET T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
HR R ERAT Central banks 18,694,761 - - 18,694,761
RIT M E A RS Banks and other financial

institutions 20,208,603 20,003,535 16,963,308 57,175,446
38,903,364 20,003,535 16,963,308 75,870,207

rEH

The Group
2013
A3LATR
AaaZA3 Lower E A et
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRRERTT Central banks 17,068,323 - - 17,068,323
SRIT M E A& mh iR Banks and other financial

institutions 15,178,049 20,416,998 12,536,250 48,131,297
32,246,372 20,416,998 12,536,250 65,199,620

www.ncbh.com.hk

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

127



BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

41 EERR (&)
(D)  FEIRITREMEFEEEREGR Z (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other

financial institutions (Cont’d)

RERAT
The Bank
2014
A3
AaaEA3 Lower E g st
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FR R ERTT Central banks 2,364,763 - - 2,364,763
RITREAM S R Banks and other financial
institutions 15,314,234 8,535,286 3,916,785 27,766,305
17,678,997 8,535,286 3,916,785 30,131,068
RIRTT
The Bank
2013
A3
AaaZEA3 Lower AT FEES
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T R IT PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRRERTT Central banks 853,838 = = 853,838
SR1T R H A& mok g Banks and other financial
institutions 6,302,846 8,051,195 4,899,332 19,253,373
7,156,684 8,051,195 4,899,332 20,107,211

R2014512 4318 - RABHSRE 2 R1T R E S B
BESRRTR (20134 - &) °
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As at 31 December 2014, there were no overdue or impaired

balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

41 FFERE (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(E)  (EHFFEFREHNE (E)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit

TRBUABITHIBRO N 2 BRE S MFREREE - EEE The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value

TRBRBERT - AERETANTRRS - of debt securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating.

In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated
for the issuers are reported.

A%H
The Group
2014
A3LLF
Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower ETR @t
Aaa Aa1lto Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BRTT  BEWTrn  B¥Tr  B®Tx  BRTr BEETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000

A EES Available-for-sale securities 5,179,077 20,657,187 11,750,008 448,511 4,364,791 42,399,574
REZRIERES Held-to-maturity securities 243,450 1,759,590 615,350 - - 2,618,390
BRI Loans and receivables - - 62,421 - 2,012,173 2,074,594
NFEZLEIABRZ  Financial assets at fair value

SREE through profit or loss 4,589,985 1,309,309 255,919 - - 6,155213
st Total 10,012,512 23,726,086 12,683,698 448511 6,376,964 53,247,771

A5E

The Group
2013
AT

Aa1ZEAa3 A1ZEA3 Lower A st
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

ARTT  ABTT  A%TT  R%TT BBt AETR
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A EES Available-for-sale securities 895,932 18,002,312 15,328,029 445839 5,266,560 39,938,672
FEZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities - 585,144 = 298 = 585,442
ER KL Loans and receivables - - 1,008,897 - 675,167 1,684,064
NFEE(LEFABEZ  Financial assets at fair value

SREE through profit or loss 624 3,665,412 498,657 = - 4,164,693
st Total 896,556 22,252,868 16,835,583 446,137 5,941,727 46,372,871
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) EFFEFRFHE (E) (E)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit
(Cont’d)
KR
The Bank
2014
AT
Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower EE @it
Aaa Aaflto Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHEEER Available-for-sale securities 5,179,077 15,402,866 10,347,509 448,511 3,390,708 34,768,671
FEZIEBES Held-to-maturity securities 243,450 - - - - 243,450
ERR YK Loans and receivables - - 62,421 - 2,012,173 2,074,594
NFEE(GIABEZ  Finandal assets at fair value
EMEE through profit or loss 4,589,985 1,309,309 255,919 - - 6,155,213
st Total 10,012,512 16,712,175 10,665,849 448,511 5,402,881 43,241,928
ASRTT
The Bank
2013
AT
Aa1EAa3 A1EA3 Lower mM st
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 895,932 14,633,726 14,733,437 445,839 3,944,717 34,653,651
FEZIEAE Held-to-maturity securities = = = 298 = 298
ER KL Loans and receivables - - 1,008,897 = 675,167 1,684,064
NFEEEIABEZ  Finandal assets at fair value
SRMEE through profit or loss 624 3,665,412 498,657 - - 4,164,693
ot Total 896,556 18,299,138 16,240,991 446,137 4,619,834 40,502,706
R2014F 128318 @ BB R E B 2 BB HF R FRE As at 31 December 2014, there were no impaired or overdue

(20134 : 4&)
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debt securities and certificates of deposit (2013: Nil).
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4. THERERE &)

4.2 TWHEER

miZEREERERMEER (BX  MX - BRER B
m{EfR) KBV EHEBANINE - FX RENMPRFEEL
RBMARAAEERRNER - AEBERIET TS
[\ B il o - B R JER\e B MmO S 1 o

mEREREERR  EREAKENEARRBEMEFXHE
RRE  KETZNREREEFNEMEEEETFR  BXE
BESERBHARELNMSAR  REESEBKREEE
E o

AEEERARERCEEARUERETSRAR  EF
KEBTHEARERERS  SEERARNTSARELE
B REAEE - SRHE - AREZECEEGHSEE
B ARETEHEERE B ERASEDSARARIA
RERRERNRENTNR - BREBAENOTSERSY
THETEENARKTR - BREBNR - SAABIE
waERESRENERREETES  LEBEFRRE
EMBBERARRR  ERABUARRE BOHOS
BERABEES - 57 (PE) RABIOHABRELE
ERSAHTHRRRREATER - LEBARRITRE
EEEBARE -

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements
in the value of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and
commodity positions held by the Group due to the volatility
of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest
rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group adopts a
moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance between
risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy
of treasury business on the basis of a well established risk
management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance
principles in respect of risk management, the Board and
Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities
to manage the Group's market risk. The risk management
units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring
the market risk profile and compliance of management
policies and limits of the Group to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.
Independent units are assigned to monitor the risk exposure
against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and
loss reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular
basis, while limit excesses should be reported at once when
they occur. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and
submit management information and reports to the Bank on
a regular basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont’'d)

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control market risk. Major
risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity
Analysis (Basis Point Value), etc. To meet management
requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee or
Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units are
required to conduct their business within approved market
risk indicators and limits.

(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general
market risks to the Risk Management Committee and
Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts
a uniformed VAR calculation model,
simulation approach and two years of historical market data,
to calculate the VAR of the Group and the Bank over 1-day
holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the
VAR limit of the Group and the Bank.

using a historical

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market
risk exposure! of the Group.

R12A318 255EE8E 2F55%8E 25¥9%E
FEip At Minimum for ~ Maximum for Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BT BT BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2EmIHEE Bk VAR for all market risk 2014 635 635 1,901 1,181
2013 1,294 1,294 2,982 2,196
B R b 2 LB B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2014 544 544 1,975 1,145
2013 1,191 1,191 3,047 2,196
xRS 2 RRE VAR for interest rate risk 2014 274 225 883 644
2013 502 117 635 268
s Note:
1. T EIEINEL B O RERE - 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont’d)
(A) VAR (Cont'd)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be
viewed in the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for
estimating future events may not encompass all
potential events, particularly those which are extreme
in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that
all positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day.
This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at
times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding
period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does
not take into account losses that might occur beyond
this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures
outstanding at the close of business and therefore
does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress
test indicators and limits to assess and manage the market
risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing programme of
the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in
risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

(B) Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major
currencies, particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and
Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group
is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and
VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover,
the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts
(e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated
with foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont’'d)

(B) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31
December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts in HK dollars equivalent, categorised by
the original currency.

548
The Group
2014
AE 4
AR Ey B BE  Japanese Pound Ef @
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
BETn  AMTn  A¥TR  B¥Tn B¥Tn BETn BMTn BETR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EfRE REHBRTR Cash and balances with banks and
HfepamEan gL other financial institutions 42,364,659 2960246 11289701 831,519 239946 507,181 89,548 58,282,800
ERREMSRIEE Placements with banks and other financial
—Et+-EAREE, institutions maturing between one and
TR twelve months 16,629,417 1,551,345 - - - - - 18,180,762
NFERGIAER L Financial assets at fair value through
SHAE profit or loss - 255919 5,899,294 - - - - 6155213
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 29,429 23,304 386,339 - - - - 439,072
BN REMER Advances and other accounts 47,159,099 45,377,082 70,479,469 692,972 39,198 6,024 149,855 163,903,699
FERE Investment in securities
- ARNEES - Available-for-sale securities 18,630,828 5,063,554 11,506,285 1,288,052 - 328,143 5,658,478 42,475,340
-RAZYHRES ~ Held-to-maturity securities 2,374,940 - - - - - 3450 2,618,390
- ERRENT - Loans and receivables 2,074,594 - - - - - - 2,074,5%
RENE Investment properties 22,150 - 1,258,121 - - - - 128021
VERE TN Properties, plant and equipment 749,352 2,349 6,576,796 - - - - 7328497
EftEE (BEETREELE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 383,240 8,160 771,987 n 8 1 2,148 1,165,615
BELE Total assets 130,417,708 55,241,959 108,167,992 2,812,614 219,152 841,349 6,143,479 303,904,253
& Liabilities
KR SREE L Deposits and balances from banks and
EakEs other financial institutions 27383278 8,127,490 962,567 2,631 5,388 7837 1,246,420 37,735,611
NFHER( AR Financial liabilites at fair value through
LRAR profit or loss - - 4,970,693 - - - - 4,970,693
TELRIEA Derivative financial instruments 104,275 40,231 134,000 - - - - 278,506
REER Deposits from customers 71,779,386 38,596,971 91,755,578 2,890,697 203,270 743193 3,664,840 209,633,935
EfEERER (25 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERfERELFEAR) current and deferred tax liabilites) 12,005,185 1,249,882 2,906,653 79,319 65,738 1910 81,977 16,390,664
SRS Total liabilities 111,272,124 48,014,574 100,729,491 2,972,647 274,396 752,940 4,993,237 269,009,409
EEAEFETHE Net on-balance sheet position 19,145,584 7,27,385 7438501  (160,033) 4,756 88,409 1,150,242 34,894,844
FIEEBERTFE 0ff-balance sheet net notional position* (11,131,241)  (6,861,852) 19,219,651 172,949 @371) (87,995 (1,120512) 188,629
AR ERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 63,550,780 29,571,235 19,307,558 404,777 72,017 7,968 - 112,914,335
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4. cRERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.2 WA (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SIEREfE (&) (B)  Currency risk (Cont'd)
158
The Group
2013
AE it
ARE e BT BIE  Japanese Pound -t st
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AETT  AMTr  A¥Tn  BETn  A%Tr  BETrn BETn EETn
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BE Assets
EEREREHBRTR Cash and balances with banks and
e plEnss other financial institutions 37,805965 3302233 3,031,355 287,594 76,650 43,356 102,166 44,739,319
ERTRE S RlE Placements with banks and other financial
—EtZEAREY institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months 2049738 846,672 - = - - - 21,344,000
NFES G NERY Financial assets at fair value through
SHAE profit or loss - 498657 3,666,036 - - - - 4,164,693
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 95,469 15,990 396,994 - - - - 508,453
EFRAMES Advances and other accounts 46,507,717 43888535 64276248 391,263 34,633 11410 206945 155,316,751
BHRE Investment in securities
- AR ERS - Avalable-for-sale securities 14477805 6151826 11,191,446 780,426 = - 7401134 40,002,637
-HERIBRES - Held-to-maturity securities 585,144 - 298 - = - - 585442
- B RN - Loans and receivables 833,378 850,686 - - = - - 1,684,064
Rams Investment properties 48,428 - 1126510 - - - - 1174938
VERENEN Properties, plant and equipment 777,210 3467 6,188,500 - - - - 6969237
EfEE (AEEEHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 309,581 49,808 3,532,919 399 7 6 1706 3,894,426
EE4E Total assets 122,028,085 55,607,874 93410306 1,459,682 111,290 54772 7,711,951 280,383,960
£ Liabilities
RIREMERERS Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 17,115,003 9,846,139 1,340,154 72,617 4195 3290 464,611 28,846,029
NFERGAERL Financial liabilties at fair value through
SRBE profit or loss - - 4433736 = - - - 4433736
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 92,363 59,342 191,451 - - - - 343,156
BPHA Deposits from customers 8,735,748 30,587,345 75681800 2254533 211583 922,912 5766494 198,160417
EEERER (25 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERERELRERE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 10488966 1026354 4,607,189 57,944 3),756 1,391 86,033 16,300,633
SREE Total liabilities 110432,100 41,519,180 86,254,332 2,385,094 248534 927593 6,317,138 248,083,971
BERRRETIE Net on-balance sheet position 11595985 14,088,694  7,155974  (925412)  (137,244)  (872,821)  1,394813 32,299,989
FIEEBRERTEE 0ff-balance sheet net notional position* (4137,873) (12,082,047) 15842217 929,725 138070 873190 (1,347.921) 215,361
FRBERRE Contingent liabilities and commitments 58,871,700 30,613919 20,015,614 566,451 54,213 8,978 15232 110,146,116
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4. SEERERE W@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
42 TiERAR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SIEREfE (&) (B)  Currency risk (Cont'd)
AT
The Bank
2014
AE it
AR N B BE  Japanese Pound Efy @
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
BT EETn BMTn BT B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ Assets
BB RERBIR Cash and balances with banks and
EheBgRnEs other financial institutions 16,143,673 1,970,310 10,838411 710845 215837 459,018 53,447 30,391,541
ERTREMS RkE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+-fIRREE institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months - 145,422 - - - - - 145,422
INTE -G IN =z Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss - 255919 5,899,294 - - - - 6155213
TEERIEA Derivative financial instruments - 16,425 386,339 - - - - 402,764
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 1,958,855 36,046,955 67,475,695 688,976 39,198 6,024 149,855 106,365,558
EHRE Investment in securities
- A EES - Available-for-sale securities 10,999,925 5,063,554 11,506,285 1,288,052 - 328,143 5,658,478 34,844,437
-REZIHAES - Held-to-maturity securities - - - - - - U340 243,450
Ve - Loans and receivables 2,074,594 - - - - - - 2,0745%
RENBAR Investment in subsidaries 3,030,038 - 5,141,029 - - - - 8,171,007
RENE Investment properties - - 1,258,121 - - - - 1,258,121
VERESINE Properties, plant and equipment - 2349 6,576,79 - - - - 6,579,145
AfhdeE Other assets 5,301 4,143 770949 2 5 1 2147 782548
EEfE Total assets 34,212,386 43,505,077 109,852,919 2,687,875 255,040 793,186 6,107,377 197,413,860
B Liabilities
FOREMSRIEZ Deposits and balances from banks and
ERREH other financial institutions 3,919,899 4,063,439 1,029,794 18,166 38,733 25795 1,273,543 10,369,369
NEERGTARRZ Financial liabilites at fair value through
SRR profit or loss - - 4,970,693 - - - - 4,970,693
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 33,394 134,000 - - - - 167,394
RERH Deposits from customers 20,825936 30,211,854  87,735231 2,684,191 180,081 677,746 3,555,588 145,870,627
EMERERERS (A1 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERTERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilties) 10,675 478337 2,874,792 6,251 37,161 1,842 76525 3,585,583
BEEE Total liabilities 24,856,510 34,787,024 96,744,510 2,708,608 255,975 705,383 4,905,656 164,963,666
EEBERETHE Net on-balance sheet position 9,355,876 8,718,053 13,108,409 (20,733) (935) 87,803 1,201,721 32,450,194
RINEEBEATFE" 0ff-balance sheet net notional position* (6,147,33) (8,463,514 16,020,834 33,550 3,328 (87,995 (1,171,170) 187,800
FhE B RAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 8882 15104193 18,567,782 267,386 19,062 - - 33,967,305
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERER @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.2 TEER (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SIEREfE (&) (B)  Currency risk (Cont'd)
57
The Bank
2013
RE it
ARE e BT BIE  Japanese Pound Hih st
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AT A¥Tn BBt A%Tr  AEfr  BETr B¥Tn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gE Assets
ERRERERBIR Cash and balances with banks and
HfREREaN AL other financial institutions 13761499 2100851 2594300 235431 47,250 17418 83,585 18,840,334
ERTREMSRIEE Placements with banks and other financial
—EtZEARE institutions maturing between one and
EHEN twelve months - 1,858262 - - - - - 1,858,262
INTEL N v Financial assets at fair value through
SHAE profit or loss - 498657 3,666,036 = - - - 4164693
fEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 13,440 396,994 - - - - 410434
EIRENER Advances and other accounts 2,395,627 33962136 61,418,574 344,292 34,633 11,410 206945 98,373,617
FERE Investment in securities
- EES - Available-for-sale securities 9192,784 6,151,826 11,191,446 780,426 - - 7401134 34,717,616
- RAZYHEES ~ Held-to-maturity securities - - 298 - - - - 298
- B RENT - Loans and receivables 833,378 850,686 - - - - - 1,684,064
RENBAR Investment in subsidiaries 3,030,038 - 5,141,009 - - - - 8171067
RENE Investment properties = - 1126510 - - - - 1126510
VEREIWEL Properties, plant and equipment - 3467 6,188,500 - - - - 619197
EtEE Other assets 550 2859 3,526,912 399 7 6 1,706 3,532,439
EElE Total assets 29213876 45442184 95,250,599 1,360,548 81,890 28,834 7,693,370 179,071,301
& Liabilities
RIREMERERES Deposits and balances from banks and
BR ks other financial institutions 2,140,690 3,358,178 1,399,295 100,521 7,539 1,822 474246 7,488,291
NFER( AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRAR profit or loss - - 4433736 - - - - 4433736
TEERTEA Derivative financial instruments - 56,863 191,451 - - - - 248314
BPRH Deposits from customers 25779819 24834671 72183662 2101770 181,948 893395 5749321 131,724,586
AR RER (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERTERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilties) 108830 457,151 4,555,742 8,242 29,666 1,301 81237 5,242,169
Lt Total liabilities 28,029,339 28,706,863 82,763,886 2,210,533 219,153 902,518 6,304,804 149,137,096
BEBERETAE Net on-balance sheet position 1184537 16735321 12,486,713 (849.985)  (137.263)  (873,684) 1388566 29,934,205
RIVEEREETHE 0ff-balance sheet net notional position* 1655076 (14,852,193) 12,889,029 854,243 138070 873190 (1,342,053 215,362
SRBERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 259,936 10,495,869 19,684,741 183,512 24,371 1,015 699 30,650,143
* RINEEBBERTHERINETESRMTANBRBEFE - IMNEST o Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional

EERTATZAMRMEREERART 2 ERESH M

www.ncbh.com.hk

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments, which

are principally used to reduce the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure

to currency movements.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont’'d)
(Q) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and
economic value arising from adverse movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability
positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from
structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing
periods of assets and liabilities that may affect net
interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different
transactions resulting that the yield on assets and
cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve
that may have an adverse impact on net interest
income or economic value;

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in
assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet items that
can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and
liabilities.

The Group's risk management framework also applies to
interest rate risk management. The Asset and Liability
Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest
rate risk in accordance with “Banking Book Interest Rate
Risk Management Policy” approved by Risk Management
Committee. Financial Management Division is responsible for
interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the
Treasury Division, Financial Management Division assists the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-
to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
are not limited to, the formulation of management policies,
selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and
limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of
interest rate risk management reports to the Management
and Risk Management Committee, etc.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont’d)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits
to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate risk.
The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis
point (“PVBP"), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII"),
economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV"”), etc. The indicators
and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved
by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Deputy General Manager of
Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business units are
required to conduct their business within the boundary of
the interest rate risk limits. Before launching a new product
or business in the banking book, the relevant departments
are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and
consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted
during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk
Management Committee for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on
the Group’s net interest income and capital base. They are
the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest
income as a percentage to the projected net interest income
for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate
movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of
cash flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items
discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage to the
latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control
the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analysis and stress tests to assess
the banking book interest rate risk that the Group would face
under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress
tests are also devised to assess the impact on net interest
income and economic value arising from the optionality
of demand and savings deposits and the prepayment of
mortgage loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4.2 SRR ()
Q)  FFEmEE (&)

$%IIEEQ%E ETLRAREFERER - HZE20145F
12A318 BB ELERARBHNBEERHEFIT LR
100MEEEZ - HMEAETEBRT + HAEE RARITARK
12168 A 6 F I B RFEEOSURELRT ¢

M2A31BERR12BRFREUANE &
Impact on net interest income over the
next twelve months at 31 December

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont’'d)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group is principally exposed to HKD, USD and RMB in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2014, if HKD,
USD and RMB market interest rates had been 100 basis point
higher with other variables held constant, the sensitivities
on net interest income over the next twelve months and
on reserves for the Group and the Bank would have been
as follows:

RI2A3MBHRENTE
Impact on reserves
at 31 December

LS KB LS REAT
The Group The Bank The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

BT BETT B¥Tn ABTr BTz BETr B¥Tr AETx

HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

B HK Dollar 256,299 232,271 216,891 198455  (46,786) (53,388) (46,786) (53,388)
e US Dollar (32,688)  (30,024) (49,851) (35,681) (60,416) (100,832) (60,416) (100,832)
ARH Renminbi (13,535)  (12,059) (92,021) (74,957) (324,817) (263,101) (163,634) (154,352)

A FEEBEEERERFN WA EEZEER2013F L7
FEANBTHEHESISROER - FAR - BERRKE
R TWREHARTE CBI100EEE - BtaHHEESK

BHASHRMETRE  <AEERFERD - ERDEE
BR0134F 4800 - TEHMEMARBIRMAIHEEESRE

HEHRE -

g REFEERKBRE  EheE (ETRR) T3
BR& - WHEBE ”%EDE’]*EF@\E AME - FIRFITRE - K5
RRBENXERATERRNERERRITE  ShEHNE
MIE - Fﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘].fr HAHARLE  BERBFIERESHNE
AIEREZEREFLAINHA ZEMHBIERR - LAt EERK
FRSGAEHEBRMNERABRN—FD °
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The overall positive impact on Group's net interest income
of the above currencies has increased when compared with
2013 and is mainly because of the widened short term
positive gaps in HKD. Reserves would have been reduced
because of the expected reduction in valuation of available-
for-sale portfolio due to a parallel shift up of 100 basis point
in the yield curve (simulated scenario). The reduction of
reserves is increased compared with 2013 because the size
of Renminbi available-for-sale portfolio is increased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based
on several assumptions, including (but not limited to) the
change in the correlation between interest rates of relevant
currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence
of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedging accounting,
all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural
assumptions of products in which actual repricing date
differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part
of the Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4.2 TSR ()
(©  FFEmEE (&)

TRB T AEBRARITRI2A31B 2 EEBBERANF
KERAYE RANEEEIIREERAE  YRANER
BXRBHRIEE (UREERE) DFE -

B RS R T AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont’d)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk as at 31
December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

150
The Group
2014
-BAR -Z=fF =Zt=fA -BRE RENE iR
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over Non-interest @3t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BRI BT BT BETR BT BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Assets
EFREREHFTR Cash and balances with banks and
e RisEnER other financial institutions 54,183,243 - - - - 4,099,557 58,282,800
ERTREMEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—ZT-{@AR3H institutions maturing between one and
TR twelve months - 9,477,006 8,703,756 - - - 18,180,762
NTER G ABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 255,919 - - 6155213
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 439,072 439,072
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 108,282,638 31,356,774 20,553,491 3,451,440 259,356 - 163,903,699
EHEE Investment in securities
— AR EES - Available-for-sale securities 2,375913 10,487,111 12,504,107 16,466,480 565,963 75,766 42,475,340
-HERHHRES - Held-to-maturity securities - - - 1,998,756 619,634 - 2,618,390
- EFRENR — Loans and receivables - 620,262 1,454,332 - - - 2,074,59%
RENZE Investment properties - - - - - 1,280271 1,280,271
¥ BN RRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 1328497 7,328,497
EthEE (AFEETHBEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 2,208 - - - - 1,163,407 1,165,615
EEAE Total assets 165,314,002 54,613,046 45,973,087 22,172,595 1,444,953 14,386,570 303,904,253
af Liabilities
BOREMERERE Deposits and balances from banks and
TR other financial institutions 18,391,118 9,332,830 8,050,874 - - 1,960,789 37,735,611
AFEZ{ G ARRY Financial liabilities at fair value through
¢REE profit or loss 1,978,491 873945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 278,506 278,506
REHER Deposits from customers 122,791,320 36,089,981 32,061,913 9,455,287 - 9235434 209,633,935
EtEERER (BE Other accounts and provisions (including
ENTERELHRAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 5111,293 2,685,535 4,055,058 194,043 736 4343999 16,390,664
aESE Total liabilities 148,272,222 48,982,291 46,286,102 9,649,330 736 15,818,728 269,009,409
FRGRERD Interest sensitivity gap 17,041,780 5,630,755 (313,015) 12,523,265 1,444,217 (1,432,158) 34,894,844

www.ncb.com.hk
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4. THERERE &)

4.2

miZEE (&)
(©  FFEmEE (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2

Market Risk (Cont’d)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

S
The Group
2013
—f@AR —ZE=ff =Et+=fA —E1fF RENE Tt
Up to 1103 3012 1105 Over  Non-interest &
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AETT A% BETT ARt AN BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Assets
EEREREHETR Cash and balances with banks and
it RBENES other financial institutions 43,239,550 - - - - 1,499,769 44,739,319
EFTREEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—2+-fARREIE institutions maturing between one and
EHRH twelve months - 10,324,490 11,019,510 - - - 21,344,000
AEES( G ARRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 296,487 704,859 2,901,993 261,354 - - 4.164,693
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 508,453 508,453
ENRAMER Advances and other accounts 95,905,202 24,502,236 29,683,287 5,037,156 183,445 5425 155,316,751
ERHE Investment in securities
- AHILHERS - Available-for-sale securities 4,121,084 7615224 10,198263 16,543,097 1,461,004 63,965 40,002,637
~BEZEHAES ~ Held-to-maturity securities 298 - 585,144 - = - 585,442
- EFRENH — Loans and receivables 105,185 661,988 916,891 - = - 1,684,064
REME Investment properties - - - - - 1174938 1,174.938
¥ EWRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6969237 6,969,237
EthEE (AFEETHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 770 - - - - 3893656 3,894,426
EENE Total assets 143,668 576 43,808,797 55,305,088 21,841,607 1,644,449 14,115,443 280,383,960
8% Liabilities
FIREMEREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
BHREH other financial institutions 15176539 3306414 8778777 - - 1584299 28,846,029
NFERGABRLZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRER profit or loss 701,490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 343,156 343,156
EFREH Deposits from customers 111,858,553 29,530,001  38,41049% 9,873,053 39,057 8,449,257 198,160,417
EMERARER (REEAHE  Other accounts and provisions (including current
LETHEEE) and deferred tax liabilities) 2,966,037 2,588,722 4,105,753 397,216 - 6,242,905 16,300,633
aESE Total liabilities 130,702,619 37,152,429 53,299,980 10,270,269 39,057 16,619,617 248,083,971
HMEGREHD Interest sensitivity gap 12,965,957 6656368 2,005,108 11,571,338  1,605392  (2,504,174) 32,299,989

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

www.ncbh.com.hk



B RS R T AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERERE W@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
42 TiERAR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
Q)  FIERERE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
TR
The Bank
2014
-BAR -Z=fF =Zt=fA -BRE RENE TR
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over Non-interest &3t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BRI BT BT BETR BT BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFREREHFTR Cash and balances with banks and
Afp s @RGSR other financial institutions 26,479,443 - - - - 3912098 30391541
ERTREME R Placements with banks and other financial
-2+ -EAREIEZ institutions maturing between one and
EHER twelve months - 145,422 - - - - 145,422
NV G N -tV Financial assets at fair value through
SRHAE profit or loss 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 255,919 - - 6155213
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 402,764 402,764
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 81223872 17,897,620 4,938,514 2,292,605 12,947 - 106,365,558
FERE Investment in securities
— AR EES - Available-for-sale securities 2,375,913 10,345,533 10,974,586 11,072,639 - 75,766 34,844,437
- BARESAES - Held-to-maturity securities - - - 243,450 - - 243,450
- EFRENH — Loans and receivables - 620,262 1,454,332 - - - 2,074,59%
U Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,171,067 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 1258121 1,258,121
VERE TN ET Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6,579,145 6,579,145
HitBE Qther assets - - - - - 782,548 782,548
EELE Total assets 110,549,228 31,680,730 20,124,833 13,864,613 12,947 21,181,509 197,413,860
8 Liabilities
ROREEREEL Deposits and balances of banks and
Bk other financial institutions 6,243,974 1,004,267 1026373 - - 2,054,755 10,369,369
AFEE(EHABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRAR profit or loss 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 167,394 167,394
EPER Deposits from customers 96,034,199 27,388,448 12,186,968 1,019,829 - 9,241,183 145,870,627
EfbFE R (A1 Other accounts and provisions (including
EfHBERELHESR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 450,549 - - - - 3135034 3,585,583
afEAE Total liabilities 104,707,213 29,306,660 15,331,598 1,019,829 - 14,598,366 164,963,666
FRGRERD Interest sensitivity gap 5,842,015 2,374,070 4,793,235 12,844,784 12,947 6,583,143 32,450,194

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4.2 SRR ()

Q)  FFEmEE (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont’'d)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

RRAT
The Bank
2013
—f@AR —ZE=ff =Zf+=fA —E1F RENE FHE
Upto 1103 3012 1105 Over  Non-interest @it
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BB Vit e BETTL BB BETT BETTL Vit Ry
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Assets
EEREREHETR Cash and balances with banks and
Eth e REEN LR other financial institutions 17,632,879 - - - - 1,207,455 18,840,334
EFTREEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—2+-fARREIE institutions maturing between one and
EBEM twelve months - 1527931 330,331 - - - 1,858,262
AHEE(TABEZ Financial assets at fair value through
SRAE profit or loss 296,487 704,859 2,901,993 261,354 - - 4.164,693
TELRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 410,434 410,434
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 75,387,024 13,990,291 7,150,346 1,834,237 6,284 5435 98,373,617
ERlE Investment in securities
- HERS - Available-for-sale securities 4121084 7562793 9,824,754 11,684,016 1,461,004 63,965 34,717,616
- HEEIBRES ~ Held-to-maturity securities 298 = = = = = 298
- EF RN ~ Loans and receivables 105,185 661,988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
RAMBEAR Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,171,067  8171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 1,126,510 1,126,510
mE - ERERE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 619197 6,191,967
EhEE Other assets - - - - - 3532439 3,532,439
EESE Total assets 97,542,957  24,447.862 21124315 13,779,607 1,467,288 20,709,272 179,071,301
8 Liabilities
RREMEREE L Deposits and balances of banks and
ERkEs other financial institutions 4,198,955 561,061 1,096,468 - - 1,631,807 7,488,291
ATHEE( T ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRER profit or loss 701,490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 248,314 248 314
2FER Deposits from customers 86849459  18,627.211 16,800,148 993,900 - 8453868 131,724,586
HBBERER (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ETERETHERE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 438,109 - - - - 4804060 5,242,169
aELE Total liabilities 92,188,013 20,915,564 19,901,570 993,900 - 15,138,049 149,137,096
HEREERD Interest sensitiity gap 5354944 3532298 1,222,745 12785707 1,467,088 557123 29,934,205
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient
funds to grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to
bear an unacceptable loss. The Group follows sound liquidity
risk appetite, to provide stable, reliable and adequate
sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without
requesting HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to
effectively manage the liquidity of on- and off-balance
sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity
risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Customer deposits are the Group’s primary
source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of
funds are in place, the Group actively attracts new deposits,
keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary funding
from the interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure
(including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement,
etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to
serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and
liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the
break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established
intragroup liquidity risk management guideline to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each
other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity
risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has overall liquidity
risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management
of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collaterals, intra-
day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising
from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding
contingency plan.

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

145



146

BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

43 RBESEMR (&)

EREEZEGRADECRRELRRKE  YHRBE
CRBAESKEREML RREEZEGEREEERRBE
BEZEeERARNRPESAR ERAKENEHLE
HeaRRERZESRENRDE SRR KT MBERRTE -
PBEERTEAEBRDECRAREE  ERESRA
B RESENRED IR EERGEEEZEGETAR
KRB E & EERIAE -

AEERERDECRBREEMRE - &0 ARZR - &
B ERNZESRBESRR  BRETRRRBLE &
LR - RRZFARERE  ARADUEEFTEEMAES -
AEBRARSREDMAFEREBERERTER THRE
B YRIBAETRADESRBRENAR (BEA
BEEK MHEERBAREHEE) FHEEEERE
BERBESBHINES ARETEYLTEEREEER
7o REBEBEIBDREFREERRK - UEBHRDES
[\ o

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

Risk Management Committee is the decision-making
authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes the
ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by Risk Management Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group
are in accordance with risk appetite and policies as set
by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management
Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity
risk. It cooperates with the Treasury Division to assist the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform
liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators
and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity
risk on daily basis. Such indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQ") and liquidity buffer asset
portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess
the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions
and also performs liquidity stress test (including institution
specific crisis, general market crisis and combined crisis) at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, Assets and
Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data
and generate regular management reports facilitating the
liquidity risk management duties.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy
Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the
Group has implemented in 2013 the refinements on the
behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis
and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow
analysis under normal circumstances, refinements have
been made to assumptions relating to on-balance sheet
items (such as customer deposits) and off-balance sheet
items (such as loan commitments). According to various
characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer
behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based
on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has
sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap
in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation.
As at 31 December 2014, before taking the cash inflow
through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into
consideration, the Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was
a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$4,424,474,000 (2013:
HK$4,658,471,000), and was in compliant with the internal
limit requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

ERSESRBEESP  R2013FHME T EHES @ & In liquidity stress test, a new combined scenario which is a

SEEERETZEHK WA -—EFRENBRSR - U combination of institution specific and general market crisis
REERERENTREE S BEIBER TREERE ] o BOA has been set up in 2013 to assess the Group's capability
HOBREETEENR  MWBEGERRRAEFTRZRLE - & to withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more

ARG REE S HBA A B 2 IRIE - B A A & stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
ﬁf% CRAEFREREEBESFOITNEE - K2014F128 assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and

318 - AEBEN E=BENIER FEREEFEREM - & interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments
TAREEFHNENBAERTORMESTE © I - A&H and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio
MNERBRRERERRBESEDT  EREENREERE and rollover rate of customer loan; and haircut of interbank

ZEEEEFSFAHESER  RRIRTT - REEMNZE placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December
BRBITBITHER - MEARREER0%K20% © NP 2014, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
ERAMAMEERA-SA E (nEINBEARTA - BIEE ER under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group
AEERFR) BIFCREEBRTRERNEEERS - UiE has the ability to meet financing needs under stressed
REMLEEBRNBERATHESF K - B2014F12H318 - conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place
REE S EE (FiAT) A75%20,399,765,0007T ° fEEZET to maintain an asset buffer portfolio which includes high
%JAF’%LF?@JE RIEME - FARBEE D AR ERINTEERZ quality or comparable quality marketable securities issued
R WEF TAERAITENETE] C BF AR S HFINBE o or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20%
risk weight or non-financial corporate issued or guaranteed
marketable securities with a corresponding external credit
rating of A- or above (adopt corresponding internal rating if
external credit rating is unavailable) to ensure funding needs
even under stressed scenarios, as at 31 December 2014, the
liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$20,399,765,000.
A contingency funding plan is established which details the
conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test results
and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant

procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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BITEFERREER  WEHARAEEEEEER -

(A)  FBEERE

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

In certain derivative contracts, counterparties have the right
to request the Group for additional collateral if they have
credit concerns on the Group's creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new
product or business development. Before launching a new
product or business, the relevant departments are required
to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of
the adequacy of the current risk management mechanism.
Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to Risk Management
Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk
management policies. The principal banking subsidiary
develops its own liquidity management policies according
to its own characteristics, assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk
management processes independently, and reports to the

Group’s Management on a regular basis.

(A) Liquidity ratio

2014 2013
FHRENE & Average liquidity ratio 51.99% 47.80%
FHRBE S ERURBITFANEATERBES XD The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average

BEFHEFHE -

RBEL L ERERE <<§Eﬁ%ﬂﬂ§u>> FMIZR PO K LA BE B ELE (B
AEEEENRER) ;T &

www.ncbh.com.hk

of each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio of Bank for
the year.

The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong
Kong offices only) and is in accordance with the Fourth
Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

43 RBESEMR (&)

(B)  EFRAZH

TRAREERABITRIZANBZEERBENTEAE S
i BRNEERE  BERABHEESHOIHAORRAR

DR o

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Bank'’s assets
and liabilities as at 31 December into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet

date to the contractual maturity date.

548
The Group
2014
AR -E=fR =2T=fiA -285f  BENL
ik Up to 1t03 Jto 12 1to5 Over5 7TREAH @it
Ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BeTn  AMTn  A¥TR  B¥Tn B8Tn BETn BMTn BETn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEESRERBTR Cash and balances with banks and
e alEnES other financial institutions 25,068,696 21,881,782 - - - - 11332322 58,282,800
EROREMERIEE Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZERME institutions maturing between one and
TEEN twelve months - - 9477006 8703756 - - - 18,180,762
ATHER i ABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit o loss
-5k - held for trading
- BRES - debt securities - 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 - - - 5,899,294
- REANATERL - esignated at fair value through
HAER profit or loss
- ERER - debt securities - - - 2170 253,749 - - 255,919
ESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 352,831 18,163 18,247 46,452 3379 - - 439,072
EHREMER Advances and other accounts
- RFEH - advances to customers 5,600,078 9,742,952 16,597,492 36,208,391 52,393,120 26,179,173 810,930 147,532,136
-85%5 - trade bills 32219 4,961,240 7500572 3,877,532 - - - 16,371,563
BRRE Investment in securities
- MiHHE - available-for-sale
-FRE - certificates of deposit - 7704 1,121,059 5071150 1,633,772 - - 7,897,685
- BHES - debt securities - 1,282,624 6181988 8,984,351 17486963 565,963 - 34,501,889
- FHE254A - held-to-maturity
- BhES - debt securities - - 1415 644 1996697 619,634 - 2,618,390
- ER e - loans and receivables
- BHES - debt securities - - 620262 1454332 - - - 207459
-khEH - equity securities - - - - - - 75,766 75,766
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1,280271 1,280,271
nE - EMRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 1328497 1,328,497
EWAE (BEETHELE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 185402 779942 3,02 47394 139,09 4 10,535 1,165,615
BESE Total assets 31,239,226 39,208,407 44,193,136 67,153,573 73,906,774 27,364,816 20,838,321 303,904,253
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4. THERERE &)

B RS R T AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B)  EE AR (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
5E
The Group
2014
-EARm -EZfif ZEt-@R -EIf  EfUL
{k:d Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over5 FREAH @i
On demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BETr  AMTn  A¥TR  B¥Tn  B¥Tn BMTn BMTR BETR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
g Liabilities
RITREMEREES Deposits and balances from banks and
TR RbR other financial institutions 2649041 17,702,866 9332830 8,050,874 - - - 31,735,610
INTELL PN 5avd Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRAR profit or loss - 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments 98,057 86,204 30223 32,269 31,753 - - 278,506
ZEGS Deposits from customers 75,443,820 54,407,895 35397115 34,231,783 10,153,322 - - 209,633,935
HthRBRER (25 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERFBRETHERE) current and deferred tax liabilties) 4834808 3,156,033 2,893,494 4333573 1,171,922 794 - 16,390,664
BEEE Total liabilities 83,025,766 77,331,480 48,527,607 48,766,756 11,356,997 794 - 269,009,409
itk Net liquidity gap (51,786,540) (38,123,082)  (4,334,471) 18,386,817 62,549,777 27,364,022 20,838,321 34,894,844

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B)  EE AR (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
15E
The Group
2013
08 @AM -Z=f@R ZET-@A -ERfF  EfUE
On Upto1 103 31012 105 Over5 THRERH )
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AETT  AETr  AETn BBt BBTn  BETr  BEfr BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFRERERETR Cash and balances with banks and
EfpeRisEn SR other financial institutions 19,625,303 12,929,170 - - - - 12184846 44,739,319
ERTREN SRR Placements with banks and other financial
—ET-[EAREE2 institutions maturing between one and
R twelve months - - 10324490 11,019,510 - - - 21,344,000
NFEE G NER Y Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-5 - held for trading
- EhES - debt securities - 29487 704859 2,664,066 624 - - 366603
- REANATEE( - esignated at fair value through
TABR profit or loss
- BHES - Gebt securites - - - 240097 258560 - - 498657
TEERIEA Derivative financial instruments 345,025 55,479 16,455 90,390 1,104 - - 508,453
ERRENER Advances and other accounts
-RFER - advances to customers 5317238 8,893,638 12414991 39468912 46,982,868 28,731,200 265,268 142,074,115
-85%5 - trade bills 1078 2482327 4693586 6,065,645 - - - 13,242,636
EARE Investment in securities
ki - available-for-sale
-FaE - certificates of deposit - 6,064 899,663 6,044,492 726,666 - - 7,676,885
- ERES - debt securities - 2482919 2569203 5167277 20,598,317 1,444,071 - 32,261,781
-FHE23HH - held-to-maturity
- EfES - debt securities - - - 585,144 298 - - 5854k
- R RN - loans and receivables
- BfER - debt securities - 105185 661,988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
- REH ~ equity securities = - = - = - 63,965 63,965
RENE Investment properties = - - - - - 1074938 1174938
0% BHERE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6969237 6,969,237
EfBE (RAEERBEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 152,748 3,519,657 13,437 90,958 76,003 380 41243 3,894,426
BESE Total assets 25441392 30,770,926 32,298,672 72,353,382  68,644440 30,175,651 20,699,497 280,383,960
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4. THERERE &)

43 RBESEMR (&)
(B) EFERAZH (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

A%E
The Group
2013
8 @AM —2=ff =E+=fiA —2R%  RENE
On Upto1 103 31012 105 Over5 THRERH )
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BTr  RETn  B%Tr  BEfr BT BT BETn B¥Tr
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
PR RlE Deposits and balances from banks and
FEEylEcT other financial nstitutions 2303726 14457112 3306414 8778777 - - - 28,346,029
INTE LG IN =2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHARE profit or loss - 701490 172709 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 94,553 85,390 34,974 70,803 56,936 - - 343,156
BPHA Deposits from customers 72,061,365 45965432 29462615 38560815 11,871,133 39,057 - 198,160,417
EMEERER (BF Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHERETHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilties) 2,755,008 4962292 2901823 4361272 1309372 10,866 - 16,300,633
SREE Total liabilities 77414652 66,172,216 37433118 53,776,621 13,237,441 49,923 - 248,083,971
RBESHA Net liquidity gap (51,973,260) (35401,290) (5,134,446) 18,576,761 55,406,999 30,125,728 20,699,497 32,299,989

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. TRERERE (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B)  EE AR (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
RRAT
The Bank
2014
0% -ERR -%Z=fF =Z+-fF -%5f  EFNL
On  Uptot 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over5 FEERE Eh
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BETn  AMTn  A¥TR  BETn B8Tn BETn BMTR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BERERENHTR Cash and balances with banks and
EfpeRisEn SR other financial institutions 20,075,025 10,316,516 - - - - - 30,391,541
EFTREMERER Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZfAAM3IEL institutions maturing between one and
R twelve months - - U5 - - - - u5AR
NFEE A ER L Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-5 - held for trading
- EhER - debt securities - 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 - - - 5,899,294
- REANATERL - designated at fair value through
TABR profit or loss
- EHES - debt securites - - - 2170 253,749 - - 255919
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 351,637 13,166 12,983 24,710 268 - - 402,764
ERRENEE Advances and other accounts
-RFER - advances to customers 5551,541 5813882 10,058,854 18,632,217 42,676,748 15,792,018 601,695 99,126,955
-85%5 - trade bills 249 1,456,575 2,913,644 2,868,135 - - - 1,238,603
EARE Investment in securities
- AfhE - available-for-sale
- Tl - certificates of deposit - 7704 1121059 5071150 1,633,772 - - 7,897,685
- EEES - debt securities - 1,282,624 6,040,410 7,454,830 12,093,122 - - 26,870,986
- HEEHEA - held-to-maturity
- BhER - debt securities - - 1415 644 241391 - - 243450
- B RERR - loans and receivables
- BHES - Qebt securities - - 620262 1454332 - - - 207459
- REH - equity securities - - - - - - 75,766 75,766
REMELA Investment in subsidaries - - - - - - 8171067 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1,258,121 1,258,121
VERETIN T Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6579145 6,579,145
EthaE Other assets 19002 758,476 105 1,508 3 - 2944 782,548
EELE Total assets 25,997,544 20,182,943 23,586,047 38,267,187 56,899,383 15,792,018 16,688,738 197,413,860
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4. THERERE &)

43 RBESEMR (&)
(B) EFERAZH (&)

B RS R T AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

RRAT
The Bank
2014
0%  -@ERR -%2=fF =Zt+=fER -EEf  BENL
On Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over5 TEERH &3t
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BETn  AMTn  A¥TR  BETn B8Tn BETn BMTR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
SOREMERIEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FaRis other financial institutions 2,852,772 5445958 1,044,267 1,026,372 - - - 10,369,369
INTE LG IN =z Financial liabilities at fair value through
SBBE profit or loss - 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments 97,061 18,375 8,571 14,267 29,120 - - 167,394
RFEH Deposits from customers 57,795,082 46,836,801 27,078,634 13140275 1,019,835 - - 145,870,627
AfEEREE (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHERETHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1,601,932 142,322 95,001 177,917 968,411 - - 3,585,583
ffE8E Total liabilities 62,346,847 55,021,947 29,100,418 16,477,088 2,017,366 - - 164,963,666
REEELHD Net liquidity gap (36,349,303) (34,839,004)  (5514,371) 21,790,099 54,882,017 15,792,018 16,688,738 32,450,194

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B)  EE AR (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
X6
The Bank
2013
08 @AM -Z=f@R ZET-@A -ERfF  EfUE
On Upto1 103 31012 105 Over5 THRERH )
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AETT  AETr  AETn BBt BBTn  BETr  BEfr BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
EFRERENETR Cash and balances with banks and
HEpepEmns other financial institutions 15,427,036 3413,298 - - - - - 18840334
ERREMSREE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+ZHARZE institutions maturing between one and
THFH twelve months - - 1,527,931 330,331 - - - 1,858,262
NEERGARRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-5 - held for trading
- EEESR - debt securities - 296,437 704,859 2,664,066 624 - - 3,606,036
- REANATER - designated at fair value through
TABR profit or loss
- &fES - Gebt securities - - - 240097 258560 - - 498657
EERIA Derivative financial instruments 345,025 4713 2712 20,638 346 - - 40434
ERRELER Advances and other accounts
-RFER - advances to customers 4796737 7448303 7460242 15953432 37,099,624 16,047,873 109,387 88,915,598
-85%8 - trade bills 1078 1544684 3152502 4,759,755 - - - 9,458,019
FERE Investment in securities
- e - available-for-sale
-GaE - certificates of deposit - 6,064 899,663 6,044,492 726,666 - - 7,676,885
- EEES - debt securities - 2482919 2516773 4793767 15739236 1,444,071 - 26,976,766
R - held-to-maturity
- E#ES - debt securities - - - - 298 - - 298
- R REN - loans and receivables
- EHES - debt securiies - 105185 661988 916,891 = = - 1,684,064
- RiEH ~ equity securities = - = - = - 63,965 63,965
REWBAR Investment in subsidiaries = - = - = - 171,067 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1026510 1,126,510
VERETNET ] Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 619197 6,191,967
HftdE Other assets 17,129 3,482,064 845 2305 360 - 29736 3532439
BELE Total assets 20,587,005 18,820,717 16,927,515 35725774 53,825,714 17491944 15,692,632 179,071,301
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4. THERERE &)

43 RBESEMR (&)
(B) FHRAZH (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

A5
The Bank
2013
L —fAn  —Z=fEA =Z+=fR —Zhf  EfHE
On Upto1 103 31012 105 Over5 THRERH @
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
Agtn  Rbfr  B¥Tr  BTn  BMTr BBt BETn BETx
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
&% Liabilities
FIREG S RLE Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 2421609 3,409,153 561,061 1,096,468 = = - 7,488,291
NEERGIARRY Financial liabilties at fair value through
SRHARE profit or loss - 701490 1727292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 94,553 68,659 11,159 17,512 56,431 - - 28,314
LYSyeE Deposits from customers 57,481,019 37,739,386 18,559,824 16,950,467 993,890 = - 131,724,586
EMEBRER (AF Other accounts and provisions (including
ENHARETHARE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1,146,948 2,996,225 89,274 120,325 889,397 - - 5242169
SREE Total liabilities 61144129 44914913 20,948,610 20,189,726 1,939,718 - - 149,137,09
RBESHA Net liquidity gap (40,557,124) (26,094,196) (4,021,095 15,536,048 51,885,996 17,491,944 15,692,632 29,934,205

ERBBBE S BETIIERERTE (WE) RAD) 2B KX
A - AEEHBHTEEVEAZEE  HINES &ﬁ
BEZI A [EH] BE - HIRNRARREH D BEEZ

B REZEETERBH MO RGFERLY - Eﬁﬂﬂiéﬂﬁﬁ
ZRDNEERERGHARDIE  BERELZXEEZEER
BRE  AEZEHREYR [THEERA] - LSRR ZEE
EREMARRERE (F) -

RS AHEBE R 2 DM RER (RITE (WE) R
Q) 2 HEGRXMEEN - IERBEINKRIEERS A
E by

www.ncbh.com.hk

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in
accordance with relevant provisions under the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such as
advances and debt securities which have been overdue
In the
case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or

for not more than one month as “On demand”.
instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that
is not due is reported according to the residual maturity
unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case
the amount is reported as “Indefinite”
stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

. The above assets are

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to
maturity is disclosed in order to comply with relevant
provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to
maturity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4.3 RBESER (8)
Q) BEXNHHADHZATEREER

(a) FUTETAZEZR

TR T AEERARTRI2AN B ZIFTESRBEIA

RIREWEHRFIIRZRER °

4.3
Q)

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by

contractual maturities

Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group

and the Bank as at 31 December for non-derivative financial

liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.

rEE
The Group
2014
=z
—-fAm —-EZ=fER +=f8A —-Ehf BFLE
Upto1 1to3 3t0 12 1t05 Over 5 Eoh
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BRI BETR BETR BETR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tREE Financial liabilities
FIREMSREE Y Deposits and balances from banks and
EZ e S other financial institutions 20,388,137 9,396,895 8,182,134 - - 37,967,166
NEEELFABREZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
TREE profit o loss 1,978,500 874,000 2,119,000 - - 4,971,500
BERER Deposits from customers 129,885,722 35,519,941 34,833,788 11,008,039 - 211,247,490
HEemas Other financial liabilities 7,636,441 2,688,501 4,078,030 194,912 794 14,598,678
TRAEAE Total financial liabilities 159,888,800 48,479,337 49,212,952 11,202,951 794 268,784,834
REME
The Group
2013
=3
—f@AR —ZE=f@AR T=f@A —Enf RENE
Up to 1103 3t0 12 1105 Qver 5 @5t
1 month months months years years Total
BB BB BB BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tRER Financial liabilities
RIIRAMSEEE L Deposits and balances from banks and
EE e other financial institutions 16,778,992 3,341,129 8,942,010 - - 29,062,131
ATHER A ERL Financial liabilities at fair value through
2RER profit or loss 701,500 1,727,500 2,006,500 - - 4,435,500
EYSVEE Deposits from customers 118,257,428 29,568,037 39,248,181 13,029,817 51,735 200,155,198
A pas Other financial liabilities 7,599,320 2,657,072 4,241,374 411,167 10,867 14,919,800
SRARAE Total financial liabilities 143,337,240 37,293,738 54,438,065 13,440,984 62,602 248,572,629
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4. THERERE &)

4.3 RBESER (8)
Q) BENHHADHZATREEEZT (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(a) FTETAZH2 7w (B) (a) Non-derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
KERT
The Bank
2014
-z =z
—fEAR =fEA +=f8A —-Zhf BFLE
Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5 st
month months months years years Total
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tREE Financial liabilities
ROREMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 8,300,889 1,049,403 1,037,616 - - 10,387,908
AFERGABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
2RER profit or loss 1,978,500 874,000 2,119,000 - - 4,971,500
BPEH Deposits from customers 104,651,546 27,152,527 13,265,976 1,036,651 - 146,106,700
A emes Other financial liabilities 2,341,047 199 - - - 2,341,246
tREBLE Total financial liabilities 117,271,982 29,076,129 16,422,592 1,036,651 - 163,807,354
RRAT
The Bank
2013
- =%
—fEAA ={@A +=f@A —E0F AFENRE
Up to 1 1103 3t0 12 1105 Qver 5 EoH)
month months months years years Total
BB BB BB BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
BIREMSREE Deposits and balances from banks and
FRkER other financial institutions 5,831,713 563,102 1,097,739 - - 7,492,554
ATEE( GBS Financial liabilities at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 701,500 1,727,500 2,006,500 - - 4435500
BERER Deposits from customers 95,238,323 18,603,469 17,118,139 1,044,047 - 132,003,978
Hih$mak Other financial liabilities 4,141,243 2,006 427 = - 4,143,676
SRARAE Total financial liabilities 105,912,779 20,896,077 20,222,805 1,044,047 - 148,075,708

www.ncbh.com.hk

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

159



BA R AR MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERER @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) HEEHNIHHAS AT REE LR (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b)  TETAZHELT (b)  Derivative cash flows

NERELM T AL E RARITIN2A31BARIERE D2 H B3 The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group

TZBRER  BERFEEEFEZITECHMEE  RFIE and the Bank by remaining contractual maturities as at

REBFEEREZMESRIE (THEBSNBEERE 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will be

&) c RAAPTETEURATFEINRIN TREENHHME settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial

BHAARCHENERRER instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless

of whether the contract is in an asset or liability position.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which
are disclosed at fair value.

REFEIRFEEEEE 2 TECR T AEZTZRERNRE - The Group's derivative financial instruments that will be
MZRERELE VTSR T AT ZEREEBRARER settled on a net basis mainly include interest rate swaps
H] o whereas derivative financial instruments that will be settled

on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and
currency swaps.

rEE
The Group
2014
-z =2
—fBAR =f8A +={8A -Z5E BENE
Upto1 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over 5 o
month months months years years Total

BT  BETx  BMTR BETx  BETz B¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REREEEEY Derivative financial liabilities settled on
fiEepaRn a net basis (100,241) (9,011) (25,332) (15,614) - (150,198)
ROBEEEEY Derivative financial instruments settled on
fTESMTA a gross basis
BREA Total inflow 20,417,338 6,924,041 11,252,454 834,845 - 39,428,678
Pyt Total outflow (20,719,023)  (6,952,942) (11,370,225) (834,202) - (39,876,392)
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) HEEHNIHHAS AT REE LR (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(b) PTETAZHL T (&) (b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
KEE
The Group
2013
=z ==
—fEAR =f@A +=1@A —2hE AFNRE
Upto 1 1103 3t0 12 1105 Over 5 @it
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERALELEE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled on
TESRER a net basis (98,868) (15,176) (67,761) (30,561) - (212,366)
REmAEEE Derivative financial instruments settled on
TESRTE a gross basis
FEV N Total inflow 23,866,437 4,369,915 9,679,171 180,102 - 38,095,625
Febiotu Total outflow (23,897,683)  (4,397,226)  (9,657,460) (179,071) - (38,131,440)
BT
The Bank
2014
-z =z
—fEAR =f8R +=f8A -Z1fF BFLRE
Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5 Mt
month months months years years Total
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RFRRELE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled on
TESRER a net basis (97,317) (5,379) (13,815) (15,312) - (131,823)
REmLEEE Derivative financial instruments settled on
TESRTE a gross basis
FEV N Total inflow 12,429,030 4,586,773 7,147,431 71,472 - 24,240,706
i Total outflow (12,435,472)  (4,584,822) (7,194,230) (77,357) - (24,291,881)

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4.3 RBESER (8)
Q) BENHHADHZATREEEZT (&)

b) ITETAZEzwm (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)

KERTT
The Bank
2013
=z =5
—f@AR ={@A +={8A —ZRF RENE
Upto1 1103 31012 Tt05 Over 5 @5t
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERALELEE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled on
TESRER a net basis (94,591) (5,900) (26,400) (30,037) - (156,928)
RBBEELE Derivative financial instruments settled on
TESRTE a gross basis
BRA Total inflow 20,430,976 616,475 2,265,259 43,549 - 23,356,259
Fhinhu Total outflow (20,456,849) (625,212)  (2,253,894) (42,785) - (23,378,740)
(c) BEAEXIEE (c) Off-balance sheet items

E R E
BEAEERARITNR2014F12A31BREF A#HER
EERHEMBECRINGERMTE  HANSED R ABE
74,498,453,0007T (20134F : & %76,884,033,0007T) K&
#530,529,429,0007t (20134 : /& #26,338,710,0007T)
I EEFRE R —FRIE °

BIIS R R B TSR A

AEB R AREITN20145128318 2 H B ER R H b Bf
SR E £ 55 Bl A 75 #38,415,882,0007T (20134 : 7
33,262,083,0007T) & i #3,437,876,0007T (20134 :
#54,311,433,0007T) * HEEA DR —F o

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s and the Bank’s
off-balance sheet financial instruments as at 31 December
2014 that the Group and the Bank commit to extend
credit to customers and other
to HK$74,498,453,000 (2013: HK$76,884,033,000)
and HK$30,529,429,000 (2013: HK$26,338,710,000)
respectively. Those loan commitments can be drawn within

facilities amounted

one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2014 amounting
to HK$38,415,882,000 (2013: HK$33,262,083,000) and
HK$3,437,876,000 (2013: HK$4,311,433,000) respectively
are maturing no later than one year.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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ERERAIEE (THAR) FELHELRTRAREA
=5

A EEERAE (EBRERR) FHEEH ERIERR
ARER o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management

The major objective of the Group's capital management is
to maximise total shareholders’ return while maintaining a
capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall
risk profile. The Assets and Liability Management Committee
periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts
the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support
the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The Assets and Liability
Management Committee monitors the Group’s capital
adequacy. The Group has complied with all the statutory
capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods
in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-
based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital
charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures.
A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach. The Group has
adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA")
method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of
the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM")
approach to calculate the general market risk capital charge
for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with
the approvals of HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions
arising from overseas branches and NCB (China) in the
calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group
continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM")
approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for
remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational
risk) (“STO") approach to calculate the capital charge for
operational risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. THERERE &)

4.4 EBXREE ()

REER0V4FEBRAABEAR T REFUTEEE
REERRFMIEEEERF] ANER - REERHSE
“XHEMIES  AMBEAT R ERF EERATEES —
XHETRBEREREDBRENERRBAFNRIIER - #
MREAEEREEBRE-—RERLE  RE-RERL
ERBFEBEARLLE - A AEEERURETEARLE
EBIFRmMAE - MEARREBERRBYERERN - KBRS
AMEAFEHEREFE —EARENEAETEERE  YERF
F& 8 &) BB R AR TR iR R EEEANEE -

O AEEEEHEFEEARE  HEERBEEERE
EERRKIZBFTOME - EARBINEERE - BRREEK -
RRimELE - ERFR  EREREFZHEEFHHEATRNE
VB EMBRARREAFTRREARRR - NREEERE
HBRINEARRMERENEAHEE  EREEBER &
FrEkR - CRAERTE R KEFE -

(A) EEGSE#

EERTENGESERIRE (RITE (BX) RA) ARRTT
RERBOSERIEEZMBARMANX - £&FTRIESHE * 8
BREBV RS EARAMBRF -
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply with
the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2014. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to assess
the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not
captured or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and
therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio,
minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and the minimum Total capital
ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the
aforementioned capital ratios have also been established
which enable the flexibility for future business growth
and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group considers
this ICAAP process as an on-going process for capital
management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital
structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk
profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up
annually and then submitted to the Board for approval
after endorsement of the Assets and Liability Management
Committee. The plan is built up by assessing the implications
of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business
strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital
requirement is determined and capital sources are identified
also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
capital and appropriate capital structure which align with our
business development needs thereby achieving an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

(A)

Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises
the positions of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified
by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in
accordance with HKFRSs.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)
(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (Cont’d)

Subsidiaries of Bank are included within the accounting
scope of consolidation but not included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation are as follows:

2014 2013
EH%E RABER AELRTE BRGATE
Total assets Total equity  Total assets  Total equity
BT T BT T BT BT
£ Name HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FF R ERITER Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee
BIRAF] Limited 16,295 16,186 16,869 16,510
EANmEEER AR AT Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency
Limited 4,481 4,027 4,168 4,029
FEREERTT (KEA)  Nanyang Commercial Bank
BRA A (Nominees) Limited 1,477 1,477 1,483 1,483

MR2014F12 8318 - it?ﬂi&ﬂf%ﬁ%/ ARBREEEERT
RAEE - MABREESHENGAHE (2013¢ D HE) o

M2014F128310 » TMEEAHBARRERELES
BIfMEERTHRAEE
) o

s
BERTRSA T % (2013%F -

B _E BB A Tt £ B Z BN 2247 [ 3526 —
AR

RENE

www.ncbh.com.hk

There are no subsidiaries which are included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation but not included within
the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil).

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory
scope of consolidation but the methods of consolidation
differ as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out

in “Note 26 — Investment in subsidiaries” on page 224.
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4. THERERE &)

4.4 BEXREE (B

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

(B) EBEHE (B) Capital ratio

2014 2013
LB —REAR LR CET1 capital ratio 14.17% 13.53%
—RERE = Tier 1 capital ratio 14.17% 13.53%
FERE N = Total capital ratio 16.53% 15.80%

Q)  HAEHEFBE#HASKD

AREAE12A31B 2 ER LR REERSE B2 HRE

MR BEARERITMT

(C) Components of capital base after deductions

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the

calculation of the above capital ratios as at 31 December and

reported to the HKMA is analysed as follows:

2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEBRE—RER  ZERHE CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
HEZTHNE AR L ERE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
—MEAREE instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
IRER i A Retained earnings 22,764,425 20,879,091
BN R Disclosed reserves 8,978,910 8,260,460
E5 B IR Al A & R AR — A A CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 34,887,852 32,284,068
TmRE—RER | BEEHR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
HEAE Valuation adjustments (3,465) =
EHRELEHEEERRENIEEE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities (152,171) (152,418)
RATEEHENAGERRSH Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
ERERZBPrEENIERS risk on fair valued liabilities (877) (677)
HtmRkEsEy (BARKERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
ETEEEMMELERN revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
Z2EAFEBERE investment properties) (6,919,824) (6,422,662)
—RRIRITE AR BB R Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,173,590)  (1,944,980)
HEBRE-RERNET AR Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital (9,249,927) (8,520,737)
LimRiE—RER CET1 capital 25,637,925 23,763,331
—REXR Tier 1 capital 25,637,925 23,763,331
ZRER  ZREEES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BEBFAZRERD Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
SRRERER reserve for general banking risks eligible for
—RIRITREREE inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,153,326 1,099,587
EEEHIRZ AT — AR E A Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,153,326 1,099,587
ZRER  EEEHIR Tier 2 capital: requlatory deductions
nEE BT AZRERE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
R+ i R EEY (BARKRERE)  from the revaluation of land and buildings
ETEEERMELRN (own-use and investment properties) eligible
ZEAFEEKE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 3,113,921 2,890,198
H o REREE NIRRT Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 3,113,921 2,890,198
ZHREN Tier 2 capital 4,267,247 3,989,785
FE=N Total capital 29,905,172 27,753,116
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

() Components of capital base after deductions
(Cont’d)

To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules, a section
“Regulatory Disclosures” is available on the Bank’s website
at www.ncb.com.hk and includes the following consolidated
information of the Bank.

- A detailed breakdown of the capital base and
regulatory deductions, using the standard template
as specified by the HKMA.

- A reconciliation of capital components to the balance
sheet, using the standard template as specified by the

HKMA.

- A description of the main features and the full terms
and conditions of the issued capital instruments.
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5. BEENMEENAFTE
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category
includes certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the
over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from
pricing services vendors. It also includes precious
metals and properties with insignificant adjustments
made to observable market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. This category includes
equity investment and certificates of deposit with
significant unobservable components. It also includes
properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Group has an established governance structure and
controls framework to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by control units independent of
the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line
businesses and all other significant fair value measurements.
Specific controls include verification of observable pricing
inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Management.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer
guotations to determine the fair value of financial instruments
when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for
financial instruments held by the Group include bond prices,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock
prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open
market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the
following financial instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by
obtaining quoted market prices from exchange, dealer or
independent pricing service vendors or using discounted
cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a
valuation technique that measures present value using
estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments
and then discounts these flows using a discount rate or
discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by
the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs
are observable or can be corroborated by observable or
unobservable market data.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

Asset backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained
from independent third parties.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option
contracts on foreign exchange, interest rate, equity or
commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly
measured using valuation techniques such as discounted
cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs
can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA") and debit valuation
adjustments (“DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC
derivatives. These adjustments reflect interest rates,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are determined
for each counterparty and are dependent on expected future
values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

51 MUAFEFENEHMIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(A) B FEZER (A)  Fair value hierarchy
AEH
The Group
2014
EF-EBR FEBR E=ZEBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cREE Financial assets
NEEZ (LT ABRZ Financial assets at fair value
CRIEE (MizE21) through profit or loss (Note 21)
— RHMEEH — Trading securities
— BEBEH — Debt securities - 5,899,294 - 5,899,294
—RERBUARFEE - Financial assets designated at
TABRZEREE fair value through profit
or loss
— BEBEH — Debt securities - 255,919 - 255,919
SIS BT A (Mf3E22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 352,831 86,237 4 439,072
A EE A (KMi3E25)  Available-for-sale securities
(Note 25)
— EBE S — Debt securities - 34,501,889 - 34,501,889
— TF3RE — Certificates of deposit - 7,897,685 - 7,897,685
— RO ESH — Equity securities - - 75,766 75,766
SREE Financial liabilities
ANFEZ{LeT ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TR B & (MizE30) through profit or loss (Note 30)
—RXHHEAE - Trading liabilities - 4,970,693 - 4,970,693
PTESRT A (KEE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 98,057 180,421 28 278,506

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EEMAEGENQFE @) 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
51 MUAFEFENEHMIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(A) RFEHZER (E) (A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
INCSE ]
The Group
2013
F—ER F_EMR FER et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
NEEZ (LT ABRZ Financial assets at fair value
crEE (MzE21) through profit or loss (Note 21)
— RHMEEH — Trading securities
— EBES — Debt securities = 3,666,036 = 3,666,036
— REBUNATERL — Financial assets designated
STABRZEREE at fair value through profit
or loss
— ERE S — Debt securities - 498,657 - 498,657
TEERTE (KiE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 345,027 163,426 - 508,453
A EE A (Mi3E25)  Available-for-sale securities
(Note 25)
— EBE S — Debt securities - 32,261,787 - 32,261,787
— TF3RE — Certificates of deposit - 5,540,037 2,136,848 7,676,885
— k= — Equity securities - - 63,965 63,965
SREE Financial liabilities
ANFEZ{LeT ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TR B & (MizE30) through profit or loss (Note 30)
—RHMEE - Trading liabilities - 4,433,736 = 4,433,736
PTESRT A (KEE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 94,553 248,603 - 343,156
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5. EENEBNAYTE @ 5.

51 MUAFEFENEHMIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(A) R FERZER (&) (A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
AERAT
The Bank
2014
EF-EBR FEBR E=ZEBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cREE Financial assets
NEEZ (LT ABRZ Financial assets at fair value
CRIEE (MizE21) through profit or loss (Note 21)
— RHMEEH — Trading securities
— BEBEH — Debt securities - 5,899,294 - 5,899,294
— REBUAFERL - Financial assets designated
TABRZEREE at fair value through profit
or loss
— BEBEH — Debt securities - 255,919 - 255,919
SIS BT A (Mf3E22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 351,637 51,127 - 402,764
A EE A (Mi3E25)  Available-for-sale securities
(Note 25)
— EBE S — Debt securities - 26,870,986 - 26,870,986
— TF3RE — Certificates of deposit - 7,897,685 - 7,897,685
— RO EH — Equity securities - - 75,766 75,766
SREE Financial liabilities
ANFEZ{LeT ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TR B & (MizE30) through profit or loss (Note 30)
—RXHHEAE - Trading liabilities - 4,970,693 - 4,970,693
PTESRT A (KEE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 97,061 70,333 - 167,394

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
51 LUAFEHENSBMIA (&)

(A)  RXFEHER (7)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

AERTT
The Bank
2013
F—ER F_EMR FER et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cREE Financial assets
NEEZ (LT ABRZ Financial assets at fair value
crEE (MzE21) through profit or loss (Note 21)
— RHMEEH — Trading securities
— EBES — Debt securities = 3,666,036 = 3,666,036
— REBUNATERL — Financial assets designated
TABRZEREE at fair value through profit
or loss
— ERE S — Debt securities - 498,657 - 498,657
TEERTE (KiE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 345,027 65,407 - 410,434
A EE A (Mi3E25)  Available-for-sale securities
(Note 25)
— EBE S — Debt securities - 26,976,766 - 26,976,766
— TF3RE — Certificates of deposit - 5,540,037 2,136,848 7,676,885
— k= — Equity securities - - 63,965 63,965
SREE Financial liabilities
ANFEZ{LeT ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TR B & (MizE30) through profit or loss (Note 30)
=Y — Trading liabilities = 4,433,736 - 4,433,736
PTESRT A (KEE22) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 94,553 153,761 - 248,314

AEEZREERABERFADRES —ERARE_ER
2 EHE® (201346 : &) o
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There were no financial asset and liability transfers between

level 1 and level 2 for the Group during the year (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EEMAGENQFE @ 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
51 MUAFEFENERIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(B) E=ERRIERZE (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items
rEH
The Group
2014
TE Financial assets
= Tt E RS
(7F%) Available-for-sale
Derivative securities
financial FRE % 17 38 3
instruments Certificates Equity
(net) of deposit securities
BT T BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2014F1A1H At 1 January 2014 - 2,136,848 63,965
& Gains
— =R — Income statement 4 _ _
— Hih 2 EE — Other comprehensive income - 660 11,801
=y Sales - (2,057,390) -
EHE=ER Transfers out of level 3 - (80,118) -
K2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 4 - 75,766
MR2014F12 A31 B AH SR EE Total unrealised gain for the year
RERNFAWZRAORER included in income statement for
Was 258 financial assets held as at
31 December 2014 a4 — _

www.ncb.com.hk #1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BENEENAFE® 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
51 MUAFEFENEHMIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(B) FE=ERHIEEZEE (&) (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)
RER1T
The Bank
2014
TE Financial assets
¢RITE Tt E RS
(7F%) Available-for-sale
Derivative securities
financial FERE % 17 58 3
instruments Certificates Equity
(net) of deposit securities
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2014F1 818 At 1 January 2014 - 2,136,848 63,965
Wz Gains
— Eh 2wk — Other comprehensive income - 660 11,801
=y Sales - (2,057,390) -
BHE=EH Transfers out of level 3 - (80,118) -
1K2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 - - 75,766
M2014512 A31 B AM S REE Total unrealised gain for the year
RERNTFAWRZROKRER included in income statement for
s B 5E financial assets held as at

31 December 2014

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§
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5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
51 LUAFEHBENSBMIA (&)

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

REE RARTT
The Group and the Bank
2013
PTHE Financial assets
SR A AR EE S
(F%58) Available-for-sale
Derivative securities
financial FE R EH
instruments Certificates Equity
(net) of deposit securities
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1 818 At 1 January 2013 - - 56,146
& Gains
— Hih 2 EW & — Other comprehensive income - - 7,819
B A Purchases = 1,976,386 =
BABE=ERK Transfers into level 3 = 160,462 =
12013412A318 At 31 December 2013 - 2,136,848 63,965

72013412 A31BHEMEREE Total unrealised gain for the year

RERGTAREZROAREIR
W42 =E
31 December 2013

financial assets held as at

included in income statement for

R2014F12431H %2013%12A31H
SHMTAERRFRERIFLMARGE -

D BEREZERD

PERF-EBANGTRERGEIEEREREN2014F K
013 FEBARBHE=BR - HRELERDUEFHE -
AEBUERZHUFRAE  HRFENTERERA T HHE
BELABAZENTABRE28 ANASEKELSHT
HENEE=ER - AEECEIHEABEGIEFEES
B RS TANMA -

www.ncbh.com.hk

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, financial instruments
categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of certificates
of deposit and unlisted equity shares.

Certificates of deposit were transferred into and out of
level 3 in the year of 2014 and 2013 due to change
of valuation observability. For certain illiquid certificates
of deposit, the Group obtains valuation quotations from
counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs
with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these
instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.
The Group has established internal control procedures to
control the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
51 LUAFEHENSBMIA (&)

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

FEEMAEHERENATFE2EBAHLERN EmARZ
EHME/ BIEE  BLEAEAIHEEMNART « 8
REEEFEETE A FEHAEGRAZTEREH L X
REEFEGEERABR BRERENDEEEFELY
K/ MA5%  BIARSEEE A2 EUWESAEE MRS
3,788,0007T (20134 : &%3,198,0007T) ©

52 FUAFPEFAENEMTIA

AFERAE B ERHRBATSEN R TREMTAY
BRRFHE - U TZIERBREEANFHEESEERTA
ZRFHE ©

T HRIRITRAMEBEEZHRRESFEE

REDzeMEENABESNEERR—FARZH
BEAFERE

HARmE
EFEH

RED 2 EFERZZBNE - BHHERFENE - R
E{EEAERE -
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed
companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables
are not available. The fair value is positively correlated to
the price/earning ratios of appropriate comparables or net
asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying equity
investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other
comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by
HK$3,788,000 (2013: HK$3,198,000).

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
based on relevant market information and information
about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value
of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial
institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature
within one year from the balance sheet date and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating
rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates
and their carrying value approximates fair value.

www.ncbh.com.hk



5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
52 FUAFEHENSBRIA (&)

FEEEH A ES

REZIBERFZAFEEEREMES VAR FEFE
METSE 7 RIFRE - MEEBRRESRAZEER -

B REWZ

ERREWR 2 A FEEEEMESNANERESRAZ
73 7EAER] °

EF 7

REDZ2EPEFBREER R —FAIY - HREEER
FEESE -

www.ncbh.com.hk

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined
by using the same approach as those debt securities and
certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured
at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value of loans and receivable is determined by using
the same approach as those debt securities as described in
Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within
one year from the balance sheet date and their carrying
value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENEBNAYTE @

52 FUAVPEFAENERTIA (&)

B EREREERATERENSRIASN  TRAKUD
TEHBNSHMT A EEENATE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair

values of the financial instruments not measured at fair
value, except for the above with their carrying values being
approximation of fair values.

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
RREE AYE BREE AR
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
BET T BET T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRMEE Financial assets
BEZRIEARS Held-to-maturity securities
(Pf5E25) (Note 25)
— BEEEH — Debt securities 2,618,390 2,668,585 585,442 583,975
E & fEUER (M3525)  Loans and receivables (Note 25) 2,074,594 2,072,809 1,684,064 1,679,326

ARERIT
The Bank
2014 2013
REE AFE BREE AR
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
BT BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
BEZRIHARBS Held-to-maturity securities
(M$5E25) (Note 25)
— BEBES - Debt securities 243,450 246,232 298 295
EF MW (f5E25)  Loans and receivables (Note 25) 2,074,594 2,072,809 1,684,064 1,679,326
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52 FUAVPEAENERTIA (&)

TRITEFRBEATFENEMTAZAFESRH -

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for
financial instruments with fair values disclosed.

AEE
The Group
2014
E-RE& E-E& E=ZEBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BET T BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SMEE Financial assets
REZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities
— BEBES — Debt securities - 2,668,585 - 2,668,585
B R ERER Loans and receivables - 2,072,809 - 2,072,809
REE
The Group
2013
F—ER F_EH FZER HEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
HBEZIHARS Held-to-maturity securities
— BEBES — Debt securities - 583,680 295 583,975
B R e IR Loans and receivables - 1,679,326 = 1,679,326

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEENEENAFE @ 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
52 FLUAFEFENSEIA (8) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

ARERAT
The Bank
2014
EF—BR E_EBR E=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
BEZRIEARBS Held-to-maturity securities
— EBE S — Debt securities - 246,232 - 246,232
B el R Loans and receivables - 2,072,809 - 2,072,809
AERAT
The Bank
2013
F—ER FE_B& FE=B& s
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT TT PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRMEE Financial assets
BEZRIARBS Held-to-maturity securities
— EBESH — Debt securities = = 295 295
E R K EUGR Loans and receivables = 1,679,326 = 1,679,326
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5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
53 LUAFEHENFESEMIA

AR EBE LG ER TR RS RERRTHEMIA
AT -

REYFEREE

AEBMZMEADRRENERFE - MEAEEZREY
EEEECRFEETER - MEHBLHFIEMSE —K
FEHAEHNGEREXRBERARARET  HEFGEBEER
BB EEREXSENEXERER AR YEMKEY
ErrmitR kBB LREERR - ERERBFFRRFRE
76 AEBEEEEERAEMWEEE  BERR
HEER - HETENFRLANRE

FE_BRAFEEFRAGELERAE

WABRE_BRZMENATE  NH2EFALBRYE R
HHERRE (MSLBE) 2 EMBHEERERNME (K
ABAE)  BHALEMERRIEDE 2HANZREL
EERE - W EHERRB LU ERTEBEY TEREATE

AEEZMEOURBER A Z TEHRT - WRARE R
MERANYETS - ILBYEZHER  THEESRER
LR RO A ELFMH EREEKFERERFE -

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices
in active market to determine the fair value of non-financial
instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment
properties and premises. All of the Group’s investment
properties and premises were revalued as at year end.
The valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and
Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties
being valued. The Group’s Management had discussions
with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There
has been no change in valuation methods during the year.

Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined
using either the market comparison approach by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties or the income
capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and
capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the
subject properties. These adjustments are considered as
insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group's properties are located in Hong Kong and
major cities in the PRC where the property markets are
considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent
and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally
observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
53 LAFEHBHNESBIA (5)

REWEREE ()
FHE=ERAFEH B EN

BOERE=ZEBRNAKENRZ A FEHRATSLBOX
HRABARL - BEAKEYERBAHR ALY R ZEEE
P (BB REE °

AT REAFEFEFHEIBRE=BRZAEEMEN
RANBETEREATATBRERSE :

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont’d)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group's properties classified as
Level 3 is determined using either the market comparison
approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the
Group's properties compared to the comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs
used in the fair value measurement of the Group's properties
classified as Level 3 are as follows:

TRBEEER
NP ENER
fEER BEATABEEZ InREF 5 Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable
method unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
H % IS EUE MEARE A LB -12% wERS  ATEES °
WABAE WE 2 wE(E) (2013: -8.4%) TEWS A FEEIE -

Other properties Market comparison
approach or income
capitalisation approach

MERBALRYEELE E2RE/GrE) H2ERRA
HEMEETRARENER - fIMRREZTISEE - L
g EENE BRI BB EE - HREMETE -

=

BB ATERRERTSHREREE TRHENTSRE

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

Premium/(discount) on features
of the property compared to
comparable properties

The higher the premium,
the higher the fair value.

The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

Premium/(discount) on features of the property are
determined after taken into account various factors, such
as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building
age/condition, floor level, size, layout, etc., with reference
to their differences in features with comparable properties.

Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by
obtaining quoted market prices in active market or market
quote with certain adjustments.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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53 HUAVEFAENFEHMIA (B

(A)  AFEHFER

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(A) Fair value hierarchy

KEE
The Group
2014
F—EBR E_ER E=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
wEME (KiE27) Investment properties (Note 27) - - 1,280,271 1,280,271
M -~ /M KRR Properties, plant and equipment
(Fff7£28) (Note 28)
—FE - Premises - 213,970 6,821,340 7,035,310
HiEE (FIzE29) Other assets (Note 29)
—&5B — Precious metals - 11,691 - 11,691
REH
The Group
2013
F—ER FER E=ZER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMEE Non-financial assets
wEMFE (KiE27) Investment properties (Note 27) = 27,000 1,147,938 1,174,938
VI - =M MERE Properties, plant and equipment
(F$7£28) (Note 28)
—RBE — Premises - 1,931,868 4,677,510 6,609,378

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
53 LAFEHBHNESBIA (5)

(A)  RXFEHER (7)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

RERAT
The Bank
2014
E—EBR E_ER E=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE¥TT BETT BE¥TT BE¥TT
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
wEME (KiE27) Investment properties (Note 27) - - 1,258,121 1,258,121
M -~ /M KRR Properties, plant and equipment
(Fff7£28) (Note 28)
—FE - Premises - 180,461 6,338,666 6,519,127
ARIRTT
The Bank
2013
F—ER FE_ER F=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT  BMTR  EETT BN TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
wEME (KE27) Investment properties (Note 27) - 27,000 1,099,510 1,126,510
M - BN KRR Properties, plant and equipment
(FM$7E28) (Note 28)
—FE — Premises = 1,889,585 4,231,196 6,120,781

AEBZIHEHMEERFRNREE EBRERE_BRZHEH
% (20134 : ) o
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There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1
and level 2 for the Group during the year (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENAENATE@® 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
53 MUATEFENEEEIA (8) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)
(B) E=ERHIEHEE (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
rEE
The Group
2014
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
Y% ~ B¢
k®E
Properties,
plant and
equipment
REWE
Investment BEE
properties Premises
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R20145F181H At 1 January 2014 1,147,938 4,677,510
& Gains
— =& — Income statement
— REMERTFEAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F U investment properties 126,896 -
— EYE  BMEREZ - Net gain from revaluation of properties,
F U E plant and equipment - 2,033
— Hith 2 mhes — Other comprehensive income
—REEM — Revaluation of premises - 336,325
e Depreciation - (65,649)
8 = Additions 821 28,906
Eibk Reclassification (24,085) 24,085
b ZE5E Exchange difference (1,299) (11,969)
EBAE =R Transfer into level 3 30,000 1,830,099
K2014%F12H31H At 31 December 2014 1,280,271 6,821,340
2014512 A31 B AMIES R EE  Total unrealised gain for the year included in
REARNFTARZROREIR WS B5E income statement for non-financial assets held
as at 31 December 2014
—REMEATERARE 2 Fla — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 126,896 -
— EEEEZFWRE — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,033
126,896 2,033
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENEBNAYTE @

53 LAVEFENFERTIA (&) 5.3

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

INCSE ]
The Group
2013
FeMEE
Non-financial assets
M - B
B
Properties,
plant and
equipment
TEME
Investment FE
properties Premises
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
K2013F1H1H At 1 January 2013 1,001,279 4,094,219
& Gains
— ik — Income statement
—REMEATERAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
FU AR investment properties 166,363 =
— EBEYE  SEMEREZ — Net gain from revaluation of properties,
F plant and equipment _ 8,085
— Hih 2 E S — Other comprehensive income
—EBEEHR — Revaluation of premises - 582,352
e Depreciation = (57,416)
BE Additions = 16,560
B HLE Reclassification (21,050) 21,050
bE N =%8 Exchange difference 1,346 12,660
72013412 A318 At 31 December 2013 1,147,938 4,677,510
2013512831 B#AMIESLRMEE  Total unrealised gain for the year included in
REAFT ARG TN AER Wa BT income statement for non-financial assets held
as at 31 December 2013
— REMERTFERAE 2 F W — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 166,363 =
—BEHMEEZF = — Net gain from revaluation of premises — 8,085
166,363 8,085
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5. EENEBNAYTE @

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

53 LUATEENESHMIE (48) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

RERIT
The Bank
2014
FEREE
Non-financial assets
W - /M
P Ed
Properties,
plant and
equipment
REME
Investment BEE
properties Premises
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
1R2014F1 /518 At 1 January 2014 1,099,510 4,231,196
& Gains
— ik — Income statement
— REMENTERARE 2 F s — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 125,630 -
— Hih 2 EW — Other comprehensive income
—REER — Revaluation of premises - 308,619
e Depreciation - (44,817)
e Additions 641 28,708
EFHHE Reclassification 2,340 (2,340)
BAE=ER Transfer into level 3 30,000 1,817,300
R2014F12H31H At 31 December 2014 1,258,121 6,338,666
R2014F12A31HEEMIELREZE  Total unrealised gain for the year included in
RERNFTAWRZRAOREIR WS BEE income statement for non-financial assets held
as at 31 December 2014
—REMEATERARE 2 F — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 125,630 -

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENEBNAYTE @

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

53 LUATEENESHMIE (48) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

ANERAT
The Bank
2013
FERREE
Non-financial assets
MW =M
B
Properties,
plant and
equipment

REME

Investment BE

properties Premises
BEET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

20131 H1H

At 1 January 2013

955,670 3,665,303

& Gains
— Em*& — Income statement
—REMEATEREZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F s investment properties 164,890 -
— Hih 2 EW — Other comprehensive income
—EEEM — Revaluation of premises - 568,212
e Depreciation = (39,691)
e Additions - 16,322
BN OM Reclassification (21,050) 21,050
R2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013 1,099,510 4,231,196
M20135F12A31 B AHIELREE  Total unrealised gain for the year included in
RFERNFTARZRARER W= EFE income statement for non-financial assets held
as at 31 December 2013
— BREMERATFERAE 2 F W= — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 164,890 -
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5. BEMBEEBNLAFRE ®
53 LAFEHBNESBIA (5)

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

BAMBHE=EANMEIRZSREEMFRAHEA L
BWMEENE L 25E (B RFERHRE(LMSIB -
MEEZHE/(FE) DEURARBEEENE LSRR
ALBMEEMELNER - IREBFREEPTHERZ
ALEYERETEAR  REEVERTHLRYEELEE
LB/ GTE) HESFEMEL  KmETHRRN
MSRARMETZHBZEANMTTESHE 2B - 5IHWER
BARBHE=E& -

www.ncbh.com.hk

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due
to change in the premium/(discount) on features applied
between the subject and comparable properties during the
year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with
reference to differences in features between the subject
properties and the comparable properties recently transacted
in the market. As comparable properties that come from
recent market transactions may be different in each year, the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject
and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments
made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to the
transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. FHMEWA

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE WA Interest income

FHAREE R E M4 i #E I8 Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,961,173 2,256,247
BEFE® Advances to customers 5,630,733 5,294,805
FHEAEEE Listed investments 250,446 327,562
FELETHBHFIEE Unlisted investments 1,159,854 881,056
Hih Others 35,034 17,126
10,037,240 8,776,796

FEZH Interest expense
A 25 & H At & RUM T A 5018 Due to banks and other financial institutions (1,027,085) (779,789)
ZEEFER Deposits from customers (3,527,257) (3,068,188)
Hih Others (292,849) (237,653)
(4,847,191) (4,085,630)
= ISE PN Net interest income 5,190,049 4,691,166

HZE2014F12A31B LFEZ2F BRABEH R EHR
BEE XA EHF 8 U A B #211,0007T (20134 : & #&
2,594,0007T) °

FURNFEBFAERZEREEES R A EMEENH
B A KA B 55 A%%10,014,009,0007T (20134 -
75 8,732,588,0007T) M & #4,842,420,0007T (20134 :
75 #4.080,742,0007T) ©

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

Included within interest income is HK$211,000 (2013:
HK$2,594,000) of interest with respect to income accrued
on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Included within interest income and interest expense
are HK$10,014,009,000 (2013: HK$8,732,588,000) and
HK$4,842,420,000 (2013: HK$4,080,742,000), for financial
assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair
value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. EERBBRAEEA

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION

INCOME
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REERASWA Fee and commission income
ERAe Loan commissions 298,396 240,188
EERE Bills commissions 235,620 218,959
Eers gl Securities brokerage 213,931 194,970
HenH Funds distribution 159,240 118,762
R Insurance 117,692 101,524
R RTES Payment services 69,222 72,189
BERRER Credit card business 64,026 5,004
(R Safe deposit box 23,218 21,800
=L N FEE RIS Trust and custody services 7,825 1,389
BEEEK Currency exchange 543 534
Hh Others 143,252 99,807
1,332,965 1,075,126
REEBERASIH Fee and commission expense
FEaEan Securities brokerage (30,154) (27,549)
BSRARTS Payment services (236) (6,539)
ERRER Credit card business (3,743) (914)
Hih Others (44,106) (31,499)
(78,239) (66,501)
FREBERASHA Net fee and commission income 1,254,726 1,008,625
HERE Of which arise from

— AR TFEE Lt A B
ZEREEXLTRAR

— financial assets or financial liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss

— REERAESIA — Fee and commission income 261,207 219,867
- REEBERASEIH — Fee and commission expense (7.317) (2,954)
253,890 216,913

— ERERHAM XA — trust and other fiduciary activities
— R E RASKA — Fee and commission income 19,593 13,071
- RBEERASEIH — Fee and commission expense (1,207) (1,202)
18,386 11,869

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8. NET TRADING GAIN

2014 2013

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F (E18)/ WasRE - Net (loss)/gain from:

— INER B RINER FEE fh — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products (32,236) (5,065)
—FEXTH — interest rate instruments 44,835 102,286

— Efm — commodities (3,783) -

— RO ERITA — equity instruments 42 =
8,858 97,221

9. HtEMEEZFWE

9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2014 2013
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

A EE S 2 F s Net gain from disposal of available-for-sale
securities 93,642 31,292
H Others 28,888 21,204
122,530 52,496

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

www.ncbh.com.hk



10. HAbZEWRA

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2014 2013
BETT eoks da
HK$'000 HK$'000

BHIEEREMA Dividend income from investment in securities
—ELEMBEHFKE — unlisted investments 9,345 7,975
WEMFE 2B BRA Gross rental income from investment properties 49,846 45,545
B BRI EMEZSH Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (3,063) (2,906)
Hih Others 14,680 24,856
70,808 75,470

[BEREREMEZIH | BREFRAHARENEZHELS
S A #34,0007T (20134 : ##163,0007T) ©

[EEMEZASRWA | BIEFERKAEEBEA54,0007T
(20134 : B#346,0007T) °

1. REEEFRE

Included in the "Outgoings in respect of investment
properties” is HK$34,000 (2013: HK$163,000) of direct

operating expenses related to investment properties that

were not let during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from

investment properties” amounted to HK$454,000 during the

year (2013: HK346,000).

11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT

ALLOWANCES
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
(ERIRRES Individually assessed
— IR EE - new allowances (848,826) (222,187)
— $[o] — releases 23,909 11,572
— U [E 2 s BR 1A — recoveries 5,984 51,936
B R E B BUR B B R Net charge of individually assessed loan
(BgE24) impairment allowances (Note 24) (818,933) (158,679)
HE Collectively assessed
— IR EE - new allowances (163,900) (211,288)
— # [ — releases 78,348 -
— Bl E M SE BRI — recoveries 191 -
RSN EERREEEF RS Net charge of collectively assessed loan
(BfE24) impairment allowances (Note 24) (85,361) (211,288)
A EEBRE Net charge of impairment allowances (904,294) (369,967)

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. R&EXH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2014 2013
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AZER (BREESHE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— ¥R EME R — salaries and other costs 1,092,159 1,064,036
— RREC AR — pension cost 143,334 127,780
1,235,493 1,191,816
BERZHES L Premises and equipment expenses
(TEETE) (excluding depreciation)
—FEHAS — rental of premises 253,337 242,896
— BRRH — information technology 172,342 156,632
—Hftp — others 53,176 53,375
478,855 452,903
e (KisE28) Depreciation (Note 28) 224,768 206,956
ZERT & Auditor’s remuneration
— E: R — audit services 6,044 5,727
— ERETIRTS — non-audit services 294 199
Hith a8 Other operating expenses 552,135 494,897
2,497,589 2,352,498
13. REYELFEFARZFWZF 13. NET GAIN FROM FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEMERNTERAR 2 F = Net gain from fair value adjustments on
(PFfta%27) investment properties (Note 27) 129,896 169,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14. HE "EEYE - BHRREZF (B 14. NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/

8),/ W REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
& B E B E 2 FEE Net loss from disposal of other fixed assets (2,380) (4,609)
EEEEZFRE (MI5E28) Net gain from revaluation of premises (Note 28) 2,033 8,085
(347) 3,476
15. #HE 15. TAXATION
WEs R Az BIBAR T Taxation in the income statement represents:
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEARIIE Current tax
BBMEFH Hong Kong profits tax
— FEREFAFE — current year taxation 435,114 439,500
— ARG — over-provision in prior years (5,293) (6,254)
429,821 433,246
NG IR Overseas taxation
— FREABIE — current year taxation 230,721 179,858
—FETR (HBE) #E — under/(over) -provision in prior years 3,747 (17,010)
664,289 596,094
IEFER IR Deferred tax
TR R 2 A R (FTEE34) Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 34) (49,109) (65,541)
615,180 530,553
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15. HIE (@)

F 58 M 19 B T0 42 BB 2K 4F T 5t B 2R B 0% FUK B K 16.5%
(20134F : 16.5%) 125 o 18 9N Al 2 B 2% BBA 4 [ b 5t
FERBR AR A R BC L LR FERR 2 BITR R -

AREBERBIENELNERRIE - EREFBFEH KT
HOHBZRMT :

15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2014 2013

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R 250 Al g A Profit before taxation 3,366,679 3,359,210
EHE16.5% (20135 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

BT (2013: 16.5%) 555,502 554,270
EMERHEREENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 23,610 23,684
MERT 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (55,470) (76,226)
TR £ R AT HRL 2 B 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 52,662 20,050
AERH RIS EE Tax losses not recognised 1 1
P FARBERN IS EE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (14) (385)
T EBRERE Over-provision in prior years (1,546) (23,264)
BINEIRRL Foreign withholding tax 40,435 32,423
sFAFLIE Taxation charge 615,180 530,553
B =R Effective tax rate 18.27% 15.79%

16. ARITIRREMGETR

HZE2014F12A31HILFE » RNBITREEELEEEZFE
FEEFIAKNRITE % 3R R A8 & )7 #2,609,558,0007TC
(20134 : ##2,410,506,0007T) °

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

16. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes
a profit of HK$2,609,558,000 (2013: HK$2,410,506,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Bank.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17. RE 17. DIVIDENDS
2014 2013
ST wrE STl BEa
Per share Total Per share Total
pited BETT P BT T
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
BAFHRE Interim dividend paid 100 700,000 77 539,000

RIE2014F6 A6 HFT AR EH ' EE 25 IR2014FF H
f% B &A% I B A S #1000t - 42 %E A&7 #700,000,0007T
W R201456 27BNt ©

18. ERKBRIRA

AEBHRTFTAEEEINATEHIGTEETZELE CEESIK
Bl 2% 2 B3R REH I R P IR IR B Bor et 8l - IRIE
B RNETE  EEARBERKEICEAHRAEER
Fe25%  MEEZEAHRBEEEARAFH Z5%E15%
TE (RTEEZRBFEH) - REBENEI  RATEMAKSK
EAHKIEBRRBFEEMIOF I _EEFIFRTUEN00%.2
EBEHER - REMIFEIFMHETL - AEMREAMILER
3 (HE BB AR EBR SN ) » AT UEN30% =90% 2 B EH K - &
BUER B R - AR GaEIERTES I EEE) AR °

BEE (BB L 1561 M2000F12 81 B B - NEE IR A
FRIRIRAE FRBRTE - ZArBl 2 ZEA BT RBIFR R
RBETERAR  REEEABPRBEBRABERBEES
BERAR  WREAREARNBITZEBEAL -

#HZE2014F12 8318 © £k 4)7E%699,0007T (20134 :
#4975 #358,0000T) Z R LK% - BRI B 2 H K
48 %8 %) A 75 38,204,000 (20134F = 4978 #37,267,000
L) MASEBERRESTEIACHRRBRERNN BBIE
6,950,0007T (20134 : 497%5%5,976,0007T) °

www.ncbh.com.hk

At a meeting held on 6 June 2014, the Board declared an
interim dividend of HK$100 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$700,000,000, which was paid on 27 June 2014.

18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are
ORSO schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance
and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under
the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions
to the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries,
while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled
to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon
retirement, early retirement or termination of employment
after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to
9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s
contributions at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon
termination of employment for other reasons other than
summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by
employee are subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on
1 December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee
is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the
Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$38,204,000 (2013: approximately
HK$37,267,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions
of approximately HK$699,000 (2013: approximately
HK$358,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$6,950,000 (2013: approximately
HK$5,976,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. EE - SEEEABRTZEAE#ME

(a) ESHE

RERFASBRARTEE/ARTREENBRRRMEZ
RGN RERKARK 2 MEFFITMAT

19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the
directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group
during the year are as follows:

2014 2013

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e Fees 2,674 6,045
E i< Other emoluments 8,516 8,063
11,190 14,108

(b) CGSTEHREBAERTEAERNITEH

B2 ERBEH 2CG-5 (RENFMHIZIES)  KAFEARE
BERERAERTIEZASHHMABET

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System issued by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for
Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group during
the year are as follows:

(i) RERTZT 1B (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2014
BREEAE TEAB
Senior Management Key Personnel
Fi3413 B @t FIELE B @t
Non-deferred Deferred Total Non-deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BETT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B! Fixed remuneration
RBe Cash 10,336 - 10,336 6,766 - 6,766
Z BB Variable remuneration
Be Cash 4,147 542 4,689 2,142 - 2,142
szt Total 14,483 542 15,025 8,908 - 8,908
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19. EE - 5EE
)

(&

EEABRTEAEME

(b) CG5TEREBAERTEASHFHM (&)

19. DIRECTORS’, S

MANAGEMENT'S AND KEY

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

ENIOR

PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

(i) RERNRFHIFH (&) (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
(Cont’d)
2013
BREEAR X IN-!
Senior Management Key Personnel
JERT R st 13413 BT e
Non-deferred Deferred Total  Non-deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[E] T B Fixed remuneration
Be Cash 10,005 - 10,005 5,552 5,552
e Variable remuneration
Be Cash 3,939 531 4,470 2,068 2,068
by Total 13,944 531 14,475 7,620 7,620
LA £ % BN B 4% (2013F 1 4%) s A& B2 A B k5% The remuneration above includes 4 (2013: 4) members
(20134F : 48) FEAB © of Senior Management and 5 (2013: 4) members of Key
Personnel.
(i) B (i)  Deferred remuneration
2014 2013
BREBEAER FEAE SHREBEAEB FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
BET T BET T PRI PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I R 7 P Deferred remuneration
EEE Vested 430 - 253 -
REE Unvested 1,060 - 948 -
1,490 - 1,201 -
M1A1H At 1 January 948 - 670 =
s Awarded 542 - 531 =
23 Paid out (430) - (253) -
FRBIRE WG E T Reduced through performance
HRE D adjustments - - = -
M®12H31H At 31 December 1,060 - 948 _

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. EX SEREEAEBRTEAE#ME
)

(&
(b) CG5TEREBAERTEASHFHM (&)
(i)  EEFH (&)

RFERE  AHEDERNSREBAEREIZAETIRIE
ER(RROFMGIEES) & -

BREEAR  EFEETNRAEEAR A RBBERE
HBEXER - BRITRERREIRLE -
TEAE  BAEBEE S NEARBRALE  HRERZES

EAFE  HEAABREHEREREGEE BEATE  IH
BANBEERFZENAR  BREFKANRBREANEME
B EeRTIEREREENMEE -

20. Egﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁm

19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

(ii) Deferred remuneration (Cont’d)

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key
Personnel mentioned in this section are defined according
to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by
the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive
and Deputy General Managers.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of
Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

20. CASH AND BALANCES WITH
BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS
AEE RER1T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT T BT T BB TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHRE Cash 593,355 883,699 405,895 591,385
TR RERTT 8O A5 84 Balances with central banks 18,694,761 17,068,323 2,364,763 853,838
FHRITREM S 7R  Balances with banks and
B 45 84 other financial institutions 17,112,902 13,858,127 17,304,366 13,981,814
EIRIT R E M & BhHtE Placements with banks and
— @B RNEH Z FHFEM  other financial institutions
maturing within one month 21,881,782 12,929,170 10,316,517 3,413,297
58,282,800 44,739,319 30,391,541 18,840,334
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21. AFERLTHTAERZERMEE 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
EEBRART
The Group and the Bank
REANDFEZLIA
BRzemEE
Financial assets
REMRS designated at fair value @t
Trading securities through profit or loss Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BETr  BETr  B%Tr  BETr  B%Tx  B%Trx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BATESER At fair value
EREH Debt securities
—REBLET - Listed in Hong Kong - - 255,919 260,730 255,919 260,730
— RABLAIN T - Listed outside Hong Kong - - - 237,927 - 237,927
- - 255,919 498,657 255,919 498,657
— 3k ~ Unlisted 5,899,294 3,666,036 - - 5899294 3,666,036
wst Total 5,899,294 3,666,036 255,919 498,657 6,155,213 4,164,693

AFEEFABREZEREERETEREBZOBMT ¢

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

analysed by type of issuer as follows:

AEBERARIT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ELERS Sovereigns 5,899,294 3,665,412
N v Public sector entities* - 624
NG Corporate entities 255,919 498,657
6,155,213 4,164,693
* R2014%12 8318 © WREE GR1T%¥ (84) ) AHEARA * Included financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of Nil

) e

www.ncbh.com.hk

REBEMHRTEZ T ABR 2 MEE (20134 : #H#624,000
7T

(2013: HK$624,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector

entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

203



B R AR PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

21. RFESLFABRZEREE @

ATEB{CHABREZ SRAEH BT -

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
analysed as follows:

AEBRARST
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BETT BT
HKS$’000 HK$'000
JE 5 Treasury bills 5,899,294 3,665,412
Hth Others 255,919 499,281
6,155,213 4,164,693

22. fTEE€mTI A

ARBEETLTAIER - MK - FmRROESABOITES
BMTEANIFEERRAREE A :

B EHRENARE - APEREINEREGE -

% MERETERHRERBETRRS R KE @A
o FHINEREXBAREY - FX (WEEF 8% 5
X)) ZELE (MEDSEH) AN ENREASE (WRXE
B EEH) GRRLEEERHAALIN  ZERXHEFHR

SNEHRERIEMENE D (L&) RES (BE7) BRE|E
ARE—FERARIARK - ERFHRAROENEREE (B
BHE) B (RAHE) —EHEMNSRMTANERN (M
SEHGE) Tt o BEIIMNER - MENESKREER
TREB—ERNHEE AREHESOREHTF HHESIM

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest
rate, commodity and equity related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and
sell foreign currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are
commitments to exchange one set of cash flows or
commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of
currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed rate for floating
rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps) or a
combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest
rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no
exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under
which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the
right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option)
or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set
period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a
predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of
foreign exchange risk, the seller receives a premium from the
purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC")
between the Group and its counterparty.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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AEEZITESRTIAAYN BREEREATEFIINT
- BENERMTANAY 2EUFEERTREEAER
ARTEMZR58 METEMIAZARN LR
RET —EAREEABRAMERNATFEEEXBERNSH
O EHE - (B2 - EXPRERPTS RAARKRNIRE IR E AT
DNFHE - At EE R RS B P E B A 5 B R ST 5 R
%o BEETESHM T AASNGFIERNESR - mHH=X -
BEeBERIBNERERNKE  TEERTANMGER
RELEN (BE) A (BB WFE  BUERERE
TRFEBEBRANKE

AEBETHIMTEERRZINEIRZENEREREFER
SEEFPRRAEMSRBOITEERR ZHFERELAR
SESERARREEBRMETE

TEEmMERRERRITERENNXER  RAEEEILEZ
EmBELHENTEERT LTRSS ATEERR S
A YR B AR R B BRAR RIS - S HIFTR S H &K
R-BRNEERXZUARERBRNORS - UETTHE

8 mHEE  wEREE-
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative
financial instruments held by the Group are set out in the
following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding
at the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a
basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, market interest rates, metal prices or equity
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly
from time to time.

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk
management policies and requirement in providing derivative
products to our customers and in trading of derivative
products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of
the banking book. A derivative instrument must be included
in the approved product list before any transactions for
that instrument can be made. There are limits to control
the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set.
Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant
system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting
and control.
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22. fTEE€@mI A

TEREBRSETESMTIARI2AIBZAH  BREE

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional
amounts of each class of derivative financial instrument as
at 31 December:

rEH
The Group
2014
TRHEEA
gk
Not qualified
EE  for hedge #Er
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXRAEH Exchange rate contracts
BIVHA & 3= B Spot and forwards 13,828,777 - 13,828,777
= H Swaps 28,700,798 - 28,700,798
HNPE 22 5 BRAE Foreign currency options
— B AHi#E — Options purchased 5,994 - 5,994
— B - Options written 5,994 - 5,994
42,541,563 - 42,541,563
FEGH Interest rate contracts
= 5 Swaps 24,589,557 231,885 24,821,442
[EEEEKS) Commodity contracts 684,545 - 684,545
D HEZR A 4 Equity contracts 260,297 - 260,297
FEG Total 68,075,962 231,885 68,307,847

THAERAEPEFHE : REBBRITE (BE) KA 2
Ko FBBUFRBETTARBETNGHEER - BEEBEUR
FEELKRGERARNEBTA-HEENTETASA

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts
which do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but
are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately
disclosed in compliance with the requirements set out in the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

RNEHE
The Group
2013
TEEERA
HHgshA
Not qualified
B8E for hedge 4
Trading accounting Total
ookt BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXREA Exchange rate contracts
BVER K2 3= AR Spot and forwards 13,620,622 - 13,620,622
1= 5 Swaps 27,813,930 - 27,813,930
HNE R 5 BR Foreign currency options
— B AHi#E — Options purchased 22,156 - 22,156
— B 1 B — Options written 22,156 = 22,156
41,478,864 - 41,478,864
FEEH Interest rate contracts
2 A Swaps 43,343,986 464,465 43,808,451
Emai Commodity contracts 211,761 = 211,761
HEmad Other contracts 3,837 = 3,837
FEE Total 85,038,448 464,465 85,502,913

www.ncbh.com.hk
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22. fTEE€@mI A

22.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

RERAT
The Bank
2014
TRHEEA
gtk
Not qualified
EE  for hedge #E
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MRS 4 Exchange rate contracts
BVER K2 3= R Spot and forwards 8,581,337 - 8,581,337
2 A Swaps 19,202,134 - 19,202,134
SNFE 22 5 BAfE Foreign currency options
— BEAHRE — Options purchased 5,994 - 5,994
— B A — Options written 5,994 - 5,994
27,795,459 - 27,795,459
FEEH Interest rate contracts
2 A Swaps 1,031,699 231,885 1,263,584
Ema &) Commodity contracts 234,095 - 234,095
#Et Total 29,061,253 231,885 29,293,138

#1195 R %4041 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %
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BA R R MY RE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

ANERTT
The Bank
2013
TEEHA
M gTHA
Not qualified
B8E for hedge a5
Trading accounting Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XG4 Exchange rate contracts
BN HA K 3= B Spot and forwards 7,097,789 - 7,097,789
= H Swaps 19,584,063 - 19,584,063
HNEE 32 5 B Foreign currency options
— B A - Options purchased 22,156 = 22,156
— B — Options written 22,156 - 22,156
26,726,164 - 26,726,164
| ESSED) Interest rate contracts
= H Swaps 1,272,262 464,465 1,736,727
EEEEES) Commodity contracts 188,037 - 188,037
HAb & %) Other contracts 3,837 = 3,837
#Et Total 28,190,300 464,465 28,654,765

www.ncbh.com.hk
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22. fTEE€@mI A

TREMASETESRTAM2A318Z2ATE :

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

A%E
The Group
2014
ATERE AFEAE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
AREHA TRERA
et Eabek =5 97
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE for hedge Mgt BE for hedge Lo
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
BETT BT BETR BT BETR BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
fE R & 49 Exchange rate contracts
BHR & i BR Spot and forwards 359,880 - 359,880 (115,016) - (115,016)
= 1 Swaps 44,500 - 44,500 (102,497) - (102,497)
SN R 5 HRRE Foreign currency options
— B AR — Options purchased 79 - 79 - - -
— B — Options written - - - (79) - (79)
404,459 - 404,459 (217,592) - (217,592)
FEEH Interest rate contracts
1= Swaps 17,412 - 17,412 (26,445) (25,222) (51,667)
ELEEED) Commodity contracts 17,064 - 17,064 (9,152) - (9.152)
B EEa 4 Equity contracts 137 - 137 (95) - (95)
st Total 439,072 - 439,072  (253,284) (25,222)  (278,506)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

r5E
The Group
2013
RTEEE RFEAR
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
IEEEA IEEEA
Hmers HmeiE
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge et HE  for hedge et
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BT T BT T BT BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XL Exchange rate contracts
BEA K i Af Spot and forwards 411,547 = 411,547 (110,301) = (110,301)
=58 Swaps 26,554 - 26,554 (112,844) - (112,844)
HNFE X 5 B A Foreign currency options
— E M — Options purchased 71 - 71 - = =
- BB — Options written = = - 71) _ 71)
438,172 - 438,172 (223,216) - (223,216)
FEEH Interest rate contracts
=5 Swaps 56,854 = 56,854 (79,837) (38,748)  (118,585)
Hma A Commodity contracts 13,425 - 13,425 (1,355) - (1,355)
HMAE4 Other contracts 2 - 2 _ _ _
5T Total 508,453 - 508,453 (304,408) (38,748) (343,156)

www.ncbh.com.hk
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22. fTEE€@mI A

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

FRAT
The Bank
2014
DNFEEE ATEEE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
THEHA THEHA
HHEE et
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE for hedge mst BE for hedge Ht
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
BETR BETR BETRT BETR BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
fE =& 4] Exchange rate contracts
BEA K i Af Spot and forwards 344,771 - 344,771 (105,847) - (105,847)
=5 Swaps 41,568 - 41,568 (26,407) - (26,407)
SN X 5 B A Foreign currency options
— E M — Options purchased 79 - 79 - - -
- BB — Options written - - - (79) - (79)
386,418 - 386,418 (132,333) - (132,333)
FEEH Interest rate contracts
=5 Swaps - - - (9,169) (25,222) (34,391)
EmE L Commodity contracts 16,346 - 16,346 (670) - (670)
Fh Total 402,764 - 402,764 (142,172) (25,222) (167,394)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

ARERAT
The Bank
2013
REEEE RFEAR
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
IEEHA PEERA
Hmers HashE
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge et HE  for hedge et
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BT T BT T BT BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XL Exchange rate contracts
BVER K 2= 51 Spot and forwards 380,320 = 380,320 (95,705) = (95,705)
=5 Swaps 16,672 = 16,672 (89,292) = (89,292)
SN X 5 B A Foreign currency options
— E M — Options purchased 71 - 71 - = =
- BB — Options written = = - 71) _ 71)
397,063 - 397,063 (185,068) - (185,068)
FEEH Interest rate contracts
=5 Swaps - - - (23,187) (38,748) (61,935)
Hma A Commodity contracts 13,369 - 13,369 (1,311) - (1,311)
HMAE4 Other contracts 2 - 2 _ _ _
B Total 410,434 - 410,434 (209,566) (38,748) (248,314)

www.ncbh.com.hk
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

TRIE EMfSTESRTAZEERKRNESE  W2RE The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of

MEARRLE 2 EERMRNERIERMARE o

the above derivative financial instruments and is prepared
with reference to the Completion Instructions for the HKMA
return of capital adequacy ratio.

rEE
The Group
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EXREH Exchange rate contracts
EHA Forwards 118,792 196,207
= Swaps 74,363 88,727
HNE R 5) BR Foreign currency options
— B AHi#E — Options purchased 61 -
193,216 284,934
FEEH Interest rate contracts
12 5 Swaps 19,156 35,998
[EEEEK) Equity contracts 8,273 =
FEE Total 220,645 320,932
RERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EELS4) Exchange rate contracts
= Forwards 55,088 97,974
2 A7 Swaps 38,180 52,614
HNEE 32 5 B Foreign currency options
— BEAH#E — Options purchased 61 =
93,329 150,588
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
2 A7 Swaps 350 2,334
st Total 93,679 152,922

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§
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EERBRMESRBERRE (RITE (BX) RAD FTHE - lH
BEARZZHF2ERARSEAHN 2RI -

REERANBTHEAREEFVEEREEENITERZ A
TEAREY ABKEA48,045,000T (20134 © &) » KEE K
RIRTTERE R FHEEE RN BRI £HE% 16,832,000
7C (20134 @ £E) o

23. EXRKHMIRE

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts
are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral
netting agreements for the Group and the Bank both
amounted to HK$48,045,000 (2013: Nil), and the effect of
valid bilateral netting agreements for the Group and the
Bank both also amounted to HK$16,832,000 (2013: Nil).

23. ADVANCES AND OTHER

ACCOUNTS
AEE REBAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BAER Personal loans and advances 31,455,884 26,727,594 18,821,262 16,522,275
UNGI=§ Corporate loans and advances 118,046,372 116,814,449 80,931,409 73,068,854
EEER* Advances to customers* 149,502,256 143,542,043 99,752,671 89,591,129
ERREER Loan impairment allowances

— AR — Individually assessed (731,598) (280,913) (107,058) (79,556)
— ZHAEFHE — Collectively assessed (1,238,522) (1,187,015) (518,658) (595,975)
147,532,136 142,074,115 99,126,955 88,915,598
B 555 Trade bills 16,371,563 13,242,636 7,238,603 9,458,019
4zt Total 163,903,699 155,316,751 106,365,558 98,373,617

M2014F12831H - AEB R ABITREERSIEREA T
B 5 Bl & 7% 367,805,000 (20134 : # #326,587,000
TT) N iB&#172,446,0007T (20134F : ##142,721,0007T) °

R2014F12A8318 - REHEZFEBRIEHEMNBEER
(20134 : 4&#) o

* BREASERARITETLE P ERD 5 A% ¥71,075,114,000
70 (20134 : & %64,930,071,0007T) K # #68,070,635,000
7C (20134 : # ¥62,071,556,00070) RE T B FE R A B
38,535,511,0007T (20134F : & #34,374,429,0007T) Kk & #
29,263,723,0007T (20134 : %¥%24,686,906,0007T) °

www.ncbh.com.hk

As at 31 December 2014, advances to customers of the Group
and the Bank included accrued interest of HK$367,805,000
(2013: HK$326,587,000) and HK$172,446,000 (2013:
HK$142,721,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment allowance was
made in respect of trade bills (2013: Nil).

td Included advances to customers of the Group and the
Bank denominated in HK dollars of HK$71,075,114,000
(2013: HK$64,930,071,000) and HK$68,070,635,000
(2013: HK$62,071,556,000) and US dollars equivalent
to HK$38,535,511,000 (2013: HK$34,374,429,000) and
HK$29,263,723,000 (2013: HK$24,686,906,000) respectively.
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24. EXREEHE

24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

REE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2014
R8BI 5714
Individual assessment
5PN | Bt B A st
Personal Corporate Total Personal Corporate Total
BETT BYETx B¥Tx BT BT BYTr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R2014F1 818 At 1 January 2014 13,199 267,714 280,913 3,677 75,879 79,556
RURES R BT Charged/(credited) to
(#Em) income statement 7,520 811,413 818,933 (1,682) 43,390 41,708
FAME 2 Loans written off during
Rk E B R the year as uncollectible (4,234) (357,425) (361,659) (3,000) (16,723) (19,723)
1z [B] 2 # sH AR IR Recoveries 1,883 4,101 5,984 1,786 3,938 5,724
T IR R (B 2E 4 (o] 8¢ Unwind of discount on
impairment allowances - (211) (211) - (211) (211)
[ 5 =%8 Exchange difference (1,070) (11,292) (12,362) 1 3 4
R2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 17,298 714,300 731,598 782 106,276 107,058
rEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2014
RAETE
Collective assessment
fBA AT At fBA AF st
Personal Corporate Total Personal Corporate Total
BT BE¥TxT BT BETr B¥Tn BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
K2014F1 818 At 1 January 2014 77,845 1,109,170 1,187,015 9,016 586,959 595,975
Rk s KRB Charged/(credited) to
(B&m) income statement 37,933 47,428 85,361 17,676 (77,965) (60,289)
FRMEE 2 Loans written off during
K EIE K the year as uncollectible (17,193) - (17,193) (17,193) - (17,193)
U [B] & i 28 BR I8 Recoveries 191 - 191 191 - 191
bE H =58 Exchange difference 88 (16,940) (16,852) - (26) (26)
R2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 98,864 1,139,658 1,238,522 9,690 508,968 518,658

216  #i$ 7@ %444 ¢ NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT £#;
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24. ERREES 5 24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES
(Cont'd)
REE ANERIT
The Group The Bank
2013
g Eh IR R
Individual assessment
([EPN NG| 4Et fEA NS 45t
Personal Corporate Total Personal Corporate Total
BT B¥TrT BT BT AT BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
K2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 8,305 212,288 220,593 788 57,656 58,444
N Charged to income
statement 3,645 155,034 158,679 2,783 26,475 29,258
FAMEEZ Loans written off during
ERUAEN=EN the year as uncollectible - (153,427) (153,427) - (15,736)  (15,736)
e El & 85 AR TH Recoveries 1,493 50,443 51,936 106 8,321 8,427
R E Unwind of discount on
B impairment allowances (371) (2,223) (2,594) - (846) (846)
E 5 =% Exchange difference 127 5,599 5,726 - 9 9
R2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013 13,199 267,714 280,913 3,677 75,879 79,556
REE ANERAT
The Group The Bank
2013
R a S
Collective assessment
fEA NG| #Et fEA NC| #ast
Personal Corporate Total Personal Corporate Total
BT B¥TrT BT BT BT BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K2013F181H At 1 January 2013 47,201 922,248 969,449 6,396 584,787 591,183
RIS R B Charged to income
statement 36,935 174,353 211,288 9,367 2,102 11,469
FAMEHZ Loans written off during
AU E &K the year as uncollectible (6,747) - (6,747) (6,747) - (6,747)
M H Z5 Exchange difference 456 12,569 13,025 = 70 70
K2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013 77,845 1,109,170 1,187,015 9,016 586,959 595,975

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. BFRE 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES
rEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETR BT T BETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
(a) ] S 5 (a) Available-for-sale securities
EES  BATEYER Debt securities, at fair value
—REALET — Listed in Hong Kong 2,118,557 3,479,005 2,118,557 3,479,005
— BB ETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 3,613,234 4,580,287 3,613,234 4,580,287
5,731,791 8,059,292 5,731,791 8,059,292
—3EEm — Unlisted 28,770,098 24,202,495 21,139,195 18,917,474
34,501,889 32,261,787 26,870,986 26,976,766
& - BATEYR Certificates of deposit, at fair value
—REBLASNET — Listed outside Hong Kong 205,215 260,416 205,215 260,416
— kLT — Unlisted 7,692,470 7,416,469 7,692,470 7,416,469
7,897,685 7,676,885 7,897,685 7,676,885
B #ES - BAFESR Equity securities, at fair value
— Lk - Unlisted 75,766 63,965 75,766 63,965
42,475,340 40,002,637 34,844,437 34,717,616
(b) #EZIHAESE (b))  Held-to-maturity securities
BISES - WEEK AT Debt securities, at amortised cost
— REBIN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 49,148 - 49,148 -
— 3L — Unlisted 2,569,242 585,442 194,302 298
2,618,390 585,442 243,450 298
(c) BRRERK (c) Loans and receivables
JE LT SR AT BE Unlisted, at amortised cost 2,074,594 1,684,064 2,074,594 1,684,064
@t Total 47,168,324 42,272,143 37,162,481 36,401,978
REZREEHEZ Market value of listed held-to-maturity
EmESME securities 48,095 - 48,095 -
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BHRERBITREY SENT -

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as

follows:
AEE
The Group
2014
BEZE
AHERS HHAES
Available- Held-to- B K EWK
for-sale maturity Loans and st
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAEE Sovereigns 11,981,667 1,778,199 - 13,759,866
NI Public sector entities* 233,982 130,399 - 364,381
R1T M E b 5 RO IE Banks and other financial
institutions 21,682,684 596,741 - 22,279,425
NGRS Corporate entities 8,577,007 113,051 2,074,594 10,764,652
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594 47,168,324
RNEHE
The Group
2013
HEZE
AR EES  HEEE
Available- Held-to- E R &EUER
for-sale maturity Loans and 45
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEhERE Sovereigns 9,942,492 585,144 - 10,527,636
NI Public sector entities* 604,814 = = 604,814
RITREAM S B Banks and other financial
institutions 20,094,280 298 850,686 20,945,264
NI Corporate entities 9,361,051 = 833,378 10,194,429
40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064 42,272,143
* BIEEGRITE (BAR) H8) AN EARAI AL B g Al H & & * Included available-for-sale securities of HK$233,982,000

7 #£233,982,0007T (20134 : &Meozt,sm,ooom PES T p-i
A& #75%130,399,0007T (20134 : ££) ©

www.ncbh.com.hk

(2013: HK$604,814,000) and held-to-maturity securities of
HK$130,399,000 (2013: Nil) which are eligible to be classified as

public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

219



220

B R AR PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. BHERE @ 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)
ARERAT
The Bank
2014
BEZE
AHEERES IHAES
Available- Held-to- B R EWK
for-sale maturity Loans and st
securities securities receivables Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BELERE Sovereigns 7,764,389 - - 7,764,389
NEBAI** Public sector entities** 233,982 130,399 - 364,381
R1T R E A g s Banks and other financial
institutions 19,712,620 - - 19,712,620
NAEIEE Corporate entities 7,133,446 113,051 2,074,594 9,321,091
34,844,437 243,450 2,074,594 37,162,481
ARERTT
The Bank
2013
FHEZE
AIHEEES DEHBEES
Available- Held-to- B & FEYIK
for-sale maturity Loans and 45t
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BLER Sovereigns 6,511,281 = = 6,511,281
N VA Public sector entities** 604,814 - - 604,814
RITREAM S FE Banks and other financial
institutions 20,031,071 298 850,686 20,882,055
NI Corporate entities 7,570,450 - 833,378 8,403,828
34,717,616 298 1,684,064 36,401,978
** BREECRTE (BX) RAD) Ao BEARA AL BN HHEES o Included available-for-sale securities of HK$233,982,000

75 #233,982,0007T, (20134 : B ¥604,814,0007T) MiFH =5 H
H & #75#130,399,0007C (20134 : #) ©

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

(2013: HK$604,814,000) and held-to-maturity securities of
HK$130,399,000 (2013: Nil) which are eligible to be classified as

public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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25. BHERBRE @

BARRE 2 EFAMT

25.

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised

as follows:

AEE
The Group
2014
BEZE
At EES B AESF
Available- Held-to- B KR EWRK
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BET T BET T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
K2014%F1 818 At 1 January 2014 40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064
0 Additions 53,708,654 2,317,602 2,664,630
BE - Eb XA Disposals, redemptions and maturity (50,504,041) (561,214) (2,301,827)
Y Amortisation 1,053 47,288 42,432
NEEZ Change in fair value 557,098 - -
EX i Reclassification (263,152) 263,152 -
bE W, Z= 88 Exchange difference (1,026,909) (33,880) (14,705)
K2014%F12H31H At 31 December 2014 42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594
REH
The Group
2013
BEE
AHEES  HHBEES
Available- Held-to- EFRREYR
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262
i Additions 56,982,757 - 2,305,726
BE - EBE&EH Disposals, redemptions and maturity (54,005,892) (908,005)  (1,828,041)
e Amortisation (32,171) (5,142) 6,548
NFEEZL Change in fair value (624,520) - -
PE W =8 Exchange difference (678,398) 27,063 42,569
K2013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013 40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. BHERE @ 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)
AERAT
The Bank
2014
BEZE
AtHERES  EHBAES
Available- Held-to- B K EWK
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BET T BET T BET T
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
R2014F1 818 At 1 January 2014 34,717,616 298 1,684,064
180 Additions 51,083,464 - 2,664,630
BE - BO &3 H Disposals, redemptions and maturity (50,092,703) (298) (2,301,827)
el Amortisation (57,968) (1,774) 42,432
NEEE Change in fair value 342,209 - -
BN Reclassification (263,152) 263,152 -
PE W, =58 Exchange difference (885,029) (17,928) (14,705)
72014412 A318 At 31 December 2014 34,844,437 243,450 2,074,594
RERAT
The Bank
2013
BEE
AHHEFES  HEBEES
Available- Held-to- B KWK
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BT  BETT  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K2013F1H51H At 1 January 2013 32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262
30 Additions 55,415,150 - 2,305,726
BRE - BO &2 Disposals, redemptions and maturity (51,671,550) (587,798)  (1,828,041)
3 Amortisation (2,920) 74 6,548
AN EE Change in fair value (494,573) - -
E R =R Exchange difference (683,887) 1,197 42,569
720134 12A318 At 31 December 2013 34,717,616 298 1,684,064
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are analysed
as follows:

AEE
The Group

At E &S BEZIHARS
Available-for-sale securities Held-to-maturity securities
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BETIT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 Treasury bills 12,699,355 8,447,909 2,374,940 585,144
FE Certificates of deposit 7,897,685 7,676,885 - =
Hih Others 21,878,300 23,877,843 243,450 298
42,475,340 40,002,637 2,618,390 585,442

AERAT
The Bank

At E &S BEZIHARS
Available-for-sale securities Held-to-maturity securities
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
B Treasury bills 6,512,013 4,953,490 - -
FikE Certificates of deposit 7,897,685 7,676,885 - =
Hih Others 20,434,739 22,087,241 243,450 298
34,844,437 34,717,616 243,450 298

REBRENEFTHEE TERES Al EHEERER
PEERBEINHBER - HRAFEABK263,152,0007T
(2013%F : &) - REFHER  AEEEERRENFEIL
LEEEBLFZTHA -

www.ncbh.com.hk

The Group and the Bank reclassified certain debt securities
with fair value of HK$263,152,000 (2013: Nil) out of
available-for-sale category into held-to-maturity category
during the year. The Group had the intention and ability to
hold these reclassified debt securities until maturity at the
date of reclassification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26. BREKBLQTE

] 26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
ARERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
JEFEMIRD - WK AESEE Unlisted shares, at cost 8,171,067 8,171,067

R2014F 128318 @ REETHIB AR ZFBWOT -

The particulars of subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December

2014 are as follows:

i xS
BB % B H
Place and date
of incorporation/ SEMMEER BBRTRA BEEE IEEXK
28 operation/ Registered capital/ Interest Principal
Name registration issued share capital held activities
HERSR
Directly held:
FARERT (PE) BRARF  2007F12H14H A& A 100% $RITHHB
NGy AE#6,500,000,0007T
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Republic of China  Registered capital Banking
(China), Limited 14 December 2007 RMB6,500,000,000 business
BB ERITETERAA 19764108 22H TR 100% fEEMRTS
REE 75 #3,000,0007T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Trustee
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000 services
ENEREERERDR 1984457250 B 100% HERE
NEE 75 #£3,050,0007T
Kwong Li Nam Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment
Agency Limited 25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000 agency
FARERT (REA) BRAR 1980F8H22H BB 100% RIBABR
REE 75 #50,0007T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Nominee
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$50,000 services
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BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

27. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEE ARERAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
®1A1H At 1 January 1,174,938 1,027,083 1,126,510 979,670
by Additions 821 = 641 =
NEEWES Fair value gains 129,896 169,414 128,630 167,890
BHOE (8x)/ Reclassification (to)/
EEME =M NERE from properties, plant and
(PFi7E28) equipment (Note 28) (24,085) (22,958) 2,340 (21,050)
BE o Z=%A Exchange difference (1,299) 1,399 - -
M®12H31H At 31 December 1,280,271 1,174,938 1,258,121 1,126,510

BREME 2 FHERBHOFSGIHRITAOT -

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based
on the remaining terms of the leases as follows:

rEE AERT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBBRA Held in Hong Kong
REAME A On long-term lease
(88504 ) (over 50 years) 1,126,031 1,010,910 1,126,031 1,010,910
FREFFRAY On medium-term lease
(10F&504F) (10 — 50 years) 132,090 115,600 132,090 115,600
EBEAINEE Held outside Hong Kong
HREIFRAY On medium-term lease
(10 =50%F) (10 — 50 years) 22,150 48,428 - -
1,280,271 1,174,938 1,258,121 1,126,510

MR2014512A318 " IIREEBBRAZIREME - Tk
BB EAEME - ATHETGEERSEEERBRAAF
R2014F12A31B U AFEAEELEMETZEEMEE - A
FEEETEEEEEERFNZMER NRAMS2HEE T
EF—HEEMERDSHER

www.ncbh.com.hk

As at 31 December 2014, investment properties are included

in the balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December
2014 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each investment property in
an orderly transaction with market participants at the

measurement date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. ¥ - M ERE

28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT
AEE
The Group
BfE - BEE
R REE
Equipment,
EE fixtures and Fe
Premises fittings Total
BET T BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201451 A1 B Z2REFE Net book value at 1 January 2014 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
1% = Additions 29,233 55,763 84,996
dhes Disposals - (2,628) (2,628)
&G Revaluation 497,338 - 497,338
FEHE (FFF12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (111,813) (112,955) (224,768)
BN REEREYE Reclassification from investment
(Ft3E27) properties (Note 27) 24,085 - 24,085
PE o =%8 Exchange difference (12,911) (6,852) (19,763)
R2014512 A31 B ZBREFE Net book value at 31 December 2014 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
201412 831H At 31 December 2014
AR B E Cost or valuation 7,035,310 836,325 7,871,635
Z2FTE Accumulated depreciation - (543,138) (543,138)
R20145%12 A31 B 2 BREFE Net book value at 31 December 2014 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
FitE E 7 KAMESEEDITL T  The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
R20144F12H31H At 31 December 2014
R ANE At cost - 836,325 836,325
ZHE At valuation 7,035,310 - 7,035,310
7,035,310 836,325 7,871,635
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28. W - BMERE @) 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

rEH
The Group
=iE - EE
RiSE
Equipment,
BE fixtures and @t
Premises fittings Total
BT T PRI PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201341 A1 8 2 R HE Net book value at 1 January 2013 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
wE Additions 21,258 88,697 109,955
ank= Disposals = (5,329) (5,329)
X Revaluation 802,649 - 802,649
FEHE (MzE12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (97,703) (109,253) (206,956)
BN BEOREME Reclassification from investment properties
(FfzE27) (Note 27) 22,958 = 22,958
FEH =58 Exchange difference 13,421 7,544 20,965
MR2013F12 A31 B Z2REFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
72013412 H31H At 31 December 2013
PENEERRYE Cost or valuation 6,609,378 835,072 7,444,450
REtihe Accumulated depreciation = (475,213) (475,213)
R2013F12 A31 B 2REFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
B E 7 ERAESEES TN : The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
%N At cost = 835,072 835,072
i E At valuation 6,609,378 - 6,609,378
6,609,378 835,072 7,444,450

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. ¥ > BEMRRE )

28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

RKERAT
The Bank
BE - EE
B
Equipment,
EZE fixtures and st
Premises fittings Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2014%1 A1 B 2 EEEE Net book value at 1 January 2014 6,120,781 71,186 6,191,967
1% = Additions 28,708 10,459 39,167
HeE Disposals - (1,388) (1,388)
&G Revaluation 461,405 - 461,405
FEFE Depreciation for the year (89,427) (20,240) (109,667)
EFOBESINENE Reclassification to investment properties
(PFtaE27) (Note 27) (2,340) - (2,340)
bE 5 =%A Exchange difference - 1 1
MR2014%F12 A31 B Z BREFE Net book value at 31 December 2014 6,519,127 60,018 6,579,145
201412 831H At 31 December 2014
AR B E Cost or valuation 6,519,127 248,234 6,767,361
REtine Accumulated depreciation - (188,216) (188,216)
R20145F12 A31 B 2 BREFE Net book value at 31 December 2014 6,519,127 60,018 6,579,145
FitE E 7 KAMESEEDITL T  The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
R20144F12H31H At 31 December 2014
BKAE At cost - 248,234 248,234
ZHE At valuation 6,519,127 - 6,519,127
6,519,127 248,234 6,767,361
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

ARERIT
The Bank
=iE - EE
RiSET
Equipment,
BE fixtures and et
Premises fittings Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1 A1 ZEmEFE Net book value at 1 January 2013 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
BE Additions 21,019 15,824 36,843
He Disposals = (1,296) (1,296)
R Revaluation 775,889 - 775,889
FENE Depreciation for the year (79,082) (22,601) (101,683)
B RERREYE Reclassification from investment properties
(F¥7E27) (Note 27) 21,050 - 21,050
MEH ZRE Exchange difference = 3 3
MR2013F12 A31 B Z EEFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,120,781 71,186 6,191,967
72013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
AR B E Cost or valuation 6,120,781 262,876 6,383,657
ZREtine Accumulated depreciation = (191,690) (191,690)
R2013F12 A31H ZBREFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,120,781 71,186 6,191,967
FitEE 7 KAMESEED TR : The analysis of cost or valuation of the
above assets is as follows:
K2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013
R ANE At cost = 262,876 262,876
i E At valuation 6,120,781 = 6,120,781
6,120,781 262,876 6,383,657

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. ¥% - |BMERRE @ 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
FBEZEREBEZRBNFIGIHARSTOT The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the

remaining terms of the leases as follows:

FEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT BETTT BETT ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRE Held in Hong Kong
REIFAL (HBiB505) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,928,200 4,594,346 4,928,200 4,594,346
HEIF Y (105 250%F) On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 1,589,216 1,524,730 1,589,216 1,524,730
TERBUAINGE Held outside Hong Kong
FHEIFEA) (10 =504F) On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 499,608 472,697 1,711 1,705
REBALY (DR10F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 18,286 17,605 - =
7,035,310 6,609,378 6,519,127 6,120,781

R2014%F 128318 " 3R EEBBRAZEE ' MKES As at 31 December 2014, premises are included in the
NVEFRAEME —ATHEHMEEREEEREGR ATV balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December
2014F12A31A AT BEAELEFET 2 EE(E - A F 2014 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm

BIEASEEAEEAMERRNER T AMERXEERE of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
S—THAREEINEREE - Services Limited. The fair value represents the price that

would be received to sell each premises in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement
date.

BELGIZEGRER  NEBRERAETZEEHEZZSH:ER As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes

REBRARIT Y EESHEBRBEZRERNOT ¢ in value of the Group’s and the Bank's premises were
recognised in the Group’s and the Bank's premises
revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:

Py | AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EiEESMEE 2 EMEE  Increase in valuation credited
to premises revaluation reserve 495,305 794,564 461,405 775,889
ERkharcENEE Increase in valuation credited
to income statement 2,033 8,085 - -
497,338 802,649 461,405 775,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. W% - BEMERE @ 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (cCont'd)
2014512 A31H » REFEERKABENRK R E7 As at 31 December 2014, the net book value of premises

R AEERARITZEEARRANZEEREFEES A that would have been included in the Group’s and the

#75%625,329,0007T (20134 : &#557,532,0007T) K& Bank’s balance sheets had the premises been carried at

#5294,247,0007T (20134 : B#244,564,0007T) ° cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$625,329,000
(2013: HK$557,532,000) and HK$294,247,000 (2013:
HK$244,564,000) respectively.

29. HihEE 29. OTHER ASSETS
REE ARERAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT ok e BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I [B1& Repossessed assets 4,664 32,234 583 27,990
BB Precious metals 11,691 = - =
FEUERIE R FE S B Accounts receivable and prepayments 997,089 3,709,361 781,965 3,504,449
1,013,444 3,741,595 782,548 3,532,439
300 AV EZEFAERZEMEAE 30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
REERARRIT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RBUEBEE Trading liabilities
—NEESEBRESFER — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 4,970,693 4,433,736

M2014F12A31BREARERANATFEEZLGFTAEBERZE At 31 December 2014, there is no financial liabilities
REE (2013128318 : &) - designated at fair value through profit or loss (2013: Nil).

www.nch.com.hk #1795 7% 4645 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT &3 231



232

B R AR PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

31. BEFERRETE

(a) EFEX

31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING

(a) Deposits from customers

rEE FERAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BB BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FR - FEREMER Current, savings and other deposit
(RNBEBEBR) accounts (per balance sheets) 209,633,935 198,160,417 145,870,627 131,724,586
vyl Analysed by:
BN R R A RER Demand deposits and current accounts
/NG — corporate 17,677,460 15,518,333 8,167,711 7,474,781
— @A — personal 2,519,367 2,377,882 2,154,715 1,950,687
20,196,827 17,896,215 10,322,426 9,425,468
FEER Savings deposits
— AA] — corporate 16,662,177 17,170,844 14,286,559 15,217,838
— @A — personal 34,635,346 34,145,500 33,090,537 32,679,064
51,297,523 51,316,344 47,377,096 47,896,902
EH - BERBATR Time, call and notice deposits
— AA] — corporate 74,389,992 66,014,321 45,034,361 33,237,498
— @A - personal 63,749,593 62,933,537 43,136,744 41,164,718
138,139,585 128,947,858 88,171,105 74,402,216
209,633,935 198,160,417 145,870,627 131,724,586

(b) HHEF
HGINEEFREL

M2014F12A831H A"EEBREHo ARETED
BB 17 % A& & 75 %1,393,565,0007C (20134 : & &
1,431,965,0007T) A% T HE  BUASESHEINEIEFIRE o

RERLEEBIE D 2 WA LB RN EERATER (2013

FE) o
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(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2014, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$1,393,565,000
(2013: HK$1,431,965,000) were designated as a hedging
instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign

operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion
recognised in the income statement during the year (2013:

Nil).

www.ncbh.com.hk
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32. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND

PROVISIONS
AEME AER1T
The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
H b RRIE Other accounts payable 15,101,242 15,163,133 2,376,838 4,173,605
S fH Provisions 80,724 66,368 48,840 48,840
15,181,966 15,229,501 2,425,678 4,222,445

33. BIEHEE 33. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

MR20145F12A318 - REBERARITZ2BEH BEE
6,532,608,0007T (20134 : /B#54,148,807,0007T) 2 ATFEHA
FRRERGURNBEE 2 EEEERR - It AEEBBE
& BB ENESTE S R EEER 2 8 & R5%2,090,606,000
JC (20134 : B%#51,268,641,0007T) ° AEE K AEITAER
hEaEMERZ EESRE ABHS,677,155,0007T (20134 :
& #55,454,505,0007T) N 7 #6,541,300,0007C (20134 :
#4,155,616,00070) * WEBR [RZEEH] - [AIHE L EFE
H| [REZ2IEHEES] K [BZEE] AV -

www.ncbh.com.hk

As at 31 December 2014, liabilities of the Group and
the Bank both amounting to HK$6,532,608,000 (2013:
HK$4,148,807,000) were secured by assets deposited with
central depositories to facilitate settlement operations.
In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$2,090,606,000 (2013: HK$1,268,641,000)
secured by debt securities and bills related to sale and
repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged
by the Group and the Bank to secure these liabilities
was HK$8,677,155,000 (2013: HK$5,454,505,000) and
HK$6,541,300,000 (2013: HK$4,155,616,000) mainly
included in

were

“Trading securities”, “Available-for-sale

securities”, “Held-to-maturity securities” and “Trade bills”.
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34. EEHIH

BELERBAESRBETEGHERE 12K [AEHR] E - L&
EABZRBERERENBRRARAEMRE 2 TRHEE
RAVEER o

BERERNZBLHE (X)) BEZEMAA  URK
EEERNZEBOT

MEHTE
%HE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet, and the movements during
the year are as follows:

AEH
The Group
2014
Hitt g e
HEE
NEER HEER Other
Property &  Impairment  temporary ECHY
revaluation Losses  allowances  differences Total

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20141718 At 1 January 2014 26,417 1,020,816 (412) (218,279) (115,828) 712,714
it /(&) MR Charged/(credited) to income
(FigzE15) statement (Note 15) 4,489 325 412 (43,489) (10,846) (49,109)
EER ke Charged to other comprehensive
income - 70,286 - - 95,845 166,131
B ERE Exchange difference - (1,363) - 3,598 2,331 4,566
#2014%12 8318 At 31 December 2014 30,906 1,090,064 - (258,170) (28,498) 834,302
REE
The Group
2013
MRAE H R
bk HEB
Accelerated MEER AEER Other
tax Property BB Impairment temporary EH
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances differences Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2013461718 At 1 January 2013 22,308 897,086 (297) (165,095) 24,651 778,653
#32/(ER) BER Charged/(credited) to income
(PizE15) statement (Note 15) 4,113 2,864 (115) (50,716) (21,687) (65,541)
{3 /(&3) Bfb2EKE  Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income - 119,553 - - (117,817) 1,736
ERERE Exchange difference (&) 1,313 - (2,468) (975) (2,134)
®2013%12A8318 At 31 December 2013 26,417 1,020,816 (412) (218,279) (115,828) 712,714

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§
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34. EEBIE (@) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)
AEAT
The Bank
2014
MEHTE Hi g
SHRE HEH
Accelerated MEER HEEE Other
tax Property Impairment temporary @zt
depreciation revaluation allowances differences Total
BYT T BET T BT T BYT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1201451718 At 1 January 2014 26,417 961,172 (98,192) (32,660) 856,737
i /(8id) WaR Charged/(credited) to income
statement 4,489 (34) 12,614 - 17,069
Al G Charged to other comprehensive
income - 61,945 - 42,123 104,068
R2014%F12F318 At 31 December 2014 30,906 1,023,083 (85,578) 9,463 977,874
ARFAT
The Bank
2013
EFE Hib 8k
EHE =%
Accelerated MEEL WEER Other
tax Property Impairment temporary Bt
depreciation revaluation allowances differences Total
BT BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 22,509 843,724 (97,635) 50,231 818,829
i /(Ei) WHER Charged/(credited) to income
statement 3,908 2,671 (546) 191 6,224
it /(83) B2 ®Ekz  Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income - 114,777 - (83,082) 31,695
EiHzaE Exchange difference - - (11) = (11)
12013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 26,417 961,172 (98,192) (32,660) 856,737

www.ncbh.com.hk
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34. EERIE (@)

BERERNATKRERBEERRARBARGEERE - ME
RIS MR — B RS - BURTHSERDE A BEE B IR E B
HELHRBRBEERRE - MIGEEERARRAIIEK .S
o ERfABEEERLS

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the balance sheet:

236

AEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T ST T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERIBEEE Deferred tax assets (152,171) (152,831) - -
FEEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 986,473 865,545 977,874 856,737
834,302 712,714 977,874 856,737
rEE ZRER1T
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEFLIEE B Deferred tax assets to be recovered
(BB 1218 A& M m) after more than twelve months (120,745) (75,628) - -
EEFHRIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
(EBiB121E A& =) after more than twelve months 977,010 898,205 968,411 889,397
856,265 822,577 968,411 889,397

20145128318 « AEE RARITHRME S T KM RE
RIEEF A& E 2 B 15818 /B %2,552,0007T (20134 :
7 #1,260,0007T) & £ (20134 : # #1,130,0007T) £
FASERANRITEEREBARNEBSREAEM2,552,000
70 (20134 : 7 #130,000T) & & (201346 : #/) - A&
EERABITRAEFANIEENEGBSEAE (20134F : B
1,130,0007T) °

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Bank has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$2,552,000 (2013: HK$1,260,000) and Nil
(2013: HK$1,130,000) which is considered unlikely to be
utilised. Of the amount, HK$2,552,000 (2013: HK$130,000)
for the Group and Nil (2013: Nil) for the Bank have no expiry
date and Nil (2013: HK$1,130,000) for the Group and the
Bank is scheduled to expire within five years.

www.ncbh.com.hk
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35. BRZA 35. SHARE CAPITAL
2014 2013
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
JRRE Authorised:
BREAEE1007T 2 T A% Ordinary shares of HK$100 each - 700,000
BEEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000/% & i@ A% 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 700,000

BAER2014F3 A3 £ EF S (R AHEFD) (F622F)
AEBRANESTBEE - MIKBE1350 - NBTHRG
MTABAEE " M2014F3A3EMBRA R ER B &0 &
AR o 1 iBE S E 2T 2 BB ARITEMKE 2186

RN EZE -

36. f#fE

REBRARTZAFEREFHREESBRESBERD A
BNFNEMAZHGARGEHRIEREHE -

www.ncbh.com.hk

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622),
which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept
of authorised share capital no longer exists. In accordance
with section 135, the Bank'’s shares no longer have a par
value. The balance of the share premium account as at 3
March 2014 has been transferred to share capital. There is
no impact on the number of shares in issue or the relative
entitlement of any of the member of the Bank as a result
of this transition.

36. RESERVES

The Group’s and the Bank’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement
of changes in equity respectively on pages 41 to 44 of the
financial statements.
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37. RERERERWE 37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT
(a) RERVNERBAKLERSZRAHER (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to
operating cash inflow before taxation
2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TS ] Operating profit 3,237,130 3,186,320
e Depreciation 224,768 206,956
BT Net charge of impairment allowances 904,294 369,967
YT IR R (B ZE 1 o] % Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (211) (2,594)
EMEE 2 B (kR B EE) Advances written off net of recoveries (372,677) (108,238)
REHA A #8318 A 2 F#R17%  Change in balances with banks and other financial
Hith & miErnasen 2 & institutions with original maturity over three months 1,769,870 (1,863,602)
JREHA B #BA3ME A 2 FER1T & Change in placements with banks and other financial
Hibh &g 2 EHERZ & institutions with original maturity over three months 1,698,994 (1,728,068)
N EE L ABRz eRMEE Change in financial assets at fair value through
2 EE profit or loss (1,902,773) 1,511,233
PTESMTE &) Change in derivative financial instruments 4,731 139,673
ER & EMERIE 2 & Change in advances and other accounts (9,089,140) (17,561,952)
BERE 2 &) Change in investment in securities (5,076,011) (1,576,105)
HEhEE 7 EE Change in other assets 2,728,151 (2,299,297)
RITRE M S RikiE 2 F X k48 Change in deposits and balances from banks and
2 & other financial institutions 8,889,582 8,583,958
N EE L ABRzeRMEE Change in financial liabilities at fair value through
2 EE) profit or loss 536,957 (541,337)
BEEFERZEH Change in deposits from customers 11,473,518 12,626,700
ﬁ{ﬁgﬁﬁlﬁ)}/ﬁﬁz rrrrrr ) Change in other accounts and provisions (47,535) 5,230,516
[EXREHH) v & Effect of changes in exchange rates 695,114 (247,044)
BRI EIR B ZRA Operating cash inflow before taxation 15,674,762 5,927,086
AR 2HeRERBIE Cash flows from operating activities included:
— B F & — Interest received 9,741,510 8,834,527
— BAFE — Interest paid (4,664,043) (3,811,186)
— 2R B — Dividend received 9,345 7,975

238  #1i$ @ %44 o« NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT £# www.ncb.com.hk



BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

37. ZREBRERERMT @ 37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) BERZFRBRLSEELEFIN (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
2014 2013
BET T BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BERFRSERINAAEIMEAANZ  Cash and balances with banks and other financial
FHERTT R E ftb & R IE A 45 54 institutions with original maturity within three months 45,667,954 30,354,603
REHABE3E AN ERITR Placements with banks and other financial institutions
E b & ghiiE 2 T BT AR with original maturity within three months 3,464,730 4,928,974
REHBEIEARNZES Treasury bills with original maturity within three months 3,168,387 3,724,988
52,301,071 39,008,565

38. HARBBERKIE

FRBERAEN2REREARTRLERZEERBRNEA
WIETAMARE  HEBRERRFIZAaOBEREEERR N

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of
each significant class of contingent liability and commitment

RSB and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the Completion Instructions for
the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio:

FEE BT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T ST T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HEZEERIER Direct credit substitutes 23,145,228 15,907,292 121,498 269,382

B FEBZSABE Transaction-related contingencies 2,571,980 5,484,250 718,699 565,013

HESHEENEMZ Trade-related and other

KARE contingencies 12,698,674 11,870,541 2,597,679 3,477,038

T BB EE Commitments that are

BiH 2 e unconditionally cancellable

without prior notice 68,666,899 71,071,494 25,258,247 20,945,416

H At 3 - Other commitments with

JREEAH & an original maturity of
—1FEH AT — up to one year 1,158,435 567,314 1,158,435 567,314
—1FE — over one year 4,673,119 5,245,225 4,112,747 4,825,980
112,914,335 110,146,116 33,967,305 30,650,143
SRl 2 € Credit risk-weighted amount 16,759,631 14,703,603 2,757,654 3,207,548

www.ncbh.com.hk

#1195 7% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT %

239



B R AR PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

38. ABBREALE &) 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

EERBRINESRERRIE (RITE (BX) HAD FHE - 1t# The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance

HHARR ZHEF 2 BN RSEEH 2 IR - with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent
upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.

39. EXEE 39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
REERARRITANMBRERPBEE 2 ERRESHNAT The Group and the Bank have the following outstanding
capital commitments not provided for in the financial
statements:
rEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHLE KRB AEREE Authorised and contracted for but
not provided for 20,086 2,879 16,257 2,169
BEHERREL Authorised but not contracted for 60 725 - =
20,146 3,604 16,257 2,169

A EERALARE D BB 2 BRI R - AREE The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments
B2 EFRE TR ZH&IE - to purchase computer equipment and software, and to
renovate the Group’s premises.
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(@) fEREBA

RETAHE 2 KREHERLN » THAAREERAKRRITRE
ERMEEAEMAX N ZRERS
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(@) As lessee

The Group and the Bank have commitments to make
the following future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases:

rEE ARERT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T REF Land and buildings
— TNBiBE1F — not later than one year 248,005 234,147 51,918 43,249
— 1A EESFR — later than one year but not
later than five years 698,705 704,338 89,405 50,272
— 51 — later than five years 225,768 322,987 3,195 9,304
1,172,478 1,261,472 144,518 102,825
H e Other commitments
— NE@E1E - not later than one year 915 420 _ _
— 1A EZEFR — later than one year but not
later than five years 250 323 - -
1,173,643 1,262,215 144,518 102,825
(b) ERHEA (b) As lessor

REBTAHE 2 KLEHERLN  TIAREERARITEM
BRI ANZAKABREEZ RIEEKES ¢

The Group and the Bank have contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases:

AEME RERAT

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T RAEF Land and buildings
— NiEBid14 — not later than one year 46,783 48,571 45,810 43,904
— 1A EESFA — later than one year but not

later than five years 25,986 53,436 25,986 52,437
72,769 102,007 71,796 96,341

REENKLERSETABLREDE (M5227)  HEFH
BERIVFEIF - BORK - RERBEERIFRES °

www.ncbh.com.hk

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 27) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases typically for a
period from one to three years. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.
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41. EFA
AEETEHZEEBTATEENRERRRE - HER
ERREERAEENEEHLEHER -

HREFRAANKE A HARAELA N RTE L EFH
RS EMBEIR  BEARHHERERRREFHEX
B -

42. DEHE
(a) HREEHE

AEBEBFOSLEEZLME
7 MEXBRIRE -

DRI EARTT - RER

BARITNEERITEFR RO SR EORITRSE - EA
RITEBRERBEARS - MERRITEBREZREIEE
ABP - ERPEEBR BTEZEERIN  EARETER
SEMNER REBER - MEMINEHA - BWEXEBKHFIE
BEASENBMEGHMER  SEMERGRERES - W&
WHE B A SRTT AN R ERTT RIS AR A MU F FUE B AT EUS Y
BS BUERBBR L ENEERHTEREEANNESER
EBREHIEE - EAKZ2INMERXBREER 2858
BREBRzENKXZS  BEEEEAREHNLRARBRE
BERZENEE BF 2 - TAIAEHE XK RS &K E
HEERBEHLE) -
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41. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and
counterclaims by various independent parties. These claims
and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial
activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and
counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group
has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments,
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and
Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide
general banking services. Personal Banking serves individual
customers while Corporate Banking deals with non-individual
customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing
the capital, liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign
exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. It provides funds to other business segments and
receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal
Banking and Corporate Banking. These inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer
pricing mechanism of the Group. The assets and liabilities
of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the effect of
inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the
assets and liabilities information about Treasury).

www.ncbh.com.hk



42. DEHBE @)
(a) BREESE®)

BREBRAKENFEMEMS IR EMMERNRE - HRME
AAKENYE  BEEBRTEERREFHROTIGER
AREXBRNER BAKEWNBERF —BE (PE)
ZEASMEERERERSERERNERREZH  C8
BRUEB DA °

[Hfh | REEEMZERTERERASERREEAEHK
{EEB AR R IRE

—(ARBRHOBAR S - T2 EEEKRBRZEBRD
HE - EREERER  SRESEEEHRD -

014 BXEBRESNEBEIARDEEE - BREH
HEBBFERER - T EEFRAMBROKS - S5HE
ABRTT » DRBITRMERBROFNSWMANRL RSB
* o

www.ncbh.com.hk
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) By operating segment (Cont'd)

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by
supporting units. Charges are paid to this segment from
other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The
exchange difference arising from capital of our subsidiary,
NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“QOthers” refers to other group operations and mainly
comprises of items related to the Group as a whole and
totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly
include items directly attributable to the segment. For
management overheads, allocations are made on reasonable
bases.

In 2014, liquidity term premium was introduced into
inter-segment funding. No revision has been made to the
comparative figures. However, if the same mechanism was
applied last year, it is estimated that the change in net
interest income of Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and
Treasury would not be considered as material.
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42. DEHE @)
(a) BREESE B

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(a) By operating segment (Cont'd)

158
The Group
2014
BARST  LEBA
Personal  Corporate  FTEEH kg it N ABHEH &a
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated
BeTn  EETn EMTn BT B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERA /() Net interest income/(expense)
— K - external (418,490) 2,750,511 2,858,028 - - 5,190,049 - 5,190,049
-EEG - inter-segment 1,307,961 (114,871)  (1,193,090) - - - - -
889,471 2,635,640 1,664,938 - - 5,190,049 - 5,190,049
FRBBERALMA /(H)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 538,300 623,126 94,697 95 (1,492) 1,254,726 - 1,254,726
FRatkE /(58 Net trading gain/(loss) 50406 105572 (125113)  (22,424) 47 8,858 - 8,858
ATBNATER I ABE  Net loss on financial instruments designated
LEBTAFEE at fair value through profit or loss - - (7,958) - - (7,958) - (7,958)
e mAE TG Net gain on other financial assets - 28,888 93,642 - - 122,530 - 122,530
HARMA Other operating income 140 174 - 143 13,780 188451  (117643) 70,808
REHER G Net operating income before impairment
A+ 3-1/0N allowances 1478317 3,393,400 1,720,206 152,028 12,705 6,756,656 (117,643) 6,639,013
HEERFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (45,453)  (858,841) - - - (904,29) - (904,29)
FEEUA Net operating income 1432864 2534559 1720206 152,028 12705 5852362  (117,643) 5734719
BETH Operating expenses (63907) (1257493) (301253  (04538)  (88041) (261523) 117643  (2,497,589)
BE%H /(KB Operating profit/(loss) 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 (52,510) (75,336) 3,237,130 - 331,130
REMENTEEEZFME  Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 129,896 - 129,896 - 129,896
HE /BfEME BN REE  Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
L3R properties, plant and equipment - - - (347) - (347) - (347)
BN/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 77,039 (75,336) 3,366,679 - 3,366,679
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 33,101,750 132,582,987 129,285,776 8,717,158 216,582 303,904,253 - 303,904,253
1| Liabilities
PEaE Segment liabilities 103,437,642 120,438,397 43,259,903 7582 1,865,885 269,009,409 - 269,009,409
HhEH Other information
BN Capital expenditure - - - 85,817 - 85,817 - 85,817
bk Depreciation 10,350 5,705 982 204,528 3,203 224,768 - 224,768
ooy 3 Amortisation of securities - - 90,773 - - 90,773 - 90,773
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

() REESE(H) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
158
The Group
2013
AT  £XEA
Personal ~ Corporate  BTE%H $3 i Nt BRHEH )
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
AT AT ABTn A% BEfr  BETrn B%Tn T
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERA /() Net interest income/(expense)
— K - external (597519)  2,9446% 2,343,989 - - 4,691,166 - 4,691,166
- BER - inter-segment 1,435,071 (374,646)  (1,060,425) - - - - -
837,552 2,570,050 1,283,564 - - 4,691,166 - 4,691,166
FRBERMLMA /(H)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 418917 565,333 25,641 173 (1,439) 1,008,625 - 1,008,625
ERalE /(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 37,976 116,764 94,749 (152,278) 10 97,221 - 97,221
REANATER AR Netloss on financial instruments designated
LEBTAFEE at fair value through profit or loss - - (16,193) - - (16,193) - (16,193)
HrdRaE s Net gain on other financial assets = 21,04 31,92 = = 52,496 = 52,496
HiRINA Other operating income 123 59 - 148438 674 173204 (97824) 75470
RRAEE R 2 P2 Net operating income/(expense) before
WA/ (%) impairment allowances 1294568 3273410 1,419,053 (3,667) 23,245 6,006,609 (97,824) 5,908,785
HEERFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (40,580)  (329,387) - - - (369,967) - (369,967)
BEERA /(XiE) Net operating income/(expense) 1253988 2944023 1,419,053 (3,667) 23245 5,636,642 (97,824) 5538818
EETH Operating expenses (751,369)  (1,144,769) (387,541) (97,468) (69,175  (2,450,322) 97,824 (2,352,493
BERF/(FE) Operating profit/(loss) 502,619 1,799,254 1,031,512 (101,135) (45,930) 3,186,320 - 3,186,320
REMENTEEEZFME  Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 169,414 - 169,414 = 169,414
HE /EfENE  EMERE  Netgain from disposalirevaluation of
il properties, plant and equipment - - - 3476 - 3476 = 3476
BEAER/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 50,619 179925 1031512 7175 @45.930) 3359210 - 3359200
&E Assets
NHEE Segment assets 28,853,019 128,704,708 114,367,231 8,238,515 220,487 280,383,960 - 280,383,960
af Liabilities
AHaE Segment liabilities 101,329,458 108,918,619 36,005,345 7225 1,822,824 248,083,971 - 248,083,971
HhEH Other information
BRER Capital expenditure - - - 109,955 - 109,955 - 109,955
ik Depreciation 26,990 56,140 23,021 97,703 3,102 206,956 - 206,956
BHEH Amortisation of securities - - (30,765) - - (30,765) - (30,765)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHE @) 42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(H) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
Kgf
The Bank
2014

AR LEBA

Personal  Corporate  FTEXH kg it N ABHEH &a
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations ~ Consolidated
E¥Tn  AMTr  BRTR E%Tn BRfn  ERTn ERTn BRTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERA /() Net interest income/(expense)
— IR - external (273,991) 1,627,764 1,749,897 - - 3,103,670 - 3,103,670
-EEG - inter-segment 871,057 (96,022)  (775,035) - - - - -
597,066 1,531,742 974,862 - - 3,103,670 - 3,103,670
FRBBRIESUA /() Net fee and commission incomeflexpense) 474165 380004 (7.979) - (149) 84469 - 4A6%
FRatkE /(58) Net trading gain/(loss) 46,746 45,101 (64,037) - 47 28,227 - 28,227
ATBNATER I ABE  Netloss on financial instruments designated
LEBTAFEE at fair value through profit or loss - - (7,958) - - (7,958) - (7,958)
EMSwEELE (BE),/IE Net (loss)/gain on other financial assets - (15,405) 93,642 - - 78,237 - 78,237
TN Other operating income 140 174 - 7316 22 173652 (117,643) 56,009
RRAEEER 2 P2 Net operating income/(expense) before
WA/ (%) impairment allowances 118,117 1,941,616 988,530 173,116 (853) 4,220,526 (117,643) 4,102,883
HEEEE () /RE Net (charge)/credit of impairment allowances (15,993) 34,574 - - - 18,581 - 18,581
FEEWA /(ZH) Net operating income/(expense) 1,102,124 1,976,190 988,530 173,116 (853) 4239107 (117,643) 4,121,464
mExi Operating expenses (560,990)  (402,244)  (67,051)  (89.427)  (88,041) (1,207753) 117,643  (1,090,110)
BERF /(5B Operating profit/(loss) 541,134 1,573,946 921,479 83,689 (88,804) 3,031,354 - 3,031,354
REMENTEEEZFME  Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 128,630 - 128,630 - 128,630
HE /EfEME SN REE  Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
JEEE properties, plant and equipment - - - (1122) - (1122) - (1122)
BN/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 541,134 1,573,946 921,479 211,197 (88,894) 3,158,862 - 3,158,862
BE Assets
HHEE Segment assets 20,312,401 87,557,320 73,442,969 16,084,689 16,481 197,413,860 - 197,413,860
af Liabilities
PHaE Segment liabilities 80,438,461 67,718,962 15,411,315 7582 1,387,346 164,963,666 - 164,963,666
HthEH Other information
YN Capital expenditure - - - 39,808 - 39,808 - 39,808
bk Depreciation 10,350 5,705 982 89,427 3,203 109,667 - 109,667
ooy 3 Amortisation of securities - - (17,310) - - (17,310) - (17,310)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. FE®RE @) 42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(H) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
Af
The Bank
2013
(1A G2 40
Personal ~ Corporate  BTE%H $3 i Nt BRHEH )
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated

A%t RETn  AWTR  ARTR A%Tn BETn AWt ARTR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FHERA /() Net interest income/(expense)
— 4Nk - external (249,151) 1,696,893 1428370 - - 2876112 - 2876,112
- BER - inter-segment 813,473 (80,0900  (733,383) - - - - -
564322 1616803 694,987 - - 2876112 - 2876112
FRBERALMA /(H)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 411,886 351,673 (6,329) - (1,439) 755,291 - 755,291
ERgllE /(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 25,851 62,141 19,278 (742) 10 106,538 - 106,538
REANATER[ T AEE  Netloss on financial instruments designated
LEBTAFEE at fair value through profit or loss - - (16,193) - - (16,193) - (16,193)
e mEE TG Net gain on other financial assets - - 22,303 - - 22,303 - 22,303
HigRNA Other operating income 121 27 - 146,700 559 147,407 (97,824) 49,583
RRAEE R 2 P2 Net operating income/(expense) before
WA/ (%) impairment allowances 1,002,180 2,030,644 713,546 145,958 (870) 3,891,458 (97,824) 3,793,634
EEETRE Net charge of impairment allowances (12,151) (28,577) - - - (40,728) - (40,728)
EEEWA /(XH) Net operating income/(expense) 990,029 2,002,067 713,546 145,958 (870) 3,850,730 (97,824) 3,752,906
EETH Operating expenses (510,799) (391,915) (54,139) (79,083) (69,175)  (1,105,111) 97,824 (1,007,287
BE%H/(58) Operating profit(loss) 9230 161005 639407 66815 (0045 2745619 - 25619
REMENTEEEZFME  Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 167,890 - 167,890 = 167,890
HE /EfEME SN REE  Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
JEEE properties, plant and equipment - - - (1,265) - (1,265) - (1,265)
BN/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 479,230 1,610,152 659,407 233,500 (70,045) 2,912,244 - 291244
&E Assets
PHEE Segment assets 18,393,275 81,867,045 63,240,738 15,553,575 16,068 179,071,301 - 179,071,301
af Liabilities
AHaE Segment liabilities 77,300,761 56,094,120 14,488,430 6,720 1,247,059 149,137,09% - 149,137,09
HhEH Other information
YN Capital expenditure - - - 36,843 - 36,843 - 36,843
il Depreciation 11,598 6,976 924 79,083 3,102 101,683 - 101,683
BHEH Amortisation of securities - - 3,702 - - 3,702 - 3,702
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHE @)
(b) BHEEHES

ATEREREMNBARNEEZES X MDA - MBEARRT
ZER - AKBEAERRREAIREECRZDTTAELD

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(b)

By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal
places of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of

5 the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
reporting the results or booking the assets:
A%E
The Group
2014 2013
REURE REUR(E
EHERZ EHRIZ
FREWA RBEIA
Net operating Net operating
income income
before BRBE AT F before BR A5 Al A
impairment  Profit before impairment Profit before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 4,059,329 3,149,295 3,754,292 2,899,990
AR B A Mainland of China 2,535,739 207,655 2,111,161 443,766
Hity Others 43,945 9,729 43,332 15,454
&% Total 6,639,013 3,366,679 5,908,785 3,359,210
iy L |
The Group
2014
HAREE
AR
HmafE ¥ REBEE  Contingent
mEE Total Non-current liabilities and
Total assets liabilities assets commitments
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 184,505,742 162,047,271 7,835,833 33,849,154
B At Mainland of China 116,624,065 104,331,044 775,587 78,941,179
HAh Others 2,774,446 2,631,094 2,349 124,002
= Total 303,904,253 269,009,409 8,613,769 112,914,335
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(b) ZHEEHBS (&)

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

rEE
The Group
2013
HAREE
i
BafRE FmBEE Contingent
BEE Total Non-current liabilities and
Total assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 164,667,896 146,467,458 7,343,360 30,381,110
B A Mainland of China 112,857,400 99,487,847 830,096 79,638,140
Hit Others 2,858,664 2,128,666 3,467 126,866
S Total 280,383,960 248,083,971 8,176,923 110,146,116
ARAT
The Bank
2014 2013
REURE REUR(E
EERZ ‘?‘iﬁﬁfz
FREWA FHEEA
Net operating Net operatlng
income income
before BRBE AT F before PR A A A
impairment  Profit before impairment Profit before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 4,059,238 3,149,213 3,747,959 2,893,422
mR B A3 Mainland of China (300) (80) 2,343 3,368
Hity Others 43,945 9,729 43,332 15,454
At Total 4,102,883 3,158,862 3,793,634 2,912,244

www.ncbh.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHE @)

(b) WEEHRES (&)

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

FERAT
The Bank

2014
RREE
MAEE
mafms ¥REBEE  Contingent
HEE Total  Non-current liabilities and
Total assets liabilities assets commitments
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 194,639,414 162,328,311 7,835,833 33,843,303
Hith Others 2,774,446 2,635,355 2,349 124,002
B Total 197,413,860 164,963,666 7,838,182 33,967,305

RIRTT

The Bank

2013
KABE
FAAE
BAE FERBEE Contingent
BEE Total Non-current liabilities and
Total assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 175,682,048 146,647,568 7,343,360 30,448,151
B A3 Mainland of China 530,589 360,862 = 75,126
Hity Others 2,858,664 2,128,666 3,467 126,866
&t Total 179,071,301 149,137,096 7,346,827 30,650,143
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43. SR IR ZIEHE 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

TRINTAEED K - LT FREE RIHEMELS The following tables present details of the Group's financial

AR S TAFS instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements:

piN-4: |
The Group
2014
REEAE
Bk R
EERSR REEEE AEREEEERTEHZ
BEAE RAGIRH HELE
EREZeR Gross SBMEETFHE Related amounts not set off in
BEMBE  amountsof Netamounts the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  of financial BlEZ
amounts of financial assets Befa
recognised  liabilities set  presented in SRIA Cash
financial off inthe  the balance Financial collateral FE
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount

BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BE Assets
fTEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 59,439 - 59,439 (26,746) - 32,693
HihBE Other assets 1,389,548 (1,094,061) 295,487 - - 295,487
st Total 1,448,987 (1,094,061) 354,926 (26,746) - 328,180
F5E
The Group
2014
REESE
FPEHEZ
BRASH REEER AEREESBRTEHZ
EELE RATIRH HESHE
ERZSH Gross SMEMEFE Related amounts not set off in
BE%E  amountsof Net amounts the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  of financial BEAZ
amounts of financial liabilities Bef@
recognised assets set off  presented in $RIA Cash
financial in the balance  the balance Financial collateral BE
liabilities sheet sheet  instruments received  Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BRI BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=15 Liabilities
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 174,708 - 174,708 (26,746) - 147,962
HEiBE Other liabilities 1,128,061 (1,094,061) 34,000 - - 34,000
st Total 1,302,769 (1,094,061) 208,708 (26,746) - 181,962
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43. €I B2 @)

43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

R5E
The Group
2013
REEBRE
RPHHZ
ERASH REERE RAREERBRTEHZ
AEEE RAFITH) HELE
Gross amounts ~ £EIAEFE  Related amounts not set off in
BH#R  of recognised Net amounts of the balance sheet
CHEAELR financial ~financial assets Bz
Gross amounts  liabilities set off ~ presented in $EBTA Befm
of recognised in the balance ~ the balance Financial ~ Cash collateral et
financial assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
fThEemTIA Derivative financial instruments 82,212 - 82,212 (27,605) - 54,607
HitEE Other assets 1,193,321 (883,177) 310,144 = = 310,144
st Total 1,275,533 (883,177) 392,356 (27,605) - 364,751
K5E
The Group
2013
REERE
Gk REERE
ERASH FHIITE  REREEABRTEHL
EESE <REETE HELE
BHR Gross  Net amounts  Related amounts not set off in
SHABESE  amountsof  of financial the balance sheet
Gross amounts recognised liabilities BEMZ
of recognised  financial assets  presented in $RTA Befm
financial  setoffinthe the balance Financial ~ Cash collateral ek
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=15 Liabilities
freEeMIA Derivative financial instruments 239,495 - 239,495 (27,605) - 211,890
B8 Other liabilities 946,711 (883,177) 63,534 - - 63,534
st Total 1,186,206 (883,177) 303,029 (27,605) - 275,424

BRAEBEERITAMSIMIETANMEREBER SN FHEEHE
B HEREENIEMEERENEN  AIR—X5
HFZHBSRARAFRER -

#1571 % 4441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale
and repurchase transactions entered into by the Group,
related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset
if an event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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MR2014F 20135128310 » WESHEEER -

45. EEREHABEER

RBEEB (ARG (58622F) KiFR1155781% - 2B Al
SEBCRRIER) (£32F) F161BIKMNMRTE - MARTT
EENEABEREZERFBOT

BA R R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

44. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers
of financial assets.

45. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND

OFFICERS

Particulars of advances made to directors and officers of the
Bank pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) with reference
to section 161B of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32) are as follows:

2014 2013
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

RERBANERZBRAR 5

at year end

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding

v

RERR

il

BERAR S 2 &RBHER

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions

outstanding during the year - _

46. FECHHEALIRS

FEARANEEBREBTEREEREMERR ([F
B -H2EWBRARTRESREERAETAR ([E
&) RESHEBEH#S 2 FRIRTRPRES - HAKE

BITHES o

TBZEMEAL RS TIREBEBT LG LN F24REE °

www.ncbh.com.hk

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of
the PRC Government through China Investment Corporation
("CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), BOC and BOCHK in which
Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

The significant related party transactions are defined
according to HKAS 24.
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46. FEZEBREALIRS (9

(a) EBEBRAARBLAFANEFZEMIATDETHRS

B R A EREH

AEBEZEEERAERAFRRHERE  MAPRFERR
RREIRITIER] - B2 RHBRITZERAR  TEHEANE
BWMBAR MARELEIEESREEEXZBNEES
BRA] -

EENRLENME RIS R EH R -

AEBEGEEFEBPRGEEBETRIREMEBLRS -
BREER EFRREREENS -

REBD EPRFTHETHRZREEEMEES - R2014F
12A318 * NEEER B K BN R IRITHRIELTES B
7578 4,756,693,0007T (20134F : % #6,796,023,0007T)
& 7 #13,986,923,0007T (20134 : % #2,702,999,000
JC) ° B E2014F12A318 L FE - B HIE TR EE
EBBREPEENRART HEZED R AE 295,494,000
7t (20134 : 7 #240,822,0007%) & 7 #191,080,0007C
(20134 : ##39,549,0007T) °

AE D EFIRBBETHRSIREEE TS EE - K20145F
12A318 ' X&EEEBEERRENFIREBHIBEES A
7575 #1,840,662,0007T (20134 : & #52,139,709,0007T)
K 7 %17,173,914,0007T (20134 : 7 %#21,270,585,000
J0) ° BiE2014F12A31B IEFE - EARRBBK ML E
X¥BARPEENBARS LTS R &S 2,560,000
JC (20134 : 7 #10,252,0000T) K /& #729,578,0007C
(20134 : ##708,001,0007T) °
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46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies
and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which
is in turn controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling
entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC
which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other
entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking and other transactions with
these entities in the normal course of business which include
loans, investment securities and money market.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money
market activities. As at 31 December 2014, the related
aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$4,756,693,000 (2013: HK$6,796,023,000) and
HK$13,986,923,000 (2013: HK$2,702,999,000) respectively.
The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the
year ended 31 December 2014 were HK$295,494,000
(2013: HK$240,822,000) and HK$191,080,000 (2013:
HK$39,549,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arise from money
market activities. As at 31 December 2014, the related
aggregate amounts due from and to BOCHK of the Group
were HK$1,840,662,000 (2013: HK$2,139,709,000)
and HK$17,173,914,000 (2013: HK$21,270,585,000)
respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with BOCHK
for the year ended 31 December 2014 were HK$2,560,000
(2013: HK$10,252,000) and HK$729,578,000 (2013:
HK$708,001,000) respectively.
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46. FEZEBREALIRS (9

(a) EBEBAARBARAEHIEMARETHRS

(&)

BRAIHEXEH : (&)

AR RAZEFZHEMARNRZREERFPT
Ko MR2014F12A318 ASBHBEREBELBRBK
12,914,910,0007T (20134 : & ¥&7,093,494,0007T) ° £\
£2014F12A831HIEFE © BEQRER 2 KA R A
ULER TS RIE R E A R S 4858 A5 1683,057,0007T (2013
F @ B#95,069,0007T) °

% RIS - SE S AR RS A ALY E A R
BRBLTFEK o

(b) BRBF#E  AEEE WEEBRAGERSA
ERERNXS

FEARKNBEZRBBTRRESHAREERIES
M EARAMBEEBE EABFHE - E#E - B
BELEMBEEH EBERAMREIAEEMER - &
SEZ-RAXGRERFEE - (ERE  HEBRERE
EBEHERETERRITEHRRS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies
and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies (Cont'd)

General information of the parent companies: (Cont’d)

The majority of transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies arise from deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2014, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$12,914,910,000 (2013:
HK$7,093,494,000). The aggregate amount of expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with other
companies controlled by the parent companies for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$83,057,000 (2013:
HK$95,069,000).

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent
companies and the other companies controlled by the parent
companies are not considered material.

(b) Transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC and Central Huijin,
which also directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The
Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms.
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46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities (Cont'd)

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the
following:

lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and
deposit taking;

inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of
bonds issued by other state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and

investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication
and postage services.

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and Senior Management. The Group
accepts deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities
to key management personnel in the ordinary course of
business.
material transaction was conducted with key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as well as
parties related to them.

During both the current and prior years, no

The compensation of key management personnel for the
year ended 31 December is detailed as follows:

2014 2013

BETRT BT T

HK$’'000 HK$'000

R E MG H 8 TR Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 26,740 28,882
RIKEF Post-employment benefits 1,694 1,635
28,434 30,517
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47. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign

currency exposures arising from trading, non-trading and
structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
Completion Instructions for the prudential return “Foreign
Currency Position of an Authorised Institution” issued by

the HKMA.
2014
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Hih s Shee@ct
Other Total
EY AR¥ foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REBE Spot assets 50,714,856 129,625,777 10,170,515 190,511,148
HEAE Spot liabilities (49,057,989) (113,019,787) (9,087,139) (171,164,915)
=HEA Forward purchases 23,258,343 8,581,087 2,839,602 34,679,032
RHEH Forward sales (24,806,626)  (25,023,970) (3,877,531)  (53,708,127)
REBFE Net long position 108,584 163,107 45,447 317,138
HEEE KT Net structural position 271,715 8,414,836 - 8,692,551
2013
BT TSR
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
H A oh& INE BT
Other Total
ETT ARE foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 51,589,784 121,853,558 9,384,830 182,828,172
BEAE Spot liabilities (44,518,523) (111,464,523) (9,925,494) (165,908,540)
RHEA Forward purchases 24,399,649 10,648,881 4,468,976 39,517,506
RHE Forward sales (29,771,697)  (21,621,410) (3,875,909)  (55,269,016)
£/(8) 838 Net long/(short) position 1,699,213 (583,494) 52,403 1,168,122
EEMEERTR Net structural position 333,141 8,263,668 - 8,596,809
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48. EEIERE

R T2 REBERERE 2T RRRAERE MR
% BEREESBIRZHET 2 RERBRAENILER D M -
TERRZHHFMERT ARBRER - EERZERAM
R ZHFEMIR - RIERSEEEERAZAE
e HEEBRTZEIDTT  ERBEEEBEZRTZ
BITHTE - ARENERNBERKEHEC T MARERE
B ERETE10% A L2 ERAFEWT :

48. CROSS-BORDER CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the
Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of cross-
border claims. Cross-border claims are exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and are
derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim
guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the country
of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country, the
risk will be transferred to the country where its head office
is located. Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk
transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the aggregate cross-
border claims are shown as follows:

2014
ANEE*
$81T  Public sector Htt “Et
Banks entities* Others Total
BETT BYTT B¥TT BYTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DM PBREEE Asia, other than Hong Kong
— RE A — Mainland of China 29,028,933 812,933 40,413,113 70,254,979
— Hith - Others 9,304,654 - 1,804,681 11,109,335
4t Total 38,333,587 812,933 42,217,794 81,364,314
2013
NEEH*
$877  Public sector Hit mast
Banks entities* Others Total
T ST IT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T - TEEES Asia, other than Hong Kong
— REAH - Mainland of China 35,085,897 647,145 34,557,836 70,290,878
— Hft - Others 6,522,598 851 1,259,319 7,782,768
Bt Total 41,608,495 647,996 35,817,155 78,073,646
@ ERYIREERAEN B (RITE (BR) HA)) AN EARR * There are no exposures eligible to be classified as public sector entities

LR
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49. JESRITHYA Hb [E B AR e 49. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

HIERTRGEFHRNMBRARREREZ ST 2B EER The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the

B MK AERIE AT 2 MR R R BB R 2 BB A S categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct

B oo WHRREFRABITREVERITEB Z2HBRARZA exposures with reference to the Completion Instructions for

b [ g A HE o the HKMA return of non-bank Mainland exposures, which
includes the Mainland exposures extended by the Bank and
its banking subsidiary.

2014
EEABERA BEABRN
&L B AR I i L B AR I
$EB|MRIEE  On-balance  Off-balance  E R AR

[tems in HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BETT BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R - REEFEAR Central government, central government-

i HBATIRAZE  owned entities and their subsidiaries

g and joint ventures 1 29,451,874 1,151,441 30,603,315
Mo 7B ~ S BURHSEHR) Local governments, local government-

HiE - HIfBARIRAE  owned entities and their subsidiaries

1% and joint ventures 2 11,599,566 1,810,301 13,409,867
mEZERNERSEME  PRC nationals residing in Mainland or

EBREEE - KB other entities incorporated in Mainland

NARABLE and their subsidiaries and joint ventures 3 50,180,366 29,896,773 80,077,139
TEEE FaiE—I8FR R Other entities of central government not

BT A E) E A S reported in item 1 above 4 318,005 - 318,005
TEEE e 1B 7 Other entities of local governments not

BT AR E A s reported in item 2 above 5 - - -

mEZEEINER ARSI PRC nationals residing outside Mainland or
SR - EEMAIEAN  entities incorporated outside Mainland
HEE where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland 6 6,980,121 1,183,797 8,163,918
HEix S8 FimERBAE Other counterparties where the exposures
W8 AIERITHMMER  are considered to be non-bank Mainland

A exposures 7 5,177,267 - 5,177,267
1At Total 8 103,707,199 34,042,312 137,749,511
MREESRNEERLS  Total assets after provision 9 310,553,707

BEABRANERKAE  On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
HMEEREADL of total assets 10 33.39%
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49. FERITHAMERRAE (&) 49. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES
(Cont'd)
(&31)
(Restated)
2013

EEABERA BAEAEBERI
B RHRKXER R A ) | B A 4
ltems in HKMA On-balance Off-balance 48 R i

return sheet exposure sheet exposure  Total exposure
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PRI - RREUFIEAH Central government, central government-

HiE - EIfBAFINAE  owned entities and their subsidiaries

2 and joint ventures 1 24,381,250 835,223 25,216,473
AT~ A BT EE R Local governments, local government-

W HBATIRAZE  owned entities and their subsidiaries

~E and joint ventures 2 10,589,130 1,800,550 12,389,680
HmEFESEANERSEME  PRC nationals residing in Mainland or

BN - HIHE  other entities incorporated in Mainland

NAIREBE and their subsidiaries and joint ventures 3 52,761,011 28,348,407 81,109,418
NEHEE bt —18m g Other entities of central government not

BT AR E A s reported in item 1 above 4 - _ _
NEIEE B 87 Other entities of local governments not

BT A B E A S reported in item 2 above 5 - - _

mEEEINERSESESN  PRC nationals residing outside Mainland or
SMeviess - EAMIER  entities incorporated outside Mainland
MEE where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland 6 5,630,650 1,876,581 7,507,231
HiZ ZEFmERKAE Other counterparties where the exposures
WAR BIERITHINMER  are considered to be non-bank Mainland

I exposures 7 4,593,476 42,298 4,635,774
FCET Total 8 97,955,517 32,903,059 130,858,576
MREESRNEEMAS  Total assets after provision 9 288,685,809
BEBGBRANERAEE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage

EERERDL of total assets 10 33.93%

BB ZEEHI R  INFEAREZIRER o The comparative amounts have been restated to conform

with the current year's presentation.
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FEARKNMBEBZEABTER  H2EMNBRAESRE
CHEEEHER 2 PERTRPRES  HAKEERTE
i o

51. FHBRAE

KRBTSR ERN2015F3 198 K ES L BB LA EZEM o
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50. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC, its wholly-owned
subsidiary Central Huijin, BOC and BOCHK in which Central
Huijin has controlling equity interests.

51. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2015.
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